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PART I

Item 1. Business

Avnet, Inc., incorporated in New York in 1955, ttiger with its consolidated subsidiaries (the “Comyeor
“Avnet”), is one of the world’s largest industridilstributors, based on sales, of electronic comptmenterprise
computer and storage products and embedded sulmsysi@net creates a vital link in the technologpply chain
that connects more than 300 of the world’s leadilegtronic component and computer product manufaxgand
software developers with a global customer baseare than 100,000 original equipment manufactuf&@&Ms”),
electronic manufacturing services (“EMS”) providessginal design manufacturers (“ODMs”), and vahdded
resellers (“VARSs"). Avnet distributes electronicmmponents, computer products and software as retiom its
suppliers or with assembly or other value addednyet. Additionally, Avnet provides engineering dpgs
materials management and logistics services, syistmration and configuration, and supply chairvises.

Organizational Structure

Avnet has two primary operating groups — Electrerarketing (“EM”) and Technology Solutions (“TS”).
Both operating groups have operations in eachefltree major economic regions of the world: theefinas;
Europe, the Middle East and Africa (‘EMEA”); andiA&Pacific, consisting of Asia, Australia and Newafand
(“Asia” or “Asia/Pac”). Each operating group has @gwn management team led by a group presidennahales
regional presidents and senior executives withindjperating group who manage the various functiagtisn the
businesses. Each operating group also has difitiacicial reporting that is evaluated at the coap@tevel on whic
operating decisions and strategic planning forGbenpany as a whole are made. Divisions exist wighich
operating group that serve primarily as sales aarketing units to further streamline the sales madketing efforts
within each operating group and enhance each dpgrtoup’s ability to work with its customers asuppliers,
generally along more specific product lines or gapbies. However, each division relies heavily lwa support
services provided by each operating group as weatkatralized support at the corporate level.

Avnet’s operating groups and their sales are dgvisst

Fiscal 200¢  Percentage

Regior Sales of Sales
(Millions)
EM Americas $ 3,288.: 20.%%
EM EMEA 3,026.! 18.€
EM Asia 2,878.( 17.7
Total EM 9,192.¢ 56.€
TS Americas 4,283.¢ 26.4
TS EMEA 2,241.¢ 13.¢
TS Asia 511.: 3.2
Total TS 7,037.. 43.4
Total Avnet $16,229.! 100.(%

A description of each operating group and its besées is presented below. Further financial inftiondy
operating group and geography is provided in Nétéolthe consolidated financial statements appganiftem 15
of this Report.

Electronics Marketing

EM markets and sells semiconductors and intercdnpassive and electromechanical devices (“IP&BY) f
more than 300 of the world’s leading electronic poment manufacturers. EM markets and sells itsymisdand
services to a diverse customer base serving masynamkets including automotive, communications, patar
hardware and peripheral, industrial and manufaogurinedical equipment, military and aerospace. Ed affers
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an array of value-added services that help customaluate, design-in and procure electronic coraptsn
throughout the lifecycle of their technology protiuand systems. By working with EM from the degiipase
through new product introduction and through thedpict lifecycle, customers and suppliers can acataheir tim
to market and realize cost efficiencies in bothdhsign and manufacturing process.

EM Design Chain Services

EM Design Chain Services offers engineers a hotabfnical design solutions in support of the splesess.
With access to a suite of design tools and engimgeervices from any point in the design cyclestomers can get
product specifications along with evaluation kitglaeference designs that enable a broad ranggpti€ations fron
concept through detailed design including new pebéhutroduction. EM also offers engineering anchtgcal
resources deployed globally to support productgiiediill of materials development, design serviaed technical
education and training. By utilizing EM’s Design & Services, customers can optimize their composglaction
and accelerate their time to market.

EM Supply Chain Services

EM Supply Chain Services provides end-to-end smhgtifocused on OEMs, EMS providers and electronic
component manufacturers, enabling them to optimigmly chains on a local, regional or global bajis.
combining internal competencies in global warehogisind logistics, finance, information technologyd asset
management with its global footprint and extengigener relationships, EM’s Supply Chain Servicegedop a
deeper level of engagement with its customers. & bastomers can continuously manage their supinstio
meet the demands of a competitive environment ¢iobdthout a commensurate investment in physicseds.
With proprietary planning tools and a variety oféntory management solutions, EM can provide ungpletions
that meet a customer’s just-in-timequirements in a variety of scenarios includiranlenanufacturing, demand flc
and outsourcing.

Each of EM'’s regions has sales and marketing dimsthat generally focus on a specific customemsen,
particular product lines or a specific geographye ®ivisions offer one of the industry’s broadé@st lcards and
convenient one-stop shopping with an emphasis sporesiveness, engineering support, on-time deligady
quality. Certain specialty services are made abkilto the individual divisions through common sopigservice
units. EM Americas addresses the needs of its meand suppliers through focused channels tacgesmall- to
medium-sized customers, global customers, defemd@@rospace customers and contract manufactindeMEA,
divisions which are organized by semiconductor&HBProducts and supply chain services address meton
both a pan-European and regional basis. EM EMEA thosiness in over 40 European countries, andXver
countries in the Middle East and Africa. EM Asiaegdo market with sales and marketing divisiondiwiChina,
South Asia, Taiwan and Japan.

Technology Solutions

TS markets and sells mid- to high-end servers, statage, software, and the services required pdeiment
these products and solutions to the VAR channekl$8 focuses on the worldwide OEM market for cotimgu
technology, system integrators and non-PC OEMsr#tatire embedded systems and solutions including
engineering, product prototyping, integration attteo value-added services. As a global technoladgssand
marketing organization, TS has dedicated salesyaréieting divisions focused on specific customgnsents
including OEMs, independent software vendors, sydiailders, system integrators and VARSs.

TS divisions fall within two primary product solatis groups around the globe:

Enterprise Solutions

With VARs as their customers, these businessesfonuhe global value-added distribution of entiegpr
computing systems, software, storage, servicecamgplex solutions from the world’s foremost tectogyl
manufacturers. These businesses also provide coraptary logistics, financial, marketing, sales taahnical
services, including engineering support, systertegiation and configurations.
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Embedded Solution

These businesses provide technical design, integrahd assembly to developers of application-$jgeci
computing solutions in the non-PC market, includdigMs targeting the medical, telecommunicationdysgtrial
and digital editing markets. They also provide [#iest microprocessor, motherboard and DRAM module
technologies to manufacturers of general-purposgpaters and system builders.

Foreign Operations

As noted in the operating group discussions, Atastsignificant operations in all three major ecoito
regions of the world: the Americas, EMEA and Afacific. The percentage of Avngttonsolidated sales by reg
is presented in the following table:

Percentage of Sales
for Fiscal Year

Regior 200¢ 2008 2007
Americas 47% 48% 50%
EMEA 32 33 31
Asia/Pac 21 19 19

100% 100% 10C%

Avnet's foreign operations are subject to a varadtyisks. These risks are discussed further uRilgk Factors
in Item 1A and undeQuantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MetrRiskin Item 7A of this Report.
Additionally, the specific translation impacts oféign currency fluctuations, most notably the Eomthe
Company’s consolidated financial statements athéurdiscussed iManagement’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operaticin Item 7 of this Report.

Acquisitions

Avnet has historically pursued a strategic acqoisiprogram to grow its geographic and market cagerin
world markets for electronic components and computeducts. This program was a significant factoAvnet
becoming one of the largest industrial distributmrsuch products worldwide. Avnet expects to ammito pursue
strategic acquisitions as part of its overall gtogtrategy, with its focus likely directed primgrédt smaller targets
markets where the Company is seeking to expanddt&et presence, increase its scale and scopeaaridctease
its product or service offerings.
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During fiscal 2009 and 2008, the Company complétedollowing acquisitions:

Approximate
Operating Annual

Acquired Busines: Group Region Revenue(1) Acquisition Date

Fiscal 2009
Abacus Group pl EM EMEA $400 millior 01/20/0¢
Nippon Denso Industry Co., Lt EM Asia/Pa $140 millior 12/29/0¢
Ontrack Solutions Pvt. Ltd TS Asia/Pa $13 million 07/31/0¢
Source Electronics Corporatit EM Americas $82 million 06/30/0¢
Horizon Technology Group p TS EMEA $400 millior 06/30/0¢

Fiscal 2008
Azzurri Technology EM EMEA $100 millior 03/31/0¢
YEL Electronics Hong Kong Ltd EM Asia/Pal $200 millior 12/31/0°
Division of Acal plc Ltd. TS EMEA $200 millior 12/17/0°
ChannelWors TS Asia/Pa $30 million 10/31/0}
Betronik GmbH EM EMEA $40 million 10/31/0°
Division of Magirus Grouj TS EMEA $500 millior 10/06/0°
Flint Distribution Ltd. EM EMEA $40 million 07/05/0°

(1) Represents the approximate annual revenue forctiigirad businesses’ most recent fiscal year erat pwi
acquisition by Avnet (and based upon average fareigrency exchange rates for those peri

Major Products

One of Avnet’s competitive strengths is the breaattl quality of the suppliers whose products itriftiates.
IBM products accounted for approximately 15%, 149 4% of the Company’s consolidated sales duiguaf
2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively, and was the sangplier from which sales of its products exceetiégdh of
consolidated sales. Listed in the table below lagemiajor product categories and the Company’s appeie sales
of each during the past three fiscal years:

Years Ended

June 27, June 28, June 30,
2009 2008 2007
(Millions)
Semiconductor $8,324.( $9561.: $ 9,176
Computer product 6,393.¢ 6,925.¢ 5,337.¢
Connectors 735.2 713.€ 571.2
Passives, electromechanical and o 777.% 752.1 595.¢

$16,229. $17,952.  $15,681.:

The Company has more than 300 locations worldvadeyell as a limited number of instances where #Avne
owned product is stored in customer facilities. 8arhthese locations contain sales, warehousingadndnistrative
functions for multiple sales and marketing unitgnat sells to customers in more than 70 countries.

Competition & Markets

Avnet is one of the world’ largest industrial distributors, based on sa&s|ectronic components and comp
products.

The electronic components and computer productssinieés continue to be extremely competitive amd ar
subject to rapid technological advances. The Colyipanajor competitors include Arrow Electronics¢inFuture
Electronics and World Peace Group. There are agaio smaller, specialized competitors who foqusruone
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market, product or a particular sector. As a resulhese factors, Avnet must remain competitivasrpricing of
goods and services.

Another key competitive factor in the electroniergmonent and computer product distribution induitrhe
need to carry a sufficient amount of inventory teaetrapid delivery requirements of customers. H@xeo
minimize its exposure related to valuation of ineey on hand, the majority of the Company’s produare
purchased pursuant to non-exclusive distributoe@auents, which typically provide certain protecsiém the
Company for product obsolescence and price erasitre form of rights of return and price proteatio
Furthermore, these agreements are generally céteelpon 30 to 180 days’ notice and, in most cgz@w,ide for
inventory return privileges upon cancellation. tidaion, the Company enhances its competitive osly offering
a variety of value-added services which entailgedormance of services and/or processes tailaré@ttvidual
customer specifications and business needs syabirstsof use replenishment, testing, assembly, lgughmain
management and materials management.

Another competitive advantage is the size of th@pber base. Because of the number of Avnet's sep!
many customers can simplify their procurement pgs@nd make all of their required purchases fromef\wather
than purchasing from several different vendors.

Seasonality

Historically, Avnets business has not been materially impacted bysabty, with the exception of a relative
minor impact on consolidated results from the ghoimtrevenues in the Technology Solutions busidesig the
December and June quarters primarily driven byfifoal year end of key suppliers.

Number of Employees

At June 27, 2009, Avnet had approximately 12,90pleyees.

Avnet Website

In addition to the information about Avnet contalrie this Report, extensive information about trempany
can be found at www.avnet.com, including informatadbout its management team, products and seraiwks
corporate governance practices.

The corporate governance information on the welisitledes the Company’s Corporate Governance
Guidelines, the Code of Conduct and the chartersdoh of the committees of Avnet’s Board of Dicest In
addition, amendments to the Code of Conduct, cotaeitharters and waivers granted to directors aedutive
officers under the Code of Conduct, if any, willfiested in this area of the website. These docwsreart be
accessed at www.avnet.com under the “Investor Rekkt— Corporate Governanceéption. Printed versions of t
Corporate Governance Guidelines, Code of Conduttharters of the Board committees can be obtaineel of
charge, by writing to the Company at: Avnet, I'#211 South 47th Street, Phoenix, AZ 85034, AttnrpOoate
Secretary.

In addition, the Company’s Annual Report on FormrKl@uarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports
Form 8-Kand amendments to those Reports, if any, filediorished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of 8tes
Exchange Act of 1934, as well as Section 16 filingale by any of the Company’s executive officerdimgctors
with respect to Avhet common stock, are availalbleh® Company’s website (www.avnet.com under theestor
Relations — SEC Filings” caption) as soon as reallyrpracticable after the report is electronicéilgd with, or
furnished to, the Securities and Exchange Comniissio

These details about Avnet’s website and its cordembnly for information. The contents of the Camyg's
website are not, nor shall they be deemed to keyorated by reference in this Report.
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Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

Forward-Looking Statements And Risk Factors

This Report contains forward-looking statementfiwitspect to the financial condition, results ofi@ions
and business of Avnet. These statements are gbnielattified by words like “believes,” “expects;anticipates,
“should,” “will,” “may,” “estimates” or similar expessions. Forward-looking statements are subjeatihoerous
assumptions, risks and uncertainties.

Avnet does not undertake any obligation to updatefarward-looking statements, whether as a resfutiew
information, future events or otherwise. Factoed thay cause actual results to differ materialiyrfrthose
contained in the forward-looking statements incltiaefollowing:

The current global economic downturn has affectdtetCompany'’s financial results and management can
offer no assurance that the effect of these condlits either will improve in the near future or witiot worsen.

Beginning with the third quarter of fiscal 2008etBompanys financial results were impacted negatively by
global economic slowdown as Avnet experienced alrdgcline in end market demand, first in its Teabgy
Solutions operating group and then in its Electtemilarketing operating group. Deterioration in financial and
credit markets heighten the risk of reduced corggospending on information technology, and contihorarket
weakness may result in a more competitive envirarirard lower sales. Even though management takies do
better align the Comparg/cost structure with current market conditions, ltkenefits from these cost reductions i
take longer to fully realize or otherwise may ndtyf mitigate the impact of the reduced demancmtechnology
supply chain.

An industry down-cycle in semiconductors could sificantly affect the Company’s operating results adarge
portion of revenues comes from sales of semicondustwhich has been a highly cyclical industry.

The semiconductor industry historically has expesés periodic fluctuations in product supply anchead,
often associated with changes in technology andufaaturing capacity, and is generally considerebdedighly
cyclical. During each of the last three fiscal yweaales of semiconductors represented over 5aBiedompany’s
consolidated sales, and the Compamnmgvenues, particularly those of EM, closely fallthe strength or weakness
the semiconductor market. Future downturns indletriology industry, particularly in the semiconaducector,
could negatively affect the Company’s operatingiitssand negatively impact the Company’s abilityrtaintain its
current profitability levels.

Failure to maintain its relationships with key sugiprs could adversely affect the Company’s sales.

One of the Company’s competitive strengths is tieadhth and quality of the suppliers whose prodilets
Company distributes. However, sales of productssamdices from one of the Compasyguppliers, IBM, accountt
for approximately 15% of the Company’s consolidagats in fiscal year 2009. Management expects pidducts
and services to continue to account for roughlyralar percentage of the Company’s consolidatedssal fiscal
year 2010. The Compa’s contracts with its suppliers, including thos¢hwiBM, vary in duration and are generally
terminable by either party at will upon notice. fhe extent IBM or other primary suppliers signifitig reduce thei
volume of business with the Company in the futtime,Company’s business and relationships withugtamers
could be materially, adversely affected becauselissomers depend on the Company'’s distributioglextronic
components and computer products from the industegding suppliers. In addition, to the extent #rgy of the
Company’s key suppliers modify the terms of theintcacts including, without limitation, the termegarding price
protection, rights of return, rebates or other that protect the Company’s gross margins, itdcouhterially and
adversely affect the Company’s results of operatifinancial condition or liquidity.
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Declines in the value of the Compa’s inventory or unexpected order cancellations bg tBompan’s
customers could materially, adversely affect itssiness, results of operations, financial conditian liquidity.

The electronic components and computer productssiniés are subject to rapid technological change; and
enhanced products and evolving industry standaridigh can contribute to a decline in value or obsoénce of
inventory. During an industry and/or economic dawnt it is possible that prices will decline dueatooversupply
of products and, as a result of the price declittese may be greater risk of declines in inveniaiye. Although it
is the policy of many of the Company’s suppliersti@r distributors like Avnet certain protectioflem the loss in
value of inventory (such as price protection andtkd rights of return), the Company cannot be &sbthat such
policies will fully compensate for the loss in vajwor that the vendors will choose to, or be adlédnor such
agreements, some of which are not documented anefftiie subject to the discretion of the vendoaddition, the
Company'’s sales are typically made pursuant toviddal purchase orders, and the Company generadg dot
have long-term supply arrangements with its custent@enerally, the Company’s customers may candelrs
30 days prior to shipment with minimal penaltieee TTompany cannot be assured that unforeseen mmeluqr
developments, declines in the value of the Commamyentory or unforeseen order cancellations $ygitstomers
will not materially and adversely affect the Comgparbusiness, results of operations, financial dowl or
liquidity.

Substantial defaults by the Company’s customersitsraccounts receivable or the loss of significantstomers
could have a significant negative impact on the Cpamy’s business, results of operations, financialndition
or liquidity.

A significant portion of the Company’s working cegiconsists of accounts receivable from custoniers.
customers responsible for a significant amountcabants receivable were to become insolvent omatise unable
to pay for products and services, or were to becomélling or unable to make payments in a timelgmmer, the
Company’s business, results of operations, findwwoiadition or liquidity could be adversely affedtéAn economic
or industry downturn could adversely and materiaffgct the servicing of these accounts receivablech could
result in longer payment cycles, increased cobbectiosts and defaults in excess of managementiceagons. A
significant deterioration in the Company’s abilitycollect on accounts receivable could also imgiaeicost or
availability of financing under its accounts re@dile securitization program (see Financing Transag@ppearing
in Item 7 of this Report).

The electronics component and computer industrigs &ighly competitive and if the Company cannot
effectively compete, its revenues may decline.

The market for the Company’s products and senicgesry competitive and subject to rapid technatadi
advances. Not only does the Company compete wlittr gflobal distributors, it also competes for costes with
regional distributors and some of the Company’s swppliers. The Company'’s failure to maintain andance its
competitive position could adversely affect itsihess and prospects. Furthermore, the Companyisteto
compete in the marketplace could cause deteriorafigross profit margins and, thus, overall paifitity.

The sizes of the Company’s competitors vary acnweket sectors, as do the resources the Company has
allocated to the sectors in which it does businélserefore, some of the competitors may have gréiagncial,
personnel, capacity and other resources or a nxbeasve customer base than the Company has ioromere of
its market sectors.

The Company’s non-U.S. locations represent a siggaht and growing portion of its revenue, and
consequently, the Company is increasingly exposeddks associated with operating internationally.

During fiscal year 2009, 2008 and 2007, approxitgei8%, 52% and 50%, respectively, of the Company’s
sales came from its operations outside the UnitattS As a result of the Company'’s foreign safheklacations,
those in emerging and developing economies inquaati, the Company’s operations are subject torigtyeof risks
that are specific to international operations,udahg, but not limited to, the following:

« potential restrictions on the Compi’s ability to repatriate funds from its foreign sialigries;
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« foreign currency fluctuations and the impact on@wenpany’s reported results of operations of the
translation of the foreign currencies to U.S. dsll

« import and export duties and va-added taxes

» compliance with foreign and domestic import andakpegulations and anti-corruption laws, the feglof
which could result in severe penalties includinghetary fines, criminal proceedings and suspension o
export privileges

» changing tax laws and regulatiol

« political instability, terrorism and potential mdry conflicts;

« inflexible employee contracts in the event of bassexdownturns; ar

« the risk of no-compliance with local law:

The potential criminal penalties for violationsefport regulations and anti-corruption laws, paitdy the
U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, create heigidenisks for the Company’s international operatidnghe event
that a governing regulatory body determined that@ompany had violated applicable export regulatimmanti-
corruption laws, the Company could be fined sigaifit sums, incur sizable legal defense costs aitd/export
capabilities could be restricted, which could haveaterial adverse effect on the Company’s busivgbde the
Company has and will continue to adopt measuregmes to ensure compliance with these laws, the aom
cannot be assured that such measures will be adeguthat its business will not be materially irofeal in the evel
of an alleged violation.

The Company’s acquisition strategy may not prodube expected benefits, which may adversely affbet t
Company’s results of operations.

Avnet historically has pursued a strategic acqoisiprogram to grow its global markets for electccemnd
computer products. That program has enabled Aensblidify and maintain its leadership positiorthie
marketplace. During fiscal 2009, Avnet completeg facquisitions. Risks and uncertainties are inttarethe
mergers and acquisition process in that such detunay divert management’s attention from exisbosiness
operations. In addition, the Company may not beeasgful in integrating the acquired businessekeirttegration
may be more difficult, costly or time-consumingrtenticipated. Consequently, the Company may egpeei
disruptions that could, depending on the size efabquisition, have a material adverse effect®husiness.
Furthermore, the Company may not realize all ofahgcipated benefits from its acquisitions, whittuld adversel
affect the Company’s financial performance.

If the Company fails to maintain effective internaontrols, it may not be able to report its finamtiresults
accurately or timely or detect fraud, which coulditie a material adverse effect on the Company’s hass or
stock price.

Effective internal controls are necessary for tioen@any to provide reasonable assurance with respést
financial reports and to effectively prevent fralfdhe Company cannot provide reasonable assunaitheespect
to its financial reports and effectively preverad, its brand and operating results could be harfersuant to the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the Company is requinddrnish a report by management on internal robotver
financial reporting, including management’s assesgrof the effectiveness of such control. Inteamaitrol over
financial reporting may not prevent or detect naitmients because of its inherent limitations, idiclg the
possibility of human error, the circumvention oeavding of controls, or fraud. Therefore, evereefive internal
controls cannot provide absolute assurance wierso the preparation and fair presentationradricial
statements. In addition, projections of any evaduabf effectiveness of internal control over fical reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that thermbmay become inadequate because of changesditioms, or the
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate. If the Company fails to raamthe
adequacy of its internal controls, including anjuf@ to implement required new or improved corgralr if the
Company experiences difficulties in their implenagiun, the Company’s business and operating resoitkl be
harmed, and the Company could fail to meet its ntapgp obligations, which could have a material adeecffect on
its business and the share price.
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If the Compan''s internal information systems fail to function pgerly, or if the Company is unsuccessful
the integration or upgrade of information systermits business operations could suffer.

The Company’s expanding operations put increagtigice on the Company’s internal information systén
producing timely, accurate and reliable reportdimancial and operational results. Currently, th@mpany’s global
operations are tracked with multiple internal imf@ation systems, some of which are subject to onegbi projects
designed to streamline or optimize its global infation systems. There is no guarantee that the @oynypill be
successful at all times or that there will not egration difficulties that will adversely affettte Company’s
operations or the accurate recording and repodiritnancial data. In addition, these systems aigext to
computer hacking or other general system failurainthining and operating these systems requiresntmus
investments. Failure of any of these internal infation systems or material difficulties in upgragthese
information systems could have material adversecesfon the Company’s business and its compliaiitbe w
securities laws.

Major disruptions to the Company’s logistics capétyi could have a material adverse impact on thermany’s
operations.

The Company’s global logistics services are opdrtimugh specialized and centralized distributienters
around the globe. The Company also depends almutetlg on third party transportation service pustis for the
delivery of products to its customers. A major int@tion or disruption in service at one or moreof distribution
centers for any reason (such as natural disagt@nslemics, or significant disruptions of serviaesrf our third part
providers) could cause cancellations or delaysdigaificant number of shipments to customers asd result,
could have a severe impact on the Company’s busioggrations and financial performance.

The Company may not have adequate or cost-effedtiugdity or capital resources.

The Company’s ability to satisfy its cash needsedels on its ability to generate cash from operatamd to
access the financial markets, both of which argestito general economic, financial, competitivegilative,
regulatory and other factors that are beyond thagamy’s control.

The Company may need to satisfy its cash needadhrexternal financing. However, external finanaingy
not be available on acceptable terms or at allbfAkine 27, 2009, Avnet had total debt outstanding
$969.9 million under various notes and committed amcommitted lines of credit with financial instibns. The
Company needs cash to make interest payments drio aafinance, this indebtedness and for generalarate
purposes, such as funding its ongoing working eapitd capital expenditure needs. Under the tefrasyexternal
financing, the Company may incur higher than exg@éfinancing expenses and become subject to adalitio
restrictions and covenants. Any material increas@é Company’s financing costs could have a neltadverse
effect on its profitability.

Under some of its various credit facilities, then@gany is required to maintain certain specifieaficial ratios
and meet certain tests. If the Company fails totrttesse financial ratios and tests, it may be uné&dbkontinue to
utilize these facilities. If the Company could montinue to utilize these facilities, it may nowhasufficient cash
available to make interest payments on and refimamdebtedness and for general corporate needs.

The agreements governing some of the Company’siiitiags contain various covenants and restrictiorsat
limit the discretion of management in operating itaisiness and could prevent us from engaging in som
activities that may be beneficial to the Companpissiness.

The agreements governing the Company’s financimguding its five-year, $500 million credit faciliand the
indentures governing the Company’s outstandingsmaentain various covenants and restrictions thatertain
circumstances, limit the Company’s ability and #odity of certain subsidiaries to:

» grant liens on assel

* make restricted payments (including paying dividead capital stock or redeeming or repurchasingalap
stock);

¢ make investment:
* merge, consolidate or transfer all or substantialipf the Compar’s assets

11
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* incur additional debt; c
e engage in certain transactions with affiliaf

As a result of these covenants and restrictiomsCibmpany may be limited in the future in how ihdocts its
business and may be unable to raise additional debtpete effectively or make further investments.

In addition to the specific factors described ah@emneral economic or business conditions, domastic
foreign, may be less favorable than managementgegand, if such conditions persist in a sustapexibd of
time, could eventually adversely impact the Compaegles or the Company’s ability to collect reedikes from
some of its customers.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Commen

Not applicable.

Item 2. Properties

The Company owns and leases approximately 1,30300(@,873,000 square feet of space, respectiotly,
which approximately 36% is located in the Unitedt8s$. The following table summarizes certain ofGloenpany’s

key facilities.

Sq. Leased ol
Location Footage Owned Primary Use
Chandler, Arizon: 399,00  Owned EM warehousing and val-added operatior
Tongeren, Belgiun 388,000  Owned EM and TS warehousing and ve-added operatior
Poing, German 423,000  Leasec EM warehousing, vali-added operations and offic
Chandler, Arizon: 231,00¢( Leasec TS warehousing, integration and ve-added operatior
Tsuen Wan, Hong Kon 181,00  Leasec EM warehousing and val-added operatior
Phoenix, Arizong 176,00( Leasec Corporate and EM headquart
Tempe, Arizone 132,00  Leasec TS headquartel
Nogales, Mexicc 124,000  Leasec EM warehousing and val-added operatior

Item 3. Legal Proceeding:

As a result primarily of certain former manufachgrioperations, Avnet has incurred and may havedutu
liability under various federal, state and locatieonmental laws and regulations, including thoseagning
pollution and exposure to, and the handling, ste@ud disposal of, hazardous substances. For exaurgler the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensatidhiability Act of 1980, as amended (“CERCLA”")dan
similar state laws, Avnet is and may be liabletf@ costs of cleaning up environmental contamimatio or from
certain of its current or former properties, andféisite locations where the Company disposed of wastie pasi
Such laws may impose joint and several liabilitiBgpically, however, the costs for cleanup at ssités are
allocated among potentially responsible partiegtdagpon each party’s relative contribution to thatamination,
and other factors.

Pursuant to SEC regulations, including but nottiémito Item 103 of Regulation S-K, the Company raxdy
assesses the status of and developments in pesgirgnmental legal proceedings to determine whethg such
proceedings should be identified specifically iis tiscussion of legal proceedings, and has coeditldat no
particular pending environmental legal proceedemuires public disclosure. Based on the informakioown to
date, management believes that the Company haspmiely accrued in its consolidated financiatestaents for it
share of the estimated costs associated with thieoemental clean up of sites in which the Company
participating.

The Company and/or its subsidiaries are also atti@arious other legal proceedings arising fronetto time
in the normal course of business. While litigatissubject to inherent uncertainties, managememeuotly believes
that the ultimate outcome of these proceedingsyithghlly and in the aggregate, will not have a enial adverse
effect on the Company'’s financial position, cagtwflor results of operations.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Hold¢

Not applicable.
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registran’'s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters arsslier Purchases of Equity
Securities

Market price per share

The Company’s common stock is listed on the NewkY&tock Exchange under the symbol AVT. Quarterly
high and low sales prices (as reported for the Mevk Stock Exchange composite transactions) foldksetwo
fiscal years were:

2009 2008
Fiscal Quarters High Low High Low
1st $31.0C $24.2( $44.37 $34.3¢
2nd 24.65 12.1( 43.7¢ 32.9¢
3rd 20.9¢ 15.4( 36.7¢4 29.4:
4th 23.51] 17.22 34.12 26.1¢

The Company has not paid dividends since fisca20@ does not currently contemplate any futuradivd
payments.

Record Holders

As of July 31, 2009, there were approximately 3,86Rlers of record of Avnet's common stock.

Equity Compensation Plan Information as of June 272009

Number of Securities

Number of Securities Remaining Available for
to be Issued Upon Weighted-Average Future Issuance Under Equity
Exercise of Exercise Price of Compensation Plans
Outstanding Options Outstanding Options, (Excluding Securities
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights Reflected in Column (a))

(@) (b) (©
Equity compensation plans approved
by security holders(1 5317,88(2) $ 21.0¢ 2,530,61(3)

(1) Options assumed through acquisitions accounteds@urchases are excluded from (2) below. Theandsig
balance of acquired options was 3,434 (columnw@}) a related weighted average exercise price36f1R
(column (b)).

(2) Includes 3,878,372 of options outstanding and 1,2489stock incentive shares and 296,836 performsinares
awarded but not yet delivered and excludes optsssimed through acquisitions as noted in (1). thegluin the
performance shares is the number of shares articipa be issued in the first quarter of fiscal @@dlating to
the level of achievement reached under the 200@qpeance share program which ended June 27, 2@@9 (s
Note 12 in theNotes to Consolidated Financial Statemeincluded in Item 15 of this Repoi

(3) Does not include 188,204 shares available for &utssuance under the Employee Stock Purchasewtiat) is
a nor-compensatory plai
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Stock Performance Graphs and Cumulative Total Retuns

The graph below compares the cumulative 5-yeal tetarn of holders of Avnet, Inc.’s common stockiwthe
cumulative total returns of the S&P 500 index, antistomized peer group of six companies that deduArrow
Electronics, Inc., Bell Microproducts, Inc., Ingravticro, Inc., Jaco Electronics, Inc., Nu Horizonedronics Corp
and Tech Data Corp. The graph tracks the performahea $100 investment in Avnet’s common stockhmpeer
group, and the index (with the reinvestment oflatidends) from July 2, 2004 to June 27, 2009.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
Among Avnet, Inc., The S&P 500 Index
And A Peer Group

200

180 —{1 Awvnet. Inc. S
&0 * S&P 500 / \\
" 140 | =O—= Peer Group / \
Eé 120 74 T~
| 100 — N
~ .
g "o
i
40
20
[} T T T T T T
7204 TA05 TG G007 A28 H2TI09
* $100 invested on 7/2/04 in stock or 6/30/04 in indecluding reinvestment of dividends.
Index calculated on mor-end basis
Copyright® 2009 S&P, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companieg| All rights reserved.
07/2/04  07/2/05  07/1/06  06/30/0i  06/28/08  06/27/0¢
Avnet, Inc. 100.0C  108.6¢ 95.7¢ 189.67 131.8: 102.9:
S&P 500 100.0C 106.3: 115.5( 139.2¢ 121.0: 89.2¢
Peer Grouj 100.0C 106.3: 119.7C 138.1¢ 110.7¢ 94.2:

The stock price performance included in this grphot necessarily indicative of future stock price
performance.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table includes the Company’s montpilyrchases of common stock during the fourth quarter
ended June 27, 2009:

Maximum Number (or

Period
April
May
June

Total Number of

Approximate Dollar

Total Shares Purchased a Value) of Shares That
Number of Part of Publicly may yet be Purchasec
Shares Average Price Announced Plans or Under the Plans or

Purchasec Paid per Share Programs Programs
8,30 $  18.3C — —
7,90( $ 22.4: — —
8,20 $ 22.1¢ — —

The purchases of Avnet common stock noted above made on the open market to obtain shares fohpse
under the Company’s Employee Stock Purchase Plane Mf these purchases were made pursuant to &lgubl
announced repurchase plan and the Company doesimently have a stock repurchase plan in place.

14




Table of Contents

Iltem 6. Selected Financial Dat:

Years Ended

June 27, June 28, June 30, July 1, July 2,
i 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
(Millions, except for per share and ratio data)
Income:
Sales $16,229.¢ $17,952. $15,681.. $14,253.( $11,066.¢
Gross profi 2,023.( 2,313." 2,048.¢ 1,839.((d) 1,459.(
Operating income (los! (1,019.9(a) 710.4b) 678.5(c) 433.1(d) 321.:
Income tax provisiol 39.4(a) 209.4b) 193.5(c) 111.€(d) 71.t
Net income (loss (1,122.9(a) 499.1(b) 393.1(c) 204.5(d) 168.2
Financial Position
Working capital(e 2,688. 3,191.t 2,711.¢ 2,029.: 2,065.¢
Total asset 6,273. 8,200.: 7,355.: 6,215.° 5,098.:
Long-term debt 946.€ 1,181.t 1,156.( 918.¢ 1,183.:
Shareholder equity 2,760.¢ 4,134." 3,400.¢ 2,831.: 2,097.(
Per Share
Basic earnings (los! (7.49(a) 3.3%(b) 2.65(c) 1.4((d) 1.3¢
Diluted earnings (loss (7.49(a) 3.27(b) 2.65(c) 1.3¢(d) 1.3¢
Book value 18.2¢ 27.4¢ 22.7(C 19.3( 17.3¢
Ratios:
Operating income (loss) margin on
sales (6.9%(a) 4.C%(b) 4.2%(c) 3.C%(d) 2.5%
Net income (loss) margin on sa (6.9)%(a) 2.8%(b) 2.5%(c) 1.4%(d) 1.5%
Return on capite (26.7)%(a) 10.%%(b) 11.2%(c) 7.€%(d) 7.5%
Quick 1.5:1 1.4:1 1.3:1 1.1 1.5:1
Working capital 2.1:1 2.1:1 2.0:1 1.8:1 2.2:1
Total debt to capite 26.(% 22.%% 26.2% 30.2% 37.2%

(@) Includes goodwill and intangible asset impairmérarges of $1.41 billion pre-tax, $1.38 billion aftax and
$9.13 per share and includes the impact of restring}, integration and other items which totale®.89million
pre-tax, $34.9 million after tax and $0.23 per sh@ee Note 18 in thdotes to the Consolidated Financial
Statementcontained in Item 15 of this Report for furtheralission of these items

(b) Includes the impact of restructuring, integratiow ather items, gains on sale of assets and d#masiwhich
totaled to a gain of $11.0 million pre-tax, $14.iflion after tax and $0.09 per share on a dilutedi® (see
Note 18 in theNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statementstained in Item 15 of this Report for further
discussion of these item:

(c) Includes the impact of restructuring, integrationd @ther items, gain on sale of assets, debt exigshgent cost
and other items which amounted to charges of $3illion pre-tax, $20.0 million after tax and $0.f8r share
on a diluted basit

(d) Includes the impact of restructuring, integratiow ather items recorded during fiscal 2006, inalgdnventory
writedowns for terminated lines (recorded in cdstales) in connection with an acquisition. Thesebined
charges amounted to $69.9 million pre-tax (inclgdh®.0 million recorded in cost of sales), $49.4iani after
tax and $0.34 per share on a diluted basis. FE26 results also include a loss on the sale dhbss lines of
$2.6 million pre-tax, $7.1 million after tax and.@8 per share on a diluted basis. The Companyratsmnized
debt extinguishment costs of $22.6 million pre-%%3.6 million after tax and $0.09 per share orlw&et basis.
In addition, in comparison with fiscal 2005, fis@4l06 results include incremental stock-based cosgién
expense resulting from the Comp’s adoption of accounting standards that rec

15




Table of Contents

the expensing of stock-based compensation whicheffastive beginning in fiscal 2006. The increménta
charges amounted to $16.6 million pre-tax, $10Moniafter tax, and $0.07 per share on a dilutasis The
Company also incurred incremental amortization agpeassociated with amortizable intangible assetrded
in fiscal 2006 as a result of the Memec acquisitidiich amounted to $4.2 million pre-tax, $2.7 rofliafter tax
and $0.02 per share on a diluted basis. The tog@hct of these charges amounted to $115.9 millierta,
$83.9 million after tax and $0.57 per share onlatelil basis

(e) This calculation of working capital is defined asrent assets less current liabiliti

Item 7. Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition drResults of Operation

For an understanding of Avnet and the significatdrs that influenced the Compasiperformance during tl
past three fiscal years, the following discussiooutd be read in conjunction with the descriptiénhe business
appearing in Item 1 of this Report and the constdid financial statements, including the relate@sicand other
information appearing in Iltem 15 of this ReporteT®ompany operates on a “52/53-week” fiscal yehe fiscal
years ended June 27, 2009, June 28, 2008 and 0ugae® all contained 52 weeks. Fiscal year 201Chave
53 weeks ending on July 3, 2010.

There are numerous references to the impact ofgfo@irrency translation in the discussion of trempany’s
results of operations. Over the past several ydaesxchange rates between the US Dollar and ricaieign
currencies, especially the Euro, have fluctuatgdiicantly. For example, the US Dollar has stréwegied against
the Euro by approximately 6% when comparing fi#9 with fiscal 2008 and the dollar weakened agahre
Euro by approximately 12% when comparing fiscal@@@th fiscal 2007. When the stronger US Dollar leege
rates of the current year are used to translateethdts of operations of Avnet's subsidiaries deimated in foreign
currencies, the resulting impact is a decreaseSrdllars of reported results as compared withptfiar period.
When the US Dollar weakens, the resulting impaanisncrease in US Dollars of reported resultsoaspared with
the prior period. In the discussion that followsstis referred to as the “translation impact odrfpes in foreign
currency exchange rates.”

In addition to disclosing financial results tha¢ aletermined in accordance with US generally aeckept
accounting principles (“GAAP"), the Company alssaloses certain non-GAAP financial information, lsas:

« Income or expense items as adjusted for the tidmslenpact of changes in foreign currency excharages,
as discussed abov

» Sales adjusted for the impact of acquisitions usithg Avnet’s prior periods to include the sabés
businesses acquired as if the acquisitions hadreatat the beginning of the period presented emithe
discussion that follows, this adjustment for acijioiss is referred to g“pro forma sale” or “organic sale”

« Operating income excluding the non-cash goodwill emangible asset impairment charges recognized
during fiscal 2009, the impact of which is presentethe following table

Operating Income Pre-tax Income Net Income
Fiscal 200¢ (Loss) (Loss) (Loss) EPS
$ in thousands, except per share dat
GAAP results $ (1,019,28) $ (1,083,07) $(1,122,46) $(7.44)
Impairment charge 1,411,12 1,411,12 1,376,98. 9.1:
Adjusted result: $ 391,83t $ 328,05 $§ 254,52 $1.6¢

Management believes that providing this additionfdrmation is useful to the reader to better assesl
understand operating performance, especially wberparing results with previous periods or forecagti
performance for future periods, primarily becausmagement typically monitors the business bothutinoh and
excluding these items. Management also uses tles&AAP measures to establish operational goalsiarmbme
cases, for measuring performance for compensatigpoges. However, analysis of results and outlook aon-
GAAP basis should be used as a complement to,racanjunction with, data presented in accordante GAAP.
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Results of Operations
Executive Summary

During fiscal year 2009, the Company’s financiauiés were adversely impacted by the global economi
slowdown as year-over-year sales declined by just 8% and organic sales declined by over 15%. Wewéhere
are indications that the current economic enviramnneay be stabilizing as sequential sales in tine duarter were
essentially flat, excluding the impact of foreigimrency exchange rate changes. Gross profit madgiokned
43 basis points year over year primarily due tdriess mix changes in EM and market conditions. Assalt of the
write down of goodwill and intangible assets, th@pany incurred an operating loss of just over i§ibi
compared to operating income of $710 million ic&is2008. Excluding impairment charges, operatimgime
margins declined 155 basis points. As the challengiconomic environment accelerated during thalfigear,
demand continued to weaken in both operating grangs in response, the Company took actions tarasmto
reduce costs over the course of the fiscal yebetter align its cost structure with the marketdibons.
Approximately 90% of the total of $225 million im@ualized cost savings had been achieved throwgéartt of the
fiscal 2009, with the remaining actions expectedéaompleted by the end of the first quarter eddl 2010. In
addition, the Company expects to achieve cost gyeeof approximately $40 million as a result ofjaisition
integration activities most of which were complebsdthe end of fiscal 2009 with the remaining expddo be
completed by the end of the second quarter of [f2@&0.

The Company continued to focus on managing workapgjtal, defined as receivables plus inventory less
accounts payable, which declined 30% year over gedrcontributed to the generation of over $1dillin cash
from operating activities as compared with $454iarilin fiscal 2008. However, as revenues seenetstabilizing
and working capital velocity are at appropriateslevfor the operating groups, management doesxpeice to
continue to generate the same levels of cash fimemating activities as were generated in fiscal9200

During fiscal 2009, the Company invested in fivgusitions (see table in tigalessection) and expects to
continue to make strategic investments throughiaitaun activity to the extent the investments sgihen Avnet's
competitive position and meet management’s retarnapital requirements.

Sales

The table below provides a year-over-year summasgales for the Company and its operating groups:

Three-Year Analysis of Sales: By Operating Group at Geography

Years Ended Percent Change
June 27, % of June 28, % of June 30, % of 2009 to 2008 tc
2009 Total 2008 Total 2007 Total 2008 2007

(Dollars in millions)

Sales by Operating Group:

EM Americas $ 3,288.0 20.3% $ 3,771.¢ 21.0% $ 3,722.7 23.7% (12.H% 1.2%
EM EMEA 3,026.t 18.6 3,631.¢ 20.2 3,306.0 21.1 (16.7) 9.8
EM Asia 2,878.( 17.7 2,923.0 16.3 2,650.¢ 16.9 (1.6 10.2
Total EM 9,192.¢ 56.6 10,326.t 57.5 9,679.6 61.7 (11.0 6.7
TS Americas 4,283.¢ 26.4 4,806.t 26.8 4,103.f 26.2 (10.9) 17.1
TS EMEA 2,241.¢ 13.8 2,327.C 13.0 1,579.. 10.1 3.9 47.:
TS Asia 511.2 3.2 492.0 2.7 318.2 2.0 3.€ 54.¢
Total TS 7,037.. 43.4 7,625.¢ 425 6,001.0 38.3 7.7) 27.1
Total Avnet, Inc. $16,229.! $17,952. $15,681. 9.6% 14.5%
Sales by Geographic Area
Americas $ 75720 46.7% $ 8,578 47.8% $ 7,826.. 49.9% (11.79% 9.€%
EMEA 5,268.. 32.4 5,958.¢ 33.2 4,885 31.2 (11.¢) 22.C
Asia/Pacific 3,389.0 20.9 3,415.« 19.0 2,969.. 18.9 0.9 15.C
$16,229.! $17,952. $15,681.:
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Items Impacting Year-over-Year Sales Comparisons

During the past three fiscal years, the Companyiaed fourteen businesses impacting both operafingps,
as presented in the following table. As the actjoiss impact the comparison of fiscal year salaopmance over
prior years, the discussions that follow includies@n a pro forma basis as well as on a reporsis b

Operating
Acquired Busines: Group Regior Acquisition Date
Fiscal 2009
Abacus Group pl EM EMEA 01/20/0¢
Nippon Denso Industry Co., Ltc EM Asia/Pac 12/29/0¢
Ontrack Solutions Pvt. Ltd TS Asia/Pac 07/31/0¢
Horizon Technology Group p TS EMEA 06/30/0¢
Source Electronics Corporati EM Americas 06/30/0¢
Fiscal 2008
Azzurri Technology EM EMEA 03/31/0¢
YEL Electronics Hong Kong Ltd EM Asia/Pac 12/31/0°
Division of Acal plc Ltd. TS EMEA 12/17/0°
ChannelWor TS Asia/Pac 10/31/0}
Betronik GmbH EM EMEA 10/31/0}
Division of Magirus Grouj TS EMEA 10/06/0°
Flint Distribution Ltd. EM EMEA 07/05/0°
Fiscal 2007
Azure Technologie TS Asia/Pac 04/16/0°
Access Distributior TS Americas, EMEA 12/31/0¢

In addition, a change to net revenue reporting otexhthe comparative financial results for Avneewh
comparing fiscal 2008 results to fiscal 2007. Injoaction with the acquisition of Access Distrilirij the Compar
reviewed its method of recording revenue relatetthéosales of supplier service contracts and détedrthat such
sales were to be classified on a net revenue kathisr than on a gross basis effective with the thuarter of fiscal
2007 (referred to as “the change to net revenuertieg” in this MD&A). Although this change reducedles and
cost of sales and positively impacted gross andatipg profit margins for the Technology Solutiaserating
group and on a consolidated basis, it had no impadiperating income, net income, cash flow orttkance sheet.
As the change to net revenue reported impactsales performance comparisons, the discussionsahaw
include sales adjusted for this impact.

Fiscal 2009 Comparison to Fiscal 2008

The table below provides the comparison of repdiitadl 2009 and 2008 sales for the Company and its
operating groups to pro forma (or organic) saleglwhonsist of reported sales adjusted for acqorsitthat closed
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in fiscal 2008 and 2009 as if the acquisitions beclrred at the beginning of fiscal year 2008 tovareaders to
better assess and understand the Company’s reperf@emance by operating group.

2009 to 200
Sales as Acquisition Pro Forma Pro Forma
Reported Sales Sales Change
(Dollars in millions)
EM $9,192¢ $ 291.& $ 9,484.¢ (16.0%
TS 7,037.: 0.€ 7,037. (15.0
Fiscal 200¢ $16,229.¢ $ 292.. $16,522. (15.€)
EM $10,326.t $ 969.2 $11,296.(
TS 7,625.¢ 653.7 8,279.¢
Fiscal 200¢ $17,952.° $1,622.¢ $19,575.4

Consolidated sales for fiscal 2009 were $16.230bi/ldown 9.6%, or $1.72 billion, from the prioraye
consolidated sales of $17.95 billion. Excluding tfenslation impact of changes in foreign curreexghange rates,
sales declined 6.5% year over year. Both operafingps experienced double digit organic contradtiosales as
consolidated pro forma sales were down 15.6% year year. However, on a sequential quarterly bésisth
guarter consolidated sales grew 1.8% and were galbeflat on a pro forma basis. In response t® year-overgear
organic sales contraction in both operating groopmagement took actions during fiscal 2009 to cedwosts. See
discussion undeBelling, General and Administrative Expenksgsr in this MD&A.

EM sales of $9.19 billion declined 11.0% over thiepyear sales of $10.33 billion and declined 8.5%
excluding the translation impact of changes inifpreurrency exchange rates. The decline in revaragsmost
significant in the Americas and the EMEA regiongrasglobal economic slowdown negatively impactesitiroad
industrial markets in these regions. Year-oyear sales were down 12.8%, 16.7% and 1.6% in therkas, EME/
and Asia, respectively. The decline in EMEA sales wompounded by the negative impact of the U&doll
strengthening against the Euro during fiscal 209tha EMEA region’s year-over-year sales declindd®
excluding the translation impact of changes inifpreurrency exchange rates and 17.8% on a proafdasis.
Year-over-year organic sales in the Americas arid Asclined 14.6% and 6.7%, respectively, howeAsia sales
grew 20.3% sequentially in the fourth quarter e€éil 2009.

TS sales of $7.04 billion in fiscal 2009 were dowr% year over year and down 3.8% excluding thestedior
impact of changes in foreign currency exchangesradeganic sales declined 15.0% year over yean-¥ear-year
sales in the Americas and EMEA were down 10.9%3aii®, respectively. Asia sales were up 3.9% year gear
and up 16.0% on a sequential quarterly basis, mpait to the recent organic investments in Chivchthe
acquisition in India. Excluding the impact of chasdn foreign currency exchange rates, EMEA yeargear
revenue was up 7.7% but organic sales were dovd¥d §ear over year.

Fiscal 2008 Comparison to Fiscal 2007

The following table provides a comparison of repdrsales for fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2007 to pronmsales
which are adjusted for (i) acquisitions completediscal 2008 and 2007 as if the acquisitions haxlioed at the
beginning of fiscal year 2007 and (ii) the changeet revenue reporting as if the change had oedwat the
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beginning of fiscal 2007. The pro forma sales infation allows readers to better assess and unddrdta
Company’s revenue performance on a more compabaisis.

Gross to Ne 2008 to 200
Sales as Acquisition Revenue Pro Forma Pro Forma
Reported Sales Impact Sales Change
(Dollars in millions)
EM $10,326.8f $ 187.f % —  $10,514. 5.C%
TS 7,625.¢ 206.7 — 7,832.¢ 4.7
Fiscal 200¢ $17,952.° $ 3942 $ —  $18,346.! 4.9
EM $9679.4 $ 3320 $ —  $10,011.
TS 6,001.1 1,694.( (214.9 7,480.¢
Fiscal 2007 $15,681.. $2,026.( $ (214.9H $17,492.

Avnet's consolidated sales in fiscal 2008 were $8hillion, up $2.27 billion, or 14.5%, over thagryear,
driven primarily by acquisitions and the weakenifighe US Dollar against the Euro as an estima6yd $nillion ol
the increase in sales was attributable to the latios impact of changes in foreign currency exderates. On a
pro forma basis, consolidated sales and salesNbarid TS were roughly 5% higher year over year.

EM generated fiscal 2008 sales of $10.33 billi@presenting a 6.7% increase over fiscal 2007 saletuding
the translation impact of changes in foreign curyeexchange rates, EM fiscal 2008 sales increas®d aver the
prior year. On a pro forma basis, EM sales incré&s@% over fiscal 2007. EM Americas year-over-yses
growth was 1.3% while the EMEA region sales wer@18% year over year and down 2.2% excluding the
translation impact of changes in foreign curremaghange rates. Sales growth in Asia was 10.3% gearyear an
7.1% on a pro forma basis. The Asia region contirtoeexperience the highest growth rate amongtretregions.

TS reported sales of $7.62 billion for fiscal 2008,$1.62 billion, or 27.1%, compared with fiscBDZ sales of
$6.00 billion. Excluding the positive translatianpact of changes in foreign currency exchange ratesales were
up 22.6% year over year. On a pro forma basis,al& grew 4.7% over prior year. At a regional lesales in the
Americas region were up 17.1% year over year aparted basis and up 1.2% on a pro forma basisoaglgin
storage and networking offset declines in proprieszrvers. In EMEA, sales were up 47.3% on a tepdrasis and
up 9% on a pro forma basis. In Asia, sales growah 84.6% year over year on a reported basis bedddit
acquisitions. On a pro forma basis, Asia grew 20d8%r prior year, impacted by relatively weak mpmacessor
and memory product sales in the last quarter 0&fi2008.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margins

Consolidated gross profit for fiscal 2009 was $20on, down $290.7 million, or 12.6%, over theqyr year
primarily due to the decline in revenue. Gross iprofirgin of 12.5% declined 43 basis points ovéopyear. For
EM, gross profit margin was down 74 basis poin@ryaver year as it was negatively impacted by thmhination
of a regional mix shift to Asia, which represen8®s of EM sales as compared with 28% in the préaryand
lower margins in the Americas region. TS grossiproargin was up 10 basis points year over yedhaf MEA
region’s improvement was mostly offset by declimethe Americas and Asia regions.

Consolidated gross profit was $2.31 billion in &52008, a $265.1 million increase, or 12.9%, asgared
with fiscal 2007. This increase was primarily dadhe impact of acquisitions and the year-over-yezaikening of
the US dollar against the Euro. Consolidated gpogt margin of 12.9% in fiscal 2008 decreasedasis points
from the prior year due primarily to slightly lowsrargins at TS and the mix of business between BMTS
described below. The EM Asia business continuegtdav faster than the Americas or EMEA regions, altidlough
the EM Asia business has relatively lower grosdipneargin than the other regions, EM’s gross grofargin
increased 15 basis points over prior year. TS guosfit margins declined 9 basis points year owvaary In addition,
as a result of the acquisitions in fiscal 2008,s&fs grew to 42% of the consolidated sales as adwith 38% c
the consolidated sales in fiscal 2007. Becaus@ $hbusiness typically yields lower gross margiratiee to the EN
business, the larger representation by TS in theal@lated sales also has a negative impact on the
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consolidated gross profit margin. Notwithstanding bbwer gross profit margins, the TS businessriarted to the
Company’s performance goals through the combinaifdts operating profit margin and asset veloaityich is
typically higher than asset velocity at EM.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses (“S@&&penses yere $1.53 billion in fiscal 2009, a decreas
$32.6 million, or 2.1%, over the prior year. Managat estimates that this cost reduction was nappfoximately
$111.1 million in additional SG&A expenses assagatith companies acquired in fiscal 2009, patiaffset by a
decrease in SG&A expenses of $66.5 million dudéottanslation impact of changes in foreign curyemachange
rates. Metrics that management monitors with resjoeits operating expenses are SG&A expensepascantage
of sales and as a percentage of gross profitstafi2009, SG&A expenses were 9.4% of sales a4« 6f gross
profit as compared with 8.7% and 67.6%, respegtjuelfiscal 2008.

Due to the decline in sales and gross profit mathie Company initiated significant cost reductamtions ove
the past four quarters in order to realign its eggestructure with market conditions; however gtecipitous
decline in revenue has more than offset the beiakfiapact of the cost reduction actions undertatcedate (see
Restructuring, Integration and Other Charcfor a discussion of charges associated with thermundertaken). In
the third quarter of fiscal 2008, the Company betgagxperience demand weakness and organic saleshgat botl
EM and TS continued to slow through the first qeladf fiscal 2009. In the second quarter of fis2@09, the
Company experienced continued sales deceleratibatinoperating groups, particularly in Novembettia Asia
region and in December in the Americas region. mythe third quarter of fiscal 2009, end demanthénEM
business deteriorated even further, in particuldM Americas and EM EMEA which have been the Camyfsa
most profitable regions. As a result of the poorkaticonditions through mid-March, the Company tackions to
reduce costs by approximately $200 million on anuatized basis and expected such actions to beletedy the
end of the June quarter. However, based upon dhiadter results, the Company announced furtheoragtio reduc
annualized costs by an additional $25 million, iy the aggregate annual cost reductions announced
approximately $225 million since March 2008. Asteé end of the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009, mamagnt
estimates that approximately $200 million in anieal cost savings have been achieved. The remaioisig
reduction actions are anticipated to be completthbyend of September 2009 with the full benefithaf cost
savings expected to be reflected in the Decembateyuof fiscal 2010. In addition, the Company etpéo achieve
cost synergies of approximately $40 million assuheof acquisition integration activities mostwaiiich were
completed by the end of fiscal 2009 with the rermgjrexpected to be completed by the end of therskqoarter of
fiscal 2010.

SG&A expenses in fiscal 2008 were $1.56 billio$281.4 million increase, or 14.8%, as compared fistal
2007. The year-oveyear increase in SG&A expenses was primarily dusctpisitions and the weakening of the
dollar versus the Euro. Management estimates fabaimately $70.8 million of the SG&A expense isase was
attributable to the translation impact of changefrieign currency exchange rates. SG&A expenses also
impacted by the overall volume increase due to ia@tgpns. Furthermore, management believed thanhdwsecond
half of fiscal 2008, SG&A expenses were higher thaoessary to support the level of business iritebusiness
segments due to revenue weakness in those segsrasesult, during the second half of fiscal 200&nagement
took actions, as describedRestructuring, Integration and Other Chargasadjust the Company’s cost structure.
In fiscal 2008, SG&A expenses were 8.7% of salesGh6% of gross profit as compared with 8.7% at&%,
respectively, in fiscal 2007. SG&A expenses asragrgage of sales for fiscal 2008 were flat as cmeqb with
fiscal 2007; however, SG&A expenses as a percermtbhgmss profits were up 108 basis points.

Impairment Charges

During fiscal 2009, the Company recognized non-casidwill and intangible asset impairment charges
totaling $1.41 billion pre-tax, $1.38 billion afterx and $9.13 per share.

The Company performs its annual goodwill impairntest on the first day of its fiscal fourth quarter
addition, if and when events or circumstances cadhgt would more likely than not reduce the failue of any of
its reporting units below its carrying value, ateiim test would be performed. Since the end ot&aper 2008,
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the Company’s market capitalization declined stgadihich was relatively in line with the decline the overall
market, and was significantly below book value dgrihe second quarter of fiscal 2009 due primaailihe global
economic downturn’s impact on the Company'’s peréoroe and the turmoil in the equity markets. Assallteof
these events, the Company determined an interirdwitioampairment test was necessary and perforrhedriterim
test on all six of its reporting units as of DecemB7, 2008. Based on the test results, the Comgateymined that
goodwill at four of its reporting units was impalreéAccordingly, during the second quarter of fis2a09, the
Company recognized a non-cash goodwill impairméatge of $1.32 billion pre-tax, $1.28 billion aftax and
$8.51 per share to write off all goodwill relatedits EM Americas, EM Asia, TS EMEA and TS Asiaogg
units.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009, the Comypaerformed its annual goodwill impairment tesiath
indicated that three of its six reporting unitgliding EM Asia and TS EMEA, continued to have faitues below
their carrying values. As a result, the Company reagslired to recognize the impairment of additiayabdwill
which arose subsequent to the second quarteroafl 2909 in the EM Asia and TS EMEA reporting unis the
non-cash goodwill impairment charges of $62.3 wmillpre- and after tax and $0.41 per share recodizéhe
fourth quarter of fiscal 2009, $41.4 million reldt® the recently acquired business in Japan, whahassigned to
the EM Asia reporting unit. Accounting standardguiee goodwill from an acquisition to be assignea@treporting
unit and also requires goodwill to be tested oaporting unit level, not by individual acquisitios noted above,
the annual impairment analysis indicated that #iirevialue of the EM Asia reporting unit continuedoe below its
carrying value. As a result, the goodwill from tleeent acquisition was required to be impaired. fEmeaining
$20.8 million of the impairment charges relatecdalitional goodwill in the TS EMEA reporting unitimarily as a
result of final acquisition adjustments during fhechase price allocation period related to an a@epn for which
the goodwill had been fully impaired in the secopdrter of fiscal 2009.

During fiscal 2009, the Company also evaluateddgeverability of its long-lived assets at eaclihaf
reporting units where goodwill was deemed to beaimgal. Based upon this evaluation, the Companyréted
that certain of its amortizable intangible assetsenmpaired. As a result, the Company recognizednacash
intangible asset impairment charge of $31.4 miljioe- and after tax and $0.21 per share duringéleend quarter
of fiscal 2009. In conjunction with the annual gaditlimpairment test, the Company again evaluated t
recoverability of its long-lived assets during tbarth quarter of fiscal 2009 and determined tlfatmpairment had
occurred.

The non-cash impairment charges had no impact@f€tmpany’s compliance with debt covenants, ith cas
flows or available liquidity, but did have a ma#grimpact on its consolidated financial statements.

Restructuring, Integration and Other Charges
Fiscal 2009

In response to the decline in sales and grosstpnafigin, the Company initiated significant costuetion
actions over the past four quarters in order tbgedts expense structure with market conditiohs.a result, the
Company incurred restructuring, integration andeottharges totaling $99.3 million pre-tax, $65.8ion after tax
and $0.43 per share during fiscal 2009 relatetieabst reductions as well as integration cosiscasted with
recently acquired businesses. Restructuring chamgksled severance of $50.8 million, facility egdsts of
$29.6 million and other charges of $4.5 milliorated to contract termination costs, fixed asseieadowns and
other charges. The Company also recorded a rewr$2l5 million to adjust estimated costs for sanee, lease
and other reserves related to prior year restringfuactivity which were deemed excessive and thatnsal was
credited to “restructuring, integration and othlearges.” Integration costs of $11.2 million incldd@ofessional
fees, facility moving costs, travel, meeting, mairkg and communication costs that were incrementaturred as
result of the acquisition integration efforts. Qtitems recorded to “restructuring, integration aiger charges”
included a net credit of $1.2 million related t@aisition adjustments for which the purchase aliocaperiod had
closed, a loss of $3.1 million resulting from aldezin the market value of certain small investisehat the
Company liquidated, and $3.8 million of incremeritéidngible asset amortization.

Severance charges related to personnel reducti@ppooximately 1,900 employees in administratfigance
and sales functions in connection with the costictidn actions in all three regions of both opemgti
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groups with employee reductions of approximate#0Q,in EM, 400 in TS and the remaining from ceiteal
support functions. Exit costs for vacated faciitrelated to 29 facilities in the Americas, 13 MEA and three in
Asia/Pac and consisted of reserves for remainiaggldiabilities and the write-down of leasehold ioyements and
other fixed assets. The total amounts utilizedrdyfiscal 2009 consisted of $36.2 million in caglyqments and
$0.7 million for the non-cash write downs of asséts of June 27, 2009, management expects the ityagbthe
remaining severance reserves to be utilized bgmiteof fiscal 2010, the remaining facility exit tosserves to be
utilized by the end of fiscal 2014 and other coctral obligations to be utilized by the end of fis2010.

Fiscal 2008

During fiscal 2008, the Company incurred restruagirintegration and other charges totaling $38ilian
pre-tax, $31.5 million after tax and $0.21 per sham a diluted basis, related to cost reductionsidered necessary
by management to improve the performance at celi@simess units and integration costs associatddradently
acquired businesses. The restructuring chargeedgbaimarily to severance and facility exit costéegration costs
recorded during fiscal 2008 included professiomakf facility moving costs, travel, meeting, marigand
communication costs that were incrementally inaiag a result of the integration efforts of theerdty acquired
businesses. The total of the restructuring chaagesntegration costs, net of $0.7 million for nesads of excess
lease and severance reserves established in isdal periods, amounted to $29.9 million pag; $21.9 million afte
tax and $0.15 per share on a diluted basis. Otrenges included $6.0 million pre-tax, $7.7 milliafter tax and
$0.05 per share on a diluted basis related todtiesient of an indemnification to a former exeeaitbf an acquired
company (which was not tax deductible) and $3.0ienilpre-tax, $1.8 million after tax and $0.01 gbare on a
diluted basis for additional environmental cossoagated with the reassessment of existing enviestiah matters.

The cost reduction actions taken during fiscal 2ib@8ided severance charges related to personmattions
of over 350 employees in administrative, finance sales functions. Personnel reductions considted o
100 employees in all three regions of EM and o%r id the Americas and EMEA for TS. The facilityitecharges
related to five vacated office facilities, whiclcinded two facilities in the EM EMEA region, two ihe TS EMEA
region and one in the TS Asia region. These fgadiit charges consisted of reserves for remailgage liabilities
and the write-down of leasehold improvements ahérdfixed assets. Other charges incurred includedractual
obligations with no on-going benefit to the Company

The total amounts utilized during fiscal 2008 cstesdl of $8.4 million in cash payments and $0.7iamilfor the
non-cash write downs of assets. As of June 27, 28@%emaining reserves totaled $3.0 million whitdiuded
severance reserves of $1.4 million, facility ererves for leases of $1.5 million and $0.1 milbidrther reserves.
Management expects the majority of the severandetuer reserves to be utilized by the end of fi2640 and
expects the facility exit reserves to be utilizgdHe end of fiscal 2013.

Fiscal 2007

During fiscal 2007, the Company incurred certastmgcturing, integration and other charges amogrttin
$7.4 million pre-tax, $5.3 million after tax and.88 per share on a diluted basis as a result ¢fredsiction
initiatives in all three regions, the acquisitionA@cess on December 31, 2006 and other items. ifbigded
restructuring charges of $13.6 million consistifig@&verance costs of $10.8 million, facility exasts of
$1.0 million, and other contract termination cast$1.8 million. In addition, in connection withdtAccess
acquisition, the Company recorded integration cos%v7.3 million. The Company also recorded in tresturing,
integration and other charges” the write-down af7$@illion related to an Avnet-owned building in B, and the
reversal of $1.7 million related primarily to exseseverance and lease reserves, certain of whighpreviously
established through “restructuring, integration atiter charges” in prior fiscal periods. Partialfjsetting these
charges was a pre-tax benefit of $12.5 million Wwhiesulted from the favorable outcome of a contmdjability
acquired in connection with an acquisition compldtea prior year.

Severance charges related to Avnet personnel iedsaif 96 employees in all three regions of EM and
42 employees in TS Americas and EMEA (a total & &Bployees) in administrative, finance and salestfons
associated with the cost reduction initiatives iempénted during the third and fourth quarter ofdiR007 as part
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of the Companys continuing focus on operational efficiency, anthét employees who were deemed redundan
result of the Access integration. The facility ectitarges related to vacated Avnet facilities inAngericas and
Japan. Other charges consisted primarily of Aviieelated and other asset write-downs and othetracin
termination costs. Included in the asset write-d®were Avnet software in the Americas that was nradandant
as a result of the acquisition of Access, Avnetayshardware in EMEA that was replaced with higtegracity
hardware to handle increased capacity due to tti¢iam of Access, and the write-down of certainitajzed
construction costs abandoned as a result of thaisitign. Other charges incurred included contraktibligations
related to abandoned activities, the write-dowarpAvnet-owned building in EMEA and Access integnatcosts.
The write-down of the building was based on manageis estimate of the current market value and poss#ilang
price, net of selling costs, for the property. Titegration costs related to incremental salarys;gsimarily of
Access personnel, who were retained following tbeecof the acquisition solely to assist in thegnation of
Access’ IT systems, administrative and logisticeragions into those of Avnet. These personnel lwadther
meaningful day-to-day operational responsibilitbesside of the integration efforts. Also includedritegration
costs are certain professional fees, travel, mgetmarketing and communication costs that weresimentally
incurred solely related to the Access integratifforts.

Of the $13.6 million recorded to expense relatetihéocost-reduction activities and exit-relatedvétgt
associated with the Access integration, $0.7 mmiliepresented non-cash write-downs. As of Jun@@d9, the
remaining reserves of $0.2 million related to semee which management expects to be utilized beideof fiscal
2010.

Operating Income (Loss)

During fiscal 2009, the Company recognized an dpegdoss of $1.02 billion which included $1.41liih of
non-cash impairment charges. Excluding the impaitrobarges, operating income for fiscal 2009 was
$391.8 million, or 2.41% of consolidated salesc@®spared with operating income of $710.4 million3®6% of
consolidated sales, in fiscal 2008. In additioe, @ompany recorded $99.3 million of restructuringegration and
other charges discussed previously. EM operatiognre declined 37.2% to $354.5 million and operaiimgme
margin of 3.86% was down 160 basis points fromrpréar. Although the cost reduction actions at Edeh
provided benefits to operating income, the costrgg/were not enough to make up for the declirgales and gro:
profit margin. TS operating income of $201.4 miflivas down 22.9% year over year and operating iecorargin
of 2.86% was down 56 basis points year over yaanil& to EM, the decline in TS operating marginsaue to
lower sales and gross profit margins, in particinahe Americas region, and the benefits fromabst reduction
actions only partially offset the decline. Corperaperating expenses were $64.8 million, a decrefase
$11.3 million as compared with $76.1 million inda 2008.

Operating income for fiscal 2008 was $710.4 million3.96% of consolidated sales, as compared with
operating income of $678.3 million, or 4.33% of solidated sales, in fiscal 2007. Operating inconaggim
declined 37 basis points over the prior year prilyaue to the results at TS and the mix of bussnestween EM
and TS. TS reported operating income of $261.0anilhs compared with $232.2 million in fiscal 2008
operating income margin declined to 3.42% in fi@08 from 3.87% in fiscal 2007. EM reported opagtncome
of $564.4 million in fiscal 2008 as compared wiB29.9 million in fiscal 2007 and operating incomargin was
5.46% and 5.47% for fiscal 2008 and 2007, respelgtivCorporate operating expenses decreased $0i3mo
$76.1 million in fiscal 2008 as compared to $76ifliom in fiscal 2007. Included in operating inconmeboth the
current and prior year were restructuring, intégratnd other charges as described above totaB8@$nillion and
$7.4 million, respectively.

Interest Expense and Other Income (Expense), net

Interest expense for fiscal 2009 was $66.5 milldown $5.8 million, or 8.0%, from interest expen$e
$72.3 million in fiscal 2008. The year-over-yeacdsse in interest expense was primarily the regudwer
average short-term debt outstanding, lower shont-teterest rates and the extinguishment of thed&Bfillion
2% Convertible Senior Debentures which were ptihéoCompany in March 2009. SEmancing Transactionfor
further discussion of the Company’s outstanding.deb
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Interest expense for fiscal 2008 totaled $72.3iom)ldown $4.9 million, or 6.3%, as compared with
$77.2 million in fiscal 2007. The year-over-yeacdmse in interest expense for fiscal 2008 wasariiynithe result
of a lower effective interest rate on short-terrbtdmutstanding and refinancing activities whichweed during
fiscal 2007, whereby higher interest rate debt reasid or replaced with lower interest rate debt.

Other expense, net, was $11.6 million in fiscal288 compared with other income of $21.0 millionhe priot
year. The expense incurred in fiscal 2009 was pilyndue to the impact of foreign currency exchatagses ir
fiscal 2009 as compared with income recognizedsicaf 2008 and lower interest income in fiscal 268Tompared
with fiscal 2008. In addition, fiscal 2008 includedtome from the Company’s equity method investnie@alence
LLC prior to the sale of the investment (€e&in on Sale of Asseits this MD&A ) .

Other income, net, was $21.0 million in fiscal 2@GG8compared with $9.9 million in fiscal 2007. Hear-over-
year increase was primarily due to foreign curreexghange gains compared with losses in the paar,yhighe
interest income resulting from higher investmerabees, and income from an equity method investroempared
with losses in the prior year.

Gain on Sale of Assets

During fiscal 2009, the Company recognized a gatialing $14.3 million pre-tax, $8.7 million aftesx and
$0.06 per share as a result of certain earn-owigioms associated with the prior sale of the Comyfsaequity
investment in Calence LLC.

During fiscal 2008, the Company recognized a gaisae of assets totaling $49.9 million pre-tax,
$32.2 million after tax and $0.21 per share onlatedil basis. In April 2008, the Company sold itaigginvestment
in Calence LLC and recognized a gain of $42.4 omillpre-tax, $25.9 million after tax and $0.17 gdeare on a
diluted basis. In October 2007, the Company sdidilding in the EMEA region and recognized a gdin o
$4.5 million pre- and after tax and $0.03 per shera diluted basis. Due to local tax allowandes,Building sale
was not taxable. The Company also recognized aaf&B.0 million pre-tax, $1.8 million after tax &$0.01 per
share on a diluted basis for the second receipoatingent purchase price proceeds related tashal 2006 sale of
a TS end-user business.

During fiscal 2007, the Company recorded a gaiateel to the receipt of contingent purchase pricegeds
from the fiscal 2006 sale of a TS end-user busirHss gain amounted to $3.0 million pre-tax, $1iBiom after tax
and $0.01 per share on a diluted basis.

Debt Extinguishment Costs

During fiscal 2007, the Company redeemed the $38illibn balance outstanding on its94 % Notes due
February 15, 2008 (the ‘¥ 4% Notes”).The Company used the net proceeds of $296.1 millmn the issuance
September 2006 of $300.0 million principal amouint.625% Notes due September 15, 2016 plus availabl
liquidity, to repurchase the3 4% Notes. In connection with the repurchase, the @om terminated two interest
rate swaps with a total notional amount of $200illon that hedged a portion of the394% Notes. Debt
extinguishment costs incurred during fiscal 2002 assult of the redemption totaled $27.4 milliga-pax,
$16.5 million after tax, or $0.11 per share onlatdd basis, and consisted of $20.3 million forakerwhole
redemption premium, $5.0 million associated with tfvo interest rate swap terminations, and $2.lianito write-
off certain deferred financing costs.

Income Tax Provision

Avnet'’s effective tax rate on its income (loss)drefincome taxes was 3.6% in fiscal 2009 as condpatit
29.6% in fiscal 2008. The effective tax rate irtéis2009 was negatively impacted by the non-dedilityi of
substantially all of the impairment charges andhges to existing tax positions. Partially offsejtthese impacts
was a net tax benefit of $21.7 million, or $0.14 gleare, related primarily to the release of taerees due to the
settlement of certain tax audits in Europe.

Avnet's effective tax rate on its income beforeame taxes was 29.6% in fiscal 2008 as compared3&iib%
in fiscal 2007. The year-over-year decrease ircéffe tax rate was primarily due to the combinatidrcertain
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statutory tax rate reductions and a favorable aeatttement, offset by the recognition of trangfigcing exposures
and a change to estimates on existing tax positlareddition, there was a negative impact on #xerate in the
prior year due to an additional tax provision f@nisfer pricing exposures in Europe, which effedtivincreased the
prior year's tax rate.

Net Income (Loss)

As a result of the factors described in the prewgdiections of this MD&A, the Company’s net losswa
$1.12 billion, or $7.44 per share, in fiscal 208ampared with net income of $499.1 million, or2§3per share ¢
a diluted basis, in fiscal 2008 and net income3¥31 million, or $2.63 per share on a diluted ®asi fiscal 2007.
Fiscal 2009, 2008 and 2007 results were impactezkhyin items as presented in the following tables

Year Ended June 27, 2009

Operating Pre-tax Net
Income (Loss Income (Loss Income (Loss EPS
(% in thousands, except per share data)
Impairment charge $(1,411,12) $(1,411,12) $(1,376,98) $(9.19
Restructuring, integration and other char (99,349 (99,347 (65,310 (0.43)
Gain on sale of asse — 14,31¢ 8,727 0.0€
Net reduction in tax reserv: — — 21,67: 0.14
Total $(1,510,46) $(1,496,15) $(1,411,89) $(9.3€)
Year Ended June 28, 200:
Operating Pre-tax Net Diluted
Income (Loss Income (Loss Income Loss' EPS
(% in thousands, except per share dat:
Restructuring, integration and other char $ (3894) $ (3894) $ (31,469 $(0.2))
Gain on sale of asse — 49,90: 32,24« 0.21
Debt extinguishment cos — 13,891 0.0¢
Total $ (3894) $ 10,96 $ 14,67 $ 0.0¢
Year Ended June 30, 2007
Operating Pre-tax Net Diluted
Income (Loss Income (Loss Income (Loss EPS
(% in thousands, except per share dat:
Restructuring, integration and other char $ (7,359 $ (7,35) $ (5,289 $(0.09)
Gain on sale of asse — 3,00 1,81« 0.01
Debt extinguishment cos — (27,359 (16,539 (0.17)
Total $ (7,359 $ (31,71) $ (20,019 $(0.13)

Critical Accounting Policies

The Company’s consolidated financial statement lieen prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. The
preparation of these consolidated financial statémeequires the Company to make estimates andnasgisins that
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilitiegenues and expenses during the reporting péftoese estimates
and assumptions are based upon the Company’s aonsrevaluation of historical results and anti@patture
events. Actual results may differ from these estawainder different assumptions or conditions.

The Securities and Exchange Commission defineisariiccounting polices as those that are, in mamagt's
view, most important to the portrayal of the Compariinancial condition and results of operatiomsl dhat
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require significant judgments and estimates. Mamege believes the Company’s most critical accogngialicies
relate to:

Valuation of Receivables

The Company maintains an allowance for doubtfubaots for estimated losses resulting from customer
defaults. Bad debt reserves are recorded basedhigtonic default averages as well as the Comparmgslar
assessment of the financial condition of its cugi@nTherefore, if collection experience or thafiaial condition ¢
specific customers were to deteriorate, managemeuld evaluate whether additional allowances and
corresponding charges to the consolidated stateofi@merations are required.

Valuation of Inventories

Inventories are recorded at the lower of costt(firs— first out) or estimated market value. Then@any’s
inventories include high-technology components, edded systems and computing technologies soldapidly
changing, cyclical and competitive markets whegeioh inventories may be subject to early techno#dgi
obsolescence.

The Company regularly evaluates inventories foesgcobsolescence or other factors that may render
inventories less marketable. Wridewns are recorded so that inventories reflecafigroximate net realizable val
and take into account the Compaggbntractual provisions with its suppliers, whinhy provide certain protectio
to the Company for product obsolescence and prasian in the form of rights of return and pricefaction.
Because of the large number of transactions anddhmplexity of managing the process around pricégutions
and stock rotations, estimates are made regardijpgtanents to the carrying amount of inventorieddifionally,
assumptions about future demand, market condiiodsdecisions to discontinue certain product lzeesimpact
the decision to write down inventories. If assumipsi about future demand change or actual markelitimms are
less favorable than those projected by managememagement would evaluate whether additional vetiens of
inventories are required. In any case, actual wahoeld be different from those estimated.

Accounting for Income Taxes

Management judgment is required in determiningpfoerision for income taxes, deferred tax assets and
liabilities and the valuation allowance recordediagt net deferred tax assets. The carrying vditieeoCompany’s
net operating loss carry-forwards is dependent ujsaability to generate sufficient future taxabieome in certain
tax jurisdictions. In addition, the Company considiistoric levels of income, expectations and as&ociated with
estimates of future taxable income and ongoing@mtidnd feasible tax planning strategies in agsgsstax
valuation allowance. Should the Company deternfiagit is not able to realize all or part of itdafeed tax assets
in the future, an additional valuation allowanceyrba recorded against the deferred tax assetsangthresponding
charge to income in the period such determinaganade.

The Company establishes reserves for potentialiguamable outcomes of positions taken on certain ta
matters. These reserves are based on managenssg&sment of whether a tax benefit is more likedy tnot to be
sustained upon examination by tax authorities. &negaly be differences between the anticipated atuglac
outcomes of these matters that may result in raleos reserves or additional tax liabilities ircexs of the reserv
amounts. To the extent such adjustments are wadatlite Companyg’ effective tax rate may potentially fluctuate
a result.

In determining the Company’s effective tax ratepagement considers current tax regulations in timeanous
jurisdictions in which it operates, and requiresyagemer’'s judgment for interpretation and application. Giestc
such tax regulations or disagreements with the Gayig interpretation or application by tax authestin any of
the Company’s major jurisdictions may have a sigaift impact on the Company’s provision for incotaees.
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Restructuring, Integration and Impairment Charge

The Company has been subject to the financial itnpfaiategrating acquired businesses and chardatecdeto
business reorganizations. In connection with sweimes, management is required to make estimatag &
financial impact of such matters that are inheyeuticertain. Accrued liabilities and reserves atalgished to cov:
the cost of severance, facility consolidation alodure, lease termination fees, inventory adjustmbased upon
acquisition-related termination of supplier agreatae@nd/or the re-evaluation of the acquired waldiapital assets
(inventory and accounts receivable), and write-dafvather acquired assets including goodwill. Atmounts
incurred could be different from those estimated.

Additionally, in assessing the Company’s goodwill impairment the Company is required to make $iicamt
assumptions about the future cash flows and oveeafbrmance of its reporting units. The Compangl$® require
to make judgments regarding the evaluation of charig events or circumstances that would moreyliken not
reduce the fair value of any of its reporting uigdow its carrying value, the results of which Webdetermine
whether an interim test must be performed. Shchddeé assumptions or judgments change in the fbased upon
market conditions or should the structure of then@any’s reporting units change based upon chamgegsiness
strategy, the Company may be required to recordiaddl impairment charges to its remaining gootlvee
Impairment Chargein this MD&A for further discussion of the Compasyévaluation of goodwill impairment in
fiscal 2009.

Contingencies and Litigation

From time to time, the Company may become liabkl wéspect to pending and threatened litigatian, ta
environmental and other matters. Management doesmicipate that any contingent matters will havaaterial
adverse impact on the Company'’s financial condjtiiguidity or results of operations.

Revenue Recognition

The Company does not consider revenue recognititse ta critical accounting policy due to the natfrés
business in which revenues are generally recogmidesh persuasive evidence of an arrangement edigtgery ha
occurred or services have been rendered, the madesis fixed or determinable and collectibili/rieasonably
assured. Generally, these criteria are met upoadhel shipment of product to the customer. Acicaylgt, other
than for estimates related to possible returngadycts from customers, discounts or rebates gberding of
revenue does not require significant judgmentstimates. Provisions for returns are estimateddaséhistorical
sales returns, credit memo analysis and other krfawtors. Provisions are made for discounts andtesh which
are primarily volume-based, and are generally basdistorical trends and anticipated customer fmipiatterns.
Finally, revenues from maintenance contracts, whrehdeferred and recognized in income over teedlithe
agreement, are not material to the consolidatadtsesf operations of the Company.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
See Note 1 in thBlotes to Consolidated Financial Statemetstained in Item 15 of this Report for the
discussion of recently issued accounting pronouecesn
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash Flows
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

During fiscal 2009, the Company generated $1.1obilbf cash from operating activities as comparét w
$453.6 million in fiscal 2008. These results armpased of: (1) cash flow generated from net incaxeuding
non-cash and other reconciling items, which inctutthee addback of depreciation and amortization, deferredine
taxes, stock-based compensation, non-cash impdircharges, gain on sale of assets, and other reinizans
(primarily the provision for doubtful accounts goeriodic pension costs) and (2) cash flow generfited a
reduction of working capital, excluding cash andlcaquivalents. Cash generated from working cagitehg fisca
2009 was the result of $709.9 million in collectioireceivables, a $483.5 million reduction in int@y;
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both of which were partially offset by $375.5 nathi of payments on accounts payable. Although ratdévdays
have increased three days as compared with theyméw, the Company has not experienced any sigmifichange
in delinquencies. Although management expects mirmoe to generate cash from operating activittedpes not
anticipate generating the levels of cash flow edguexed in fiscal 2009, primarily because workingita velocity is
at appropriate levels for the business (5.9 timiékeaend of June) and revenues appear to beistadil

During fiscal 2008, the Company generated $453I6omiof cash from its operating activities as cargu
with $724.6 million in fiscal 2007. These resulte aomprised of: (1) cash flow generated from nebime
excluding non-cash and other reconciling items chitionsist of the add-back of depreciation and &nation,
deferred income taxes, stock-based compensationpgaale of assets and other non-cash items gpiinthe
provision for doubtful accounts and periodic pensiosts) and (2) cash flow generated from (usedaorking
capital, excluding cash and cash equivalents. Tév&ing capital outflow in fiscal 2008 was driven bgsh
payments on accounts payable ($123.3 million) @hdratems ($170.7 million), partially offset bylsztion of
receivables and a reduction in inventory. The aagflow for payables was primarily attributableT8 and the cash
outflow for other items was primarily a result aEome tax payments.

During fiscal 2007, the Company generated $72416omiof cash from its operating activities of whic
$126.2 million was generated from working capiéaicluding cash and cash equivalents. TS experiegrauath in
receivables as well as payables driven, in parthbyacquisition of the Access business for whitghlargest
supplier is Sun Microsystems whose strongest quisrtgpically its June fiscal year end. The redutin inventory
was a net result of EM’s decrease of $74 milliortiplly offset by a small increase in inventoryT&. In addition,
during fiscal 2007, the Company paid $29.7 millassociated with the restructuring, integration athetr charges
and exit-related costs accrued through purchassuatiog.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

During fiscal 2009, the Company utilized cash o®d&48 million related to net repayments of notes laaugk
credit facilities, $300 million of which related the extinguishment of the 2% Convertible Seniob&weures due
March 15, 2034 (the “Debenturesifi. March 2009, $298.1 million of the Debentures evput back to the Compa
and the remaining $1.9 million was repaid in A@OI09. As a result of the substantial cash generdtam
operating activities during the fiscal year, then@pany was able to use cash on hand to settle @ B8lion of
Debentures’ principal plus accrued interest. Indi2008 and 2007, the Company used $41.9 millih a
$35.6 million, respectively, of cash for net dedppayments. During fiscal 2007, the Company issB&DP million
of 6.625% Notes due September 15, 2016 and $30lliomof 5.875% Notes due March 15, 2014. The net
proceeds of $593.2 million from both issuances wsed to repay existing debt. Other financing &, net, in
fiscal 2009, 2008 and 2007 were primarily a restittash received for the exercise of stock optams the
associated excess tax benefit.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

The Company used $314.9 million of cash relateattyuisitions during fiscal 2009. The Company also
received $14.3 million in proceeds related to eauhprovisions associated with the prior sale ef@ompany’s
equity investment (selResults of Operations — Gain on Sale of Assetg)ddition, the Company utilized
$110.2 million of cash for capital expendituresatetl to system development costs, computer hardavetsoftwar
as well as expenditures related to warehouse aatisin costs.

The Company’s cash flows associated with invesdittiyities during fiscal 2008 were related primati
payments for acquired businesses which totaled.43@8lion. In addition, the Company received preds of
$68.6 million related to the gain on sale of assetonnection with the sale of the Compangtuity investment al
the receipt of contingent purchase price proce®tiger investing activities included capital expéudis primarily
for system development costs, computer hardwaresafteare.

For fiscal 2007, the Company’s cash flows assodiafti¢éh investing activities included capital expéunckes
related to system development costs, computer reaedand software expenditures as well as certasel®ld
improvement costs. Also included in cash flows frionesting activities is cash used for the acqisibf Access,
Azure and a small distributor business in Italyt, afecontingent purchase price proceeds received.
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Capital Structure

The Company uses a variety of financing arrangesyéath short-term and long-term, to fund its opens.
The Company also uses diversified sources of fungmthat it does not become overly dependent ersoarce ar
to achieve lower cost of funding through theseedéht alternatives. These financing arrangementsde public
bonds, short-term and long-term bank loans ancceousts receivable securitization program. Fortaitel
description of the Company’s external financinggagements outstanding at June 27, 2009, refer te Nto the
consolidated financial statements appearing in t&nof this Report.

The following table summarizes the Company’s chgitaicture as of the end of fiscal 2009 with a panison
with the end of fiscal 2008:

June 27, % of Total June 28, % of Total
2009 Capitalization 2008 Capitalization
(Dollars in thousands)

Shor-term debr $ 23,29 0.6% $ 43,80« 0.8%
Long-term deb 946,57. 25.4 1,181,49 22.1
Total debt 969,86 26.C 1,225,30. 22.€
Shareholder equity 2,760,85 74.C 4,134,69. 77.1
Total capitalizatior $3,730,72. 100.( $5,359,99. 100.C

Financing Transactions

The Company has a five-year $500.0 million unsetuesolving credit facility (the “Credit Agreementiith a
syndicate of banks which expires in September 20b2er the Credit Agreement, the Company may éeot
various interest rate options, currencies and ritagsir As of the end of fiscal 2009, there were .$88illion in
borrowings outstanding under the Credit Agreemeciuded in “other long-term debt” in the consolehfinancial
statements. In addition, there were $1.5 milliofeiters of credit issued under the Credit Agreemérich represel
a utilization of the Credit Agreement capacity bte not recorded in the consolidated balance stsette letters of
credit are not debt. As of the end of fiscal 2008ye were $19.7 million in borrowings outstandamgl
$24.3 million in letters of credit issued under @wedit Agreement.

The Company has an accounts receivable secumtizptogram (the “Securitization Program”) with agp of
financial institutions that allows the Company &il,son a revolving basis, an undivided interestipfto
$450.0 million in eligible receivables while retaig a subordinated interest in a portion of thesheables. The
Securitization Program does not qualify for salecanting and has a one year term that expires gusi2009
which has been renewed for another year on comleatetms, except for an increase in facility anddwing costs
to reflect current market conditions; however, itiease will not have a material impact on the @any’s
consolidated financial statements. There were mmldngs outstanding under the Securitization Paogat
June 27, 2009.

During fiscal 2009, substantially all of the $30@n@lion 2% Convertible Senior Debentures due Matéh
2034 were put to the Company by holders of the Delves who exercised their right to require the @any to
purchase the Debentures for cash on March 15, @00 Debentures’ full principal amount plus aecrand
unpaid interest. The Company paid $298.1 milliamsgiccrued interest using cash on hand. The remgaini
$1.9 million of the Debentures that were not puthi® Company in March were repaid on April 30, 2009

Other notes outstanding as of the end of fiscaBZihsisted of:
+ $300.0 million of 5.875% Notes due March 15, 2(

+ $250.0 million of 6.00% Notes due September 1, Z
 $300.0 million of 6.625% Notes due September 156:

In addition to its primary financing arrangemertse Company has several small lines of credit nous
locations to fund the short-term working capitaleign exchange, overdraft and letter of credidsesf its wholly
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owned subsidiaries in Europe, Asia and Canada. tyeeerally guarantees its subsidiaries’ debt utitese
facilities.

Covenants and Conditions

The Securitization Program discussed previouslyireq the Company to maintain certain minimum iesér
coverage and leverage ratios as defined in theitGkgdeement (see discussion below) in order taticoe utilizing
the Securitization Program. The Securitization Paogalso contains certain covenants relating tajtiadity of the
receivables sold. If these conditions are not thetCompany may not be able to borrow any additimals and
the financial institutions may consider this an atization event, as defined in the agreement, whiohld permit
the financial institutions to liquidate the accaurgceivables sold to cover any outstanding borrgsi
Circumstances that could affect the Company’s tghtii meet the required covenants and conditiortbef
Securitization Program include the Company’s ongagrofitability and various other economic, maraat
industry factors. Management does not believettietovenants under the Securitization Progrant timei
Company’s ability to pursue its intended busindsstesyy or future financing needs. The Company was
compliance with all covenants of the SecuritizafRyogram at June 27, 2009.

The Credit Agreement discussedHimancing Transactionsontains certain covenants with various limitations
on debt incurrence, dividends, investments andalagxpenditures and also includes financial com&eequiring
the Company to maintain minimum interest coveragklaverage ratios, as defined. Management doelsatiete
that the covenants in the Credit Agreement limét@ompany’s ability to pursue its intended busirstssegy or
future financing needs. The Company was in compéanith all covenants of the Credit Agreement agusfe 27,
20009.

SeelLiquidity below for further discussion of the Company’s aaaility under these various facilities.
Liquidity

The Company had total borrowing capacity of $950illion at June 27, 2009 under the Credit Agreenzertt
the Securitization Program. There were $86.6 mmlllmborrowings outstanding and $1.5 million intées$ of credit

issued under the Credit Agreement resulting in $B6dillion of net availability at the end of fiscaD09. The
Company also had $943.9 million of cash and casfvalgnts at June 27, 2009.

During fiscal 2009, the Company utilized approxieiat$314.9 million of cash and cash equivalentsofe
cash acquired, for acquisitions. Although the merkave continued to be challenging, the Compapg&s to
continue to make strategic investments throughiaitaun activity to the extent the investments sghen Avnet's
competitive position and meet management’s retaroapital thresholds.

The Company has no other significant financial catrmants outside of normal debt and lease maturities
discussed iCapital Structure and Contractual Obligatioridanagement believes that Avnet’s borrowing capacity
its current cash availability and the Company’semtpd ability to generate operating cash flowssafécient to
meet its projected financing needs. GenerallyGbmpany is more likely to utilize operating cashwis for working
capital requirements during a high growth periothie electronic component and computer productssimg.
During fiscal 2009, the Company experienced wealgdemand, as previously discussed in this MD&A] &n
combination with the Company’s continued focus @anaging working capital, the Company generated Billian
of cash from operating activities during fiscal 200he substantial cash generation allowed the Gomfo use
cash on hand to purchase the $300.0 million 2% Bieloes in March and April 2009. Although management
expects to continue to generate cash from operattigities, it does not expect to continue to gatethe levels of
cash from operating activities that were generdtethg fiscal 2009 because revenues seem to bdiztapand
working capital velocity is at appropriate levekpected for the business.
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The following table highlights the Company’s ligitidand related ratios for the past two years:

COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS — LIQUIDITY

Years Ended

June 27, June 28, Percentage
2009 2008 Change
(Dollars in millions)
Current Asset $5,144.0  $5,971.. (13.9%
Quick Assets 3,732. 4,007.¢ (6.9
Current Liabilities 2,455.¢ 2,779.¢ (11.¢
Working Capital(1 2,688.« 3,191t (15.9)
Total Debt 969.¢ 1,225.¢ (20.¢)
Total Capital (total debt plus total sharehol’ equity) 3,730." 5,360.( (30.9
Quick Ratio 1.5:1 1.4:1
Working Capital Ratic 2.1:1 2.1:1
Debt to Total Capite 26.(% 22.%%

(1) This calculation of working capital is defined asrent assets less current liabiliti

The Company’s quick assets (consisting of cashcast equivalents and receivables) decreased 6396 fr
June 28, 2008 to June 27, 2009 primarily due ta¢daction of receivables. Current assets declirge8% due to
the collection of receivables and a decline in imwey, partially offset by cash and cash equivaewihich increased
$303.5 million to $943.9 million at the end of #8@009. Current liabilities declined 11.6% prinhadue to
payments of accounts payable which is consistetfit tive decline in inventory levels. As a resultte# factors note
above, total working capital decreased by 15.8%nduiscal 2009. Total debt decreased by 20.8%esihe end of
fiscal 2008 primarily due to the extinguishmen®800.0 million of the 2% Debentures. Total capitatreased
30.4% since the end of fiscal 2008 and the debapital ratio increased to 26.0% primarily as alltesf the non-
cash impairment charges recognized in fiscal 2@08iscussed previously in this MD&A.

Long-Term Contractual Obligations

The Company has the following contractual obligadioutstanding as of June 27, 2009 (in millions):

Due in Less Due in Due in Due After
Total Than 1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years 5 Years

Long-term debt, including amounts due within onar
(1) $972.2  $ 23 $ 31 $395Ef $ 550.
Operating lease $265.. $ 772 $1021 $ 54t $ 31t

(1) Excludes discount on lo-term notes

At June 27, 2009, the Company had a liability faxame tax contingencies (or unrecognized tax bexeff
$135.9 million which is not included in the aboable. Cash payments associated with the remairghiity canno
reasonably be estimated as it is difficult to eat@rthe timing and amount of tax settlements. Thm@any does nc
currently have any material commitments for captedenditures.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MagkRisk

The Company seeks to reduce earnings and caslvdllatility associated with changes in interestsaad
foreign currency exchange rates by entering imtarfcial arrangements, from time to time, whichiatended to
provide a hedge against all or a portion of thkesrizssociated with such volatility. The Companyticares to have
exposure to such risks to the extent they are edgéd.
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The following table sets forth the scheduled mégsiof the Company’s debt outstanding at Jun@@9
(dollars in millions):

Fiscal Year

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 Thereatfter Total
Liabilities:
Fixed rate debt(1 $21 $1¢ $1.2 $11 $301.z $550.0 $857.¢
Floating rate dek $21z2 $— $— $93z2 $ — $ — $114¢

(1) Excludes discounts on lo-term notes

The following table sets forth the carrying valuel dair value of the Company’s debt at June 27 92@0llars

in millions):

Carrying Value at Fair Value at Carrying Value at Fair Value at

June 27, 2009 June 27, 200 June 28, 2008 June 28, 200

Liabilities:
Fixed rate debt(1 $ 857.¢ $ 8066 % 1,166. $ 1,145:!
Average interest rai 6.2% 5.1%
Floating rate det $ 114.¢ $ 1142 $ 61.: $ 61.2
Average interest rai 0.S% 2.5%

(1) Excludes discounts and premiums on -term notes

Many of the Company’s subsidiaries, on occasiongipase and sell products in currencies other thein t
functional currencies. This subjects the Comparthéorisks associated with fluctuations in foreagmrency
exchange rates. The Company reduces this riskiliging natural hedging (offsetting receivables grayables) as
well as by creating offsetting positions through tise of derivative financial instruments, primafdrward foreign
exchange contracts with maturities of less thaty slays. The Company continues to have exposui@émn
currency risks to the extent they are not hedgbd. Company adjusts all foreign denominated balaandsany
outstanding foreign exchange contracts to fair miavilue through the consolidated statements afatipes.
Therefore, the market risk related to foreign exgjeacontracts is offset by changes in valuatiotihefunderlying
items being hedged. The asset or liability repriasgrihe fair value of foreign exchange contrastslassified in the
captions “other current assets” or “accrued expeaseé other,” as applicable, in the accompanyingalidated
balance sheets. A hypothetical 10% change in cayrerchange rates under the contracts outstandihgne 27,
2009 would result in an increase or decrease afappately $6.3 million to the fair value of therfeard foreign
exchange contracts, which would generally be offgetin opposite effect on the related hedged jpositi

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary D¢

The financial statements and supplementary dathsted under Item 15 of this Report.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcénting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedure

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, including its Chief ExgelOfficer and Chief Financial Officer, have avaled
the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure odmtind procedures (as such term is defined in
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the SecuBtiebange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”)) as af &nd of the
reporting period covered by this Annual Report onnfr 10-K. Based on such evaluation, the Chief Etteeu
Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concludbdt, as of the end of the period covered by thiawal Report
on Form 10-K, the Company’s disclosure controls prutedures are effective such that material inédiom
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required to be disclosed by the Company in thentspibat it files or submits under the Exchangei8ctcorded,
processed, summarized and reported, within the pieniods specified by the Securities and Exchangar@issions
rules and forms and is accumulated and communit¢ateginagement, including the Company’s principaiceitive
officer and principal financial officer, as appr@gte to allow timely decisions regarding requirésctbsure.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009, there &vap changes to the Company'’s internal control éimancial
reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15¢f)the Exchange Act) that have materially affectadare reasonably likely
materially affect, the Company’s internal contrekofinancial reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

The Company’s management, including its Chief ExgewOfficer and Chief Financial Officer, is ressille
for establishing and maintaining adequate intecoatrol over financial reporting as defined in Rul8a-15(f) and
15(d)-15(f) under the Exchange Act. The Companytsrnal control over financial reporting is desidrne provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilitynaficial reporting and the preparation of finansiatements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles in the United StateAmirica.
Because of inherent limitations, internal contretofinancial reporting may not prevent or detettstatements.
Also, controls may become inadequate because ofesan conditions, or the degree of compliancé e
policies or procedures may deteriorate. Managemw@mducted an evaluation of the effectiveness ofbmpany’s
internal control over financial reporting as of 8u&v, 2009. In making this assessment, managersedttbe
framework established imternal Control — Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission and catedithat the Company maintained effective intecoatrol
over financial reporting as of June 27, 2009.

The Companys independent registered public accounting firmMGPLLP, has audited the effectiveness of
Company’s internal controls over financial repagtas of June 27, 2009, as stated in its audit tegach is
included herein.

Item 9B. Other Information

Not applicable.
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PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govente

The information called for by Item 10 is incorpamitn this Report by reference to the Company’iafe
proxy statement relating to the Annual Meeting tfcRholders anticipated to be held on Novembe0B92

Item 11. Executive Compensatio

The information called for by Item 11 is incorpamaitn this Report by reference to the Company’'dafe
proxy statement relating to the Annual Meeting tfcRholders anticipated to be held on Novembe0B92

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners ahMbBnagement and Related Stockholder Matters

The information called for by Item 12 is incorpamin this Report by reference to the Company’initafe
proxy statement relating to the Annual Meeting tfcRholders anticipated to be held on Novembe0B92

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, aditector Independence

The information called for by Item 13 is incorpamain this Report by reference to the Company’initafe
proxy statement relating to the Annual Meeting tfcRholders anticipated to be held on Novembel0592

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Servict

The information called for by Item 14 is incorpamwin this Report by reference to the Company’initafe
proxy statement relating to the Annual Meeting tfcRholders anticipated to be held on Novembel0592
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedul

a. The following documents are filed as part of tReport:

_Page
1. Consolidated Financial Statemer
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfinm 39
Avnet, Inc. and Subsidiaries Consolidated Finar8tatements
Consolidated Balance Sheets at June 27, 2009 usued28, 200! 41
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yeaded June 27, 2009, June 28, 2008 and
June 30, 200 42
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equityiferyears ended June 27, 2009, June 28,
2008 and June 28, 20 43
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeraded June 27, 2009, June 28, 2008 and
June 28, 200 44
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme 45

2. Financial Statement Schedul
Schedule Il (Valuation and Qualifying Accounts) fbe years ended June 27, 2009, June 28, 2008 and
June 30, 200 77
Schedules other than that above have been omitealibe they are not applicable or the required
information is shown in the financial statementsotes theret
3.  Exhibits— The exhibit index for this Report can be found ag¢s 78 to 82
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyidthas
duly caused this Report to be signed on its bdhathe undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

AVNET, INC.
(Registrant)

By: /s/ ROY VALLEE

Roy Vallee,
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive
Officer and Director

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each persoroaf signature appears below hereby authorizes
and appoints each of Roy Vallee and Raymond Saddwsskr her attorneys-in-fact, for him or her imyaand all
capacities, to sign any amendments to this Regod to file the same, with exhibits thereto, arttbotdlocuments in
connection therewith, with the Securities and ExgfgaCommission, hereby ratifying and confirmingthdt said
attorneys-in-fact, or their substitute, may do ause to be done by virtue hereof.

Date: August 25, 2009

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this Report has been signed bbipothe
following persons on behalf of the Registrant amthie capacities indicated on August 25, 2009.

Signature Title
/s/ ROY VALLEE Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer didector
Roy Vallee
/s/ ELEANOR BAUM Director

Eleanor Baun

/sl J. VERONICA BIGGINS Director
J. Veronica Biggin:

/s/ LAWRENCE W. CLARKSON Director
Lawrence W. Clarkso

/sl EHUD HOUMINER Director
Ehud Houmine

/s/ FRANK R. NOONAN Director
Frank R. Noonau

Is/ RAY M. ROBINSON Director
Ray M. Robinsor

/s/ WILLIAM P. SULLIVAN Director
William P. Sullivan
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Signature

/sl GARY L. TOOKER

Gary L. Tookel

/s/ RAYMOND SADOWSKI

Raymond Sadowsl|

Title

Director

Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer @réhcipal
Accounting Officer
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Avnet, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Avnet, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Gy
as of June 27, 2009 and June 28, 2008, and thedalansolidated statements of operations, shatef®lequity,
and cash flows for each of the years in the thesa-period ended June 27, 2009. In connectionavithaudits of
the consolidated financial statements, we havealsiited the financial statement schedule for edi¢the years in
the three-year period ended June 27, 2009, ad listihe accompanying index. We also have audiiedompanys
internal control over financial reporting as of 8u2v, 2009, based on criteria establisheldt@rnal Control —
Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission (COS!
The Company’s management is responsible for thessotidated financial statements, for maintainifigative
internal control over financial reporting, and ftr assessment of the effectiveness of internarcebaver financial
reporting, included in the accompanyil@nagement’s Report on Internal Control over Finah&eporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesgsotidated financial statements and an opiniorhenGompany’s
internal control over financial reporting basedoam audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting Oversighargio
(United States). Those standards require that e g@hd perform the audits to obtain reasonablea@ssa about
whether the financial statements are free of matarisstatement and whether effective internal mbmtver
financial reporting was maintained in all materedpects. Our audits of the consolidated finarstatements
included examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgahe amounts and disclosures in the finarstaiements,
assessing the accounting principles used and &ignifestimates made by management, and evaluagngverall
financial statement presentation. Our audit ofrimaécontrol over financial reporting included dbtag an
understanding of internal control over financiglagiing, assessing the risk that a material weakegssts, and
testing and evaluating the design and operatirgctfifeness of internal control based on the asdetsde Our audi
also included performing such other procedureseasamsidered necessary in the circumstances. Visvbehat ou
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesass
regarding the reliability of financial reportingathe preparation of financial statements for exaepurposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipfeee A company’s internal control over finanaiaporting
includes those policies and procedures that (Iajpeto the maintenance of records that, in reasiendetail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions disghositions of the assets of the company; (2) idmveasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as ngctsparmit preparation of financial statementa@cordance wit
generally accepted accounting principles, andréwipts and expenditures of the company are beadg only in
accordance with authorizations of management amdtdis of the company; and (3) provide reasonatdeirance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauitted acquisition, use, or disposition of the comps assets that
could have a material effect on the financial stegets.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or dete
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluatibeffectiveness to future periods are subjecheorisk that
controls may become inadequate because of chamgesdlitions, or that the degree of compliance wWithpolicies
or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaeaferred to above present fairly, in all matenéspects, the
financial position of Avnet, Inc. and subsidiarasof June 27, 2009 and June 28, 2008, and thitsre$their
operations and their cash flows for each of thes/eathe thregrear period ended June 27, 2009, in conformity
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Adsour opinion, the related financial statemefitesiule for each
of the years in the three-year period ended Jupn2@®, when considered in relation to the basisobdated
financial statement taken as a whole, presenty fairall material respects, the information s&thi therein.
Furthermore, in our opinion, Avnet, Inc. maintaingdall material respects, effective internal ecohover financial
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reporting as of June 27, 2009, based on critetabbshed innternal Control — Integrated Framewoissued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of thea@ltvay Commission.

As discussed in Note 9 to the consolidated findrst&ements, on July 1, 2007, the Company addped
provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Bdatdrpretation No. 48Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes — an interpretation of FASB Statement No. Ni® 48,Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109

/sl KPMG LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
August 24, 2009
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

June 27, June 28,
2009 2008
(Thousands, except shar
amounts)
ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivale $ 943,92: $ 640,44¢
Receivables, less allowances of $85,477 and $76r69pectively (Note = 2,618,69  3,367,44.
Inventories 1,411,75! 1,894,49:
Prepaid and other current ass 169,87 68,76:
Total current asse 5,144,25; 5,971,14
Property, plant and equipment, net (Nott 305,68: 227,18
Goodwill (Notes 2 and € 550,11¢  1,728,90:
Other asset 273,46¢ 272,89:
Total asset $6,273,511  $8,200,13!
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Borrowings due within one year (Note $ 2329¢ $ 43,80¢
Accounts payabl 1,957,99.  2,293,24.
Accrued expenses and other (Not¢ 474,57 442 54!
Total current liabilities 2,455,861  2,779,59:
Long-term debt, less due within one year (Not 946,57. 1,181,499
Other lon¢-term liabilities (Note 9 and 1( 110,22t 104,34¢
Total liabilities 3,512,65!  4,065,43!
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 11 anc
Shareholder equity (Notes 4, 12 and 1«
Common stock $1.00 par; authorized 300,000,00Csh#&ssued 151,099,000 share
and 150,417,000 shares, respecti 151,09¢ 150,41
Additional paic-in capital 1,135,33.  1,122,85:
Retained earninc 1,257,26.  2,379,72:
Accumulated other comprehensive income (Not 218,09: 482,17¢
Treasury stock at cost, 32,306 shares and 18,28@slrespectivel (931) (479
Total shareholde’ equity 2,760,85  4,134,69.
Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity $6,273,511  $8,200,13!

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Sales
Cost of sale!

Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative exper
Impairment charges (Note

Restructuring, integration and other charges (NGl
Operating income (lost

Other income (expense), r

Interest expens

Gain on sale of assets (Note 2 an

Debt extinguishment costs (Note

Income (loss) before income tax
Income tax provision (Note ¢

Net income (loss

Net earnings (loss) per share (Note :
Basic

Diluted

Shares used to compute earnings (loss) per shate ():

Basic
Diluted

Years Ended
June 27, June 28, June 30,
2009 2008 2007
(Thousands, except per share amount:

$16,229,89 $17,952,70 $15,681,08

14,206,90 15,638,99  13,632,46
2,022,99. 2,313,711  2,048,61!
1,531,81.  1,564,39.  1,362,99:
1,411,12 — _

99,34: 38,94: 7,35¢
(1,019,28) 710,38: 678,27:
(11,629 20,95¢ 9,87¢
(66,48 (72,289 (77,179
14,31 49,90: 3,00(

— — (27,359
(1,083,07) 708,95! 586,61

39,38¢ 209,87+ 193,55:
$(1,122,46) $ 499,08. $ 393,06

$ (749 $ 3.3 $ 2.6¢
$ (744 $ 327 $ 2.6°

150,89¢ 150,25( 148,03:
150,89t 152,42( 149,61

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS'’ EQUITY
Years Ended June 27, 2009, June 28, 2008 and Jurte 3007

Balance at July 1, 20C

Net income

Translation adjustments (Note

Pension liability adjustment, net of tax of
$4,181(Notes 4, 10 and 1

Comprehensive income (Note

Stock option and incentive programs,
including related tax benefits of $15,5

Balance, June 30, 200

Net income

Translation adjustments (Note

Pension liability adjustment, net of tax of
$10,901 (Notes 4, 10 and 1

Comprehensive income (Note

Stock option and incentive programs,
including related tax benefits of $3,8

Balance, June 28, 200

Net loss

Translation adjustments (Note

Pension liability adjustment, net of tax of
$16,767 (Notes 4, 10 and 1

Comprehensive loss (Note

Stock option and incentive programs,
including related tax benefits of $6

Balance, June 27, 200

Accumulated

Additional Other Total
Common Paid-In Retained Comprehensive Treasury Shareholders
Stock Capital Earnings Income Stock Equity

(Thousands)
146,66 $1,010,331 $ 1,487,57' $ 186,87t $ (271) $ 2,831,18:
393,06° — — 393,06°
— — — 83,09« — 83,09«

6,53¢ 6,53¢

482,70(

3,15¢ 83,87 — — (27) 86,76:

149,82¢ 1,094,211 1,880,64. 276,50¢
— — 499,08:

(542) 3,400,64
—  — 499,08
222555. — 22255

— (16,88
704,75(

(16,887)

591 28,64: — — 63 29,29¢

150,41 1,122,85 2,379,72.  482,17¢ (47S) 4,134,609
— — (1,122,46) — — (1,122,46)
(237,90) —  (237,90)

— _ (26,18)
(1,386,541)

682 12,48: — — (452 12,71

(26,187)

151,09¢ $1,135,33: $ 1,257,26: $ 218,09: $ (931) $ 2,760,85

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended

June 27, June 28, June 30,
2009 2008 2007
(Thousands)
Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income (loss $(1,122,46) $499,08. $ 393,06
Non-cash and other reconciling iten
Depreciation and amortizatic 66,07: 59,23: 53,77
Deferred income taxes (Note (88,149 107,14t 99,60+
Stoclk-based compensation (Note : 18,26¢ 25,38¢ 24,25(
Impairment charges (Note 1,411,12 — —
Gain on sale of assets, net (Note 2 an (14,319 (49,909 (3,000
Other, net (Note 1t 38,41« 24,19: 30,74
Changes in (net of effects from business acqurss)ic
Receivable! 709,90¢ 46,10C  (129,35)
Inventories 483,45; 36,45 53,67¢
Accounts payabl (375,509 (123,34)  262,19:
Accrued expenses and other, (8,776 (170,729 (60,327
Net cash flows provided by operating activi 1,118,03! 453,61 724,63¢
Cash flows from financing activitie
Issuance of notes in public offerings, net of issgacosts (Note i — — 593,16¢
Repayment of notes (Note (300,000 — (505,03
Repayment of bank debt, net (Note (90,44¢) (22,428 (122,999
Repayment of other debt, net (Note (16,367 (19,500 (780)
Other, net (Note 12 1,564 8,881 69,517
Net cash flows (used for) provided by financing\aties (405,24) (33,04) 33,865
Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchases of property, plant and equipn (110,219 (89,657 (58,787
Cash proceeds from sales of property, plant anghptgnt 13,157 12,06: 2,774
Acquisitions of operations, net of cash acquiredté\2) (314,94) (369,38Y) (433,23)
Cash proceeds from divestiture activities (Not 14,31¢ 68,60 3,44¢
Net cash flows used for investing activit (397,68) (378,38() (485,799
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casvadmnts (11,637 40,90¢ 7,92¢
Cash and cash equivaler
— increase 303,47: 83,09¢ 280,63
— at beginning of yee 640,44¢ 557,35( 276,71:
— at end of yea $ 94392. $640,44¢ $557,35(

Additional cash flow information (Note 1!
See notes to consolidated financial statements
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of significant accounting policies

Principles of consolidation— The accompanying consolidated financial statémclude the accounts of the
Company and all of its majority-owned and contrlibsidiaries. All intercompany accounts and tiatisns have
been eliminated.

During fiscal 2007, the Company reviewed its methbrecording revenue related to sales of supgkevice
contracts and now classifies such contracts ort eemenue basis. S&evenue Recognitian this Note 1 for furthe
discussion.

Cash and cash equivalents- The Company considers all highly liquid investmausith an original maturity ¢
three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Inventories — Inventories, comprised principally of finishedagls, are stated at cost (first-in, first-out) or
market, whichever is lower.

Investments— Investments in joint ventures and entities iricliithe Company has an ownership interest
greater than 50% and exercises control over theuxelre consolidated in the accompanying congelitiinancial
statements. Minority interests in the years presbraf which amounts are not material, are includetie caption
“accrued expenses and other” in the accompanyingatiwlated balance sheets. Investments in jointuves and
entities in which the Company exercises signifigafitence but not control are accounted for usheyequity
method. The Company invests from time to time intuees in which the Company’s ownership interestss than
20% and over which the Company does not exeraiggfisiant influence. Such investments are accoufaednder
the cost method. The fair values for investmentdnadled on a quoted exchange are estimated basecdtiue
historical performance of the ventures, the versui@ecasted financial performance and managermevgluation
of the venturesviability and business models. To the extent thekbalue of an investment exceeds its assesse
value, the Company will record an appropriate immpaint charge. Thus, the carrying value of the Caomisa
investments approximates fair value.

Depreciation and amortizatior— Depreciation and amortization is generally pded for by the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the as3die estimated useful lives for depreciation amdrtization are
typically as follows: buildings — 30 years; machipdixtures and equipment — 2-10 years; and leakeh
improvements — over the applicable remaining léasa or useful life if shorter.

Long-lived assets— Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairmenemndwver events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amouthefassets may not be recoverable. An impairmeetizgnized
when the estimated undiscounted cash flows expéotexbult from the use of the asset and its e lisposition
is less than its carrying amount. An impairmemh&sasured as the amount by which an asset’s netuziok
exceeds its estimated fair value. The Company coaliy evaluates the carrying value and the remgieiconomic
useful life of all long-lived assets and will adjtise carrying value and the related depreciatimhamortization
period if and when appropriate. As a result ofgbedwill impairment charges recognized in fiscad2(see
Note 6), the Company evaluated the recoverabifiiysdonc-lived assets at each of the reporting units where
goodwill was deemed to be impaired. Based uponetéduation, the Company determined that certaitsof
amortizable intangible assets were impaired andgreized a non-cash intangible asset impairmenigehai
$31,393,000 million pre- and after tax and $0.2dgbere in fiscal 2009.

Goodwill — Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase pver the fair value of net assets acquired.
Annual tests for goodwill impairment are perfornigdapplying a fair-value based test to Avnet’s répg units,
defined as each of the three regional businesdgshware the Americas, EMEA (Europe, Middle East Affrica),
and Asia, within each of the Company’s operatingugs. The Company conducts its periodic test fadgall
impairment annually, on the first day of the fistmirth quarter. A two-step process is used towatal goodwill for
impairment. The first step is to determine if thisran indication of impairment by comparing théreated fair
value of each reporting unit to its carrying vaineluding existing goodwill. Goodwill is consider@dpaired if the
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

carrying value of a reporting unit exceeds thewestid fair value. The second step, which is peréahanly if there
is an indication of impairment, determines the amaf the impairment by comparing the implied featue of the

reporting unit’s goodwill with its carrying valugo estimate fair value of each reporting unit, @@mpany uses a
combination of present value and multiple of eageimaluation techniques. The estimated fair vatwesd change
in the future due to changes in market and busioasditions that could affect the assumptions atiunates used
these valuation techniques.

During fiscal 2009, the Company recognized goodwilpairment charges of $1,379,734,000 pre-tax,
$1,345,590,000 after tax and $8.92 per share esudt of an interim test performed as of the enB@tember 27,
2008 as well as the annual impairment test in tloethh quarter of fiscal 2009. The noash charge had no impact
the Company’s compliance with debt covenants,aghdlows or available liquidity, but did have atarél impact
on its consolidated financial statements. The Camisaannual impairment tests in fiscal 2008 and72gi@lded no
impairments to the carrying value of the Compamygedwill.

Foreign currency translation— The assets and liabilities of foreign operatiarestranslated into U.S. dollars
at the exchange rates in effect at the balance dhés with the related translation adjustmenp®red as a separ:
component of shareholderxjuity and comprehensive income. Results of operatare translated using the aver
exchange rates prevailing throughout the periodn3actions denominated in currencies other thafuttational
currency of the Avnet business unit that is pastthe transaction (primarily trade receivables pagables) are
translated at exchange rates in effect at the balaheet date or upon settlement of the transactiaims and losses
from such translation are recorded in the constditlatatements of operations as a component oér'atcome,
net.” In fiscal 2009, 2008 and 2007, gains or lesze foreign currency translation were not material

Income taxes— The Company follows the asset and liability negetlof accounting for income taxes. Deferred
income tax assets and liabilities are recognizedhi® estimated future tax impact of differencetsveen the
financial statement carrying amounts of assetdiabdities and their respective tax bases. Deféineome tax
assets and liabilities are measured using enaaxetes in effect for the year in which those terapy differences
are expected to be recovered or settled. Basedhiptarical and projected levels of taxable incaand analysis of
other key factors, the Company records a valuatlitmwance against its deferred tax assets, as dkpgessary, to
state such assets at their estimated net realizahle. The effect on deferred income tax assetdiahilities of a
change in tax rates is recognized in earningséarm#riod in which the new rate is enacted.

The Company establishes reserves for potentialiguamable outcomes of positions taken on certain ta
matters. These reserves are based on managenssg&sment of whether a tax benefit is more likedy tnot to be
sustained upon examination by tax authorities. &negly be differences between the anticipated atugdlac
outcomes of these matters that may result in raleos reserves or additional tax liabilities ircezs of the reserv
amounts. To the extent such adjustments are wadatlite Companyg’ effective tax rate may potentially fluctuate
a result.

No provision for U.S. income taxes has been madagproximately $1,536,051,000 of cumulative untésdi
earnings of foreign subsidiaries at June 27, 2@@%bse those earnings are expected to be permarantiested
outside the U.S. A hypothetical calculation of tiedferred tax liability, assuming that earnings wemaitted, is not
practicable.

Self-insurance— The Company is primarily self-insured for worketompensation, medical, and general,
product and automobile liability costs; however ompany also has a stop-loss insurance poliplate to limit
the Company’s exposure to individual and aggreglaiens made. Liabilities for these programs areresed based
upon outstanding claims and claims estimated te l@en incurred but not yet reported based updarital loss
experience. These estimates are subject to vatyadbile to changes in trends of losses for outstendaims and
incurred but not recorded claims, including extéfaetors such as future inflation rates, benefitel changes and
claim settlement patterns.
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Revenue recognitionr— Revenue from product sales is recognized whesupsive evidence of an arrangement
exists, delivery has occurred or services have bemthered, the sales price is fixed or determinabtecollectibility
is reasonably assured. Generally, these critegianat upon shipment to customers. Most of the Coryipgroduct
sales come from product Avnet purchases from alswgmnd holds in inventory. A portion of the Conmg&s sales
are shipments of product directly from its suppliter its customers. In such circumstances, Avngotiaes the
price with the customer, pays the supplier direftihthe product shipped and bears credit riskaflecting payment
from its customers. Furthermore, in such drop-skipnarrangements, Avnet bears responsibility foepting
returns of product from the customer even if Avinreturn, has a right to return the product to ¢higinal supplier il
the product is defective. Under these terms, thmzamy serves as the principal with the customey tuadefore,
recognizes the sale and cost of sale of the praduan receiving notification from the supplier thia¢ product has
shipped.

In addition, the Company has more limited contraktalationships with certain of its customers aogpliers
whereby Avnet assumes an agency relationship itrdimsaction. In such arrangements, the Comparngrnizes th
fee associated with serving as an agent in sakbsneiassociated cost of sales.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2007, in conjtioa with the acquisition of Access (see Note 2 egflecting
recent industry trends, the Company reviewed ithoteof recording revenue related to the salesippker service
contracts and determined that such sales were ¢tabsified on a net revenue basis rather thangrmss basis
beginning the third quarter of fiscal 2007. Althbutyis change reduced sales and cost of salekdargchnology
Solutions (“TS”) operating group and on a consdédabasis, it had no impact on operating incomeinoeme,
cash flow or the balance sheet. The impact ofadhénge on prior periods is that sales and costlessvould have
been reduced by $214,417,000, or 2.8%, for theHadf of fiscal 2007 which is the period in fis@07 before the
change was effective.

Revenues from maintenance contracts are recograzably over the life of the contracts, rangingiirone to
three years.

Revenues are recorded net of discounts, rebatesstinthted returns. Provisions are made for distscamd
rebates, which are primarily volume-based, andased on historical trends and anticipated custdmgng
patterns. Provisions for returns are estimateddarehistorical sales returns, credit memo anabysd other known
factors.

Comprehensive income (loss} Comprehensive income (loss) represents net irdémss) for the year
adjusted for changes in shareholders’ equity frem-shareholder sources. Accumulated comprehensbogrie
items typically include currency translation and tmpact of the Company’s pension liability adjustiy net of tax
(see Note 4).

Stock-based compensatier The Company measures share-based paymentgjimgigrants of employee
stock options, at fair value and recognizes the@ated expense in the consolidated statementeritipns over th
service period (see Note 12).

Concentration of credit risk— Financial instruments that potentially subject@@mpany to a concentration
credit risk principally consist of cash and cashiealents and trade accounts receivable. The Coynipaests its
excess cash primarily in overnight Eurodollar tideposits and institutional money market funds witllity
financial institutions. The Company sells electiocdmponents and computer products primarily tgioai
equipment and contract manufacturers, includingrfigary and military contractors, throughout therld. To
reduce credit risk, management performs ongoinditcezaluations of its customers’ financial conalitiand, in
some instances, has obtained insurance coveragduoe such risk. The Company maintains reservgsotential
credit losses, but has not experienced any matessés related to individual customers or grodpsistomers in
any particular industry or geographic area.
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Fair value of financial instruments— The Company measures financial assets anditiebiat fair value based
upon exit price, representing the amount that waeldeceived on the sale of an asset or paid sferaa liability,
in an orderly transaction between market partidipaficcounting standards require inputs used inatan
techniques for measuring fair value on a recurangon-recurring basis be assigned to a hierartlacal as
follows: Level 1 are observable inputs that refigadted prices for identical assets or liabililiesictive markets.
Level 2 are observable market-based inputs or wrghble inputs that are corroborated by market datbl evel 3
are unobservable inputs that are not corroborateddrket data. The carrying amounts of the Compafigancial
instruments, including cash and cash equivaleat®ivables and accounts payable approximate thievdlues at
June 27, 2009 due to the shtatm nature of these instruments. As at June 209,28e Company had $463,403,!(
of cash equivalents which are recorded based gt 1 criteria. See Note 7 for further discussbthe fair value
of the Company’s fixed rate long-term debt instratseand setnvestmentin this Note 1 for further discussion of
the fair value of the Company’s investments in ursabidated entities.

Derivative financial instruments— Many of the Company’s subsidiaries, on occagiumchase and sell
products in currencies other than their functianatencies. This subjects the Company to the asksciated with
fluctuations in foreign currency exchange ratee Tompany reduces this risk by utilizing naturaldiag
(offsetting receivables and payables) as well asrbgting offsetting positions through the usearivdtive financia
instruments, primarily forward foreign exchange tcacts with maturities of less than sixty days. T@mpany
continues to have exposure to foreign currencysriskhe extent they are not hedged. The Compaugtadll
foreign denominated balances and any outstandimigio exchange contracts to fair market value thhothe
consolidated statements of operations. Therefhesntarket risk related to the foreign exchangereots is offset
by the changes in valuation of the underlying itdragsg hedged. The asset or liability represerttiegfair value of
foreign exchange contracts, based upon level @riitinder the fair value measurements standardtassified in
the captions “other current assets” or “accrueceagps and other,” as applicable, in the accompgrognsolidated
balance sheets and were not material. In additienCompany did not have material gains or losskgad to the
forward contracts which are recorded in “other meo(expense), net” in the accompanying consolidsitsements
of operations.

The Company has, from time to time, entered intbglearansactions that convert certain fixed rate the
variable rate debt. To the extent the Company sfitéo such hedge transactions, those fair valdgdsand the
hedged debt are adjusted to current market vatweadh interest expense.

The Company generally does not hedge its investindtg foreign operations. The Company does ntgren
into derivative financial instruments for tradingspeculative purposes and monitors the finantaddikty and credi
standing of its counterparties.

Accounts receivable securitization- The Company has an accounts receivable securitizptogram wherek
the Company may sell receivables in securitizatiansactions and retain a subordinated interessandcing right
to those receivables. The securitization prograatéunted for as an on-balance sheet financimogigfr the
securitization of accounts receivable (see Note 3).

Subsequent events Fhe Company evaluates events and transactionsitieeguent events that occur after its
fiscal year end, or after quarter end for interienipds, through the date the consolidated finarst@kements are
issued. The Company made its subsequent eventsaéieal through the date these consolidated findstatements
were issued.

Fiscal year — The Company operates on a “52/53 week” fiscal y@hich ends on the Saturday closest to
June 30th. Fiscal 2009, 2008 and 2007 all contaii@edeeks. Unless otherwise noted, all referernzéfiscal 2009”
or any other “year” shall mean the Company’s figer.

Management estimates- The preparation of financial statements in comity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to mattimates and assumptions that affect certain rega@ounts
of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingesgets and liabilities at the date of the findrst@tements and the
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

reported amounts of revenues and expenses duengplorting period. Actual results could differrfrahose
estimates.

Recent accounting pronouncementsin June 2009, the Financial Accounting Stand&ulsrd (“FASB”)
issued Statement of Financial Accounting Stand@f®iSAS”) 168, The FASB Accounting Standards Codificafi¢hn
and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accountmnigiciples(“SFAS 168”), which establishes the FASB
Accounting Standards Codificatid as the single source of authoritative US GAAP, pized by topic, and
creates a new referencing system to identify aitdtore literature such that references to SFASH ketc. will no
longer be valid. The Codification does not creatg mew GAAP standards. In addition, the Securiied Exchange
Commission (“SEC”) rules and releases will remarsaurces of authoritative US GAAP for SEC regigsa
SFAS 168 will be effective for the Company’s figgtarter of fiscal 2010 and is not expected to reweaterial
impact on the Company'’s consolidated financialestegnts.

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS 1&mendments to FASB Interpretation No. 4§(BJAS 167”), which
changes the analysis required to determine cointgalhterest in variable interest entities and rezggiadditional
disclosures regarding a company’s involvement witbh entities. SFAS 167 is effective beginningGloenpany’s
fiscal year 2011. The adoption of SFAS 167 is ngeeted to have a material impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS 1&6&;ounting for Transfers of Financial Assetghich eliminates the
concept of qualifying special purpose entitiesjténthe number of financial assets and liabilitiest qualify for
derecognition, and requires additional disclosus#AS 166 is effective beginning the Company’sdigear 2011.
The adoption of SFAS 167 is not expected to havegerial impact on the Company’s consolidated fimen
statements.

In May 2009, the FASB issued SFAS 1&absequent Event$SFAS 165”), which establishes the general
standards of accounting for and disclosure of e#ivat occur after the balance sheet date butdéfmncial
statements are issued. SFAS 165 is effective ferim and fiscal years ending after June 15, 2@08ch is the
Company’s fourth quarter of fiscal 2009. The adapif SFAS 165 did not have a material impact @n th
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP 141RAtcounting for Assets Acquired and Liabilities Ased in a
Business Combination that Arise from Continger” (“FSP 141R"). FSP 141R-1 amends and clarifies SEAER
to address application issues associated withaimgcognition and measurement, subsequent measuotemd
accounting, and disclosure of assets and liaksldigsing from contingencies in a business comtminaESP 141R-1
is effective beginning in the Company’s fiscal y2ad 0. The adoption of FSP 141R-1 is not expecidthtve a
material impact on the Company'’s consolidated fongrstatements.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP FAS 107-1, ARB12Interim Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial
Instruments, (“FSP 107-1, 28-1"). FSP 107-1, 28-1 requiresldsure about fair value of financial instrumemts i
interim financial statements in order to providerenimely information about the effects of currerdrket
conditions on financial instruments. FSP 107-1128-effective beginning the Company’s first intemperiod of
fiscal 2010. The adoption of this FSP is not expetb have a material impact on the Company’s diteged
financial statements.

In May 2008, the FASB issued FSP Accounting PrilesifBoard 14-Accounting for Convertible Debt
Instruments That May Be Settled in Cash upon Caeimwel(Including Partial Cash Settleme (“FSP APB
14-1"). FSP APB 14-1 requires the issuer of certainvertible debt instruments that may be setttethsh (or other
assets) on conversion to separately account fdrabiity (debt) and equity (conversion option)neponents of the
instrument in a manner that reflects the issuavis-convertible debt borrowing rate. FSP APB 14-éffsctive for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008 miraspective basis, and as such, will be effedbeginning in
the Company’s fiscal year 2010. As of April 30, 20the 2% Senior Debentures, to which this proneorent
would have applied, were extinguished. Therefdre adoption of FSP APB 14-1 will not have a siguifit impact
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on the Company’s fiscal 2010 consolidated finansiatements; however, it will have an impact ompieviously
reported consolidated financial statements dubdaegquired retrospective application in periodemwthe
Debentures were outstanding.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. TH4closures about Derivative Instruments and Hedgin
Activities— an amendment of FASB Statement No.(ISRAS 161"). SFAS 161 requires enhanced disclasure
about the objectives of derivative instruments ledging activities, the method of accounting fatsinstruments
under SFAS 133 and its related interpretations,aatabular disclosure of the effects of such imstrats and related
hedged items on an entity’s financial positionafigial performance and cash flows. SFAS 161 istife for
periods beginning after November 15, 2008, andual,svas effective beginning in the Company’s tlgjuarter of
fiscal year 2009. The adoption of SFAS 161 didhrente a material impact on the Company’s consoliifitancial
statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141ideeh2007)Business Combinatiorf§SFAS 141R”).
SFAS 141R establishes the requirements for howcquniger recognizes and measures the identifialdetas
acquired, the liabilities assumed, any non-coritrglinterest in the acquiree and the goodwill acepii SFAS 141R
requires acquisition costs be expensed insteadpifadized as is required currently under SFAS 44d also
establishes disclosure requirements for businesbic@tions. SFAS 141R applies to business comloingtior
which the acquisition date is on or after fiscahngebeginning on or after December 15, 2008, arsiiels,

SFAS 141R is effective beginning in the Companigsdl year 2010. The adoption of SFAS 141R may leewve
impact to the Company’s consolidated statemenpefations based upon the Company’s level of adeprisi
activity.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No.N66-controlling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements — an amendment to ARB N@:SHAS 160”). SFAS 160 will change the accountimgl aeporting for
minority interests, which will now be termed “noortrolling interests.” SFAS 160 requires ncantrolling interest
to be presented as a separate component of equitseguires the amount of net income attributablihe parent
and to the non-controlling interest to be sepayatkntified on the consolidated statement of ofi@na. SFAS 160
is effective for fiscal years beginning on or aflercember 15, 2008, and as such, will be effediaginning in the
Company’s fiscal year 2010. The Company does nwently have any material non-controlling interesis such,
the adoption of SFAS 160 is not expected to haviengact on the Company'’s consolidated financiatesteents.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. E&if,Value Measuremen{8SFAS 157"), which defines
fair value, establishes a framework for measuraigvalue in generally accepted accounting priresphnd expant
disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS1483 not require any new fair value measurembuats,
provides guidance on how to measure fair valuerbyiding a fair value hierarchy used to classifg #ource of the
information. In February 2008, the FASB issued FARRff Position 157-1Application of FASB Statement No. 157
to FASB Statement No. 13 and Other Accounting Rmcements That Address Fair Value Measurements for
Purposes of Lease Classification or MeasuremeneuBthtement 1. (“FSP 157-1"). FSP 157-dmends SFAS 1f
to exclude leasing transactions accounted for uS&&S 13 and related guidance from the scope ofSSE3V. In
February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Positioi-2 (“FSP 175-2")Effective Date of FASB Statement 157
which delays the effective date of SFAS 157 fonalh-financial assets and nfinancial liabilities, except for iterr
that are recognized or disclosed as fair valudénfinancial statements on a recurring basis &t lannually).
SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal year 2009, howeWwSP 157-2 delays the effective date for certaims to fiscal
year 2010. The adoption of SFAS 157 for financgseds and liabilities did not have a material inbacthe
Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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2. Acquisitions, divestitures and investments
Fiscal 2009

During the third quarter of fiscal 2009, the Companmpleted its acquisitions of Abacus Group pkshiacus’)
and Nippon Denso Industry Co. Ltd. (“Nippon Dens@bacus was a value-added distributor of computer
components in Europe with sales of approximat@y®Emillion (approximately $400 million) in its fial year ende
September 2008, and was acquired for an all casé pf £0.55 per share which equates to a trarsaetilue of
approximately £97.9 million ($141.6 million) inclundy the assumption of estimated net debt. Abactepisrted as
part of the Electronics Marketing (“EM”) EMEA regorg unit. Nippon Denso was a Tokyo-based, valugedd
distributor of electronic components with estaldigliesign and engineering expertise with annuab s
JPY16.1 billion (approximately $180 million basqubu foreign currency exchange rates at the dattoe€) for its
fiscal year ended March 31, 2008 and is reportguhatsof the EM Asia reporting unit. Also in therthquarter of
fiscal 2009, the Company entered into a joint ventuvith Sanko Holding Group to distribute servetsrage,
workstations and computer components in Turkey.eibras more than a 50% controlling interest and, r@sult,
the venture is consolidated in the accompanyingalithated financial statements. The joint ventédnet
Technology Solutions Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S., iooregd as part of the operations of Technology $migt(“TS”)
EMEA reporting unit.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2009, the Compaompleted its acquisition of Horizon TechnologsoGp plc
in an all cash transaction for €1.18 per sharepproximately $160.5 million including the assuroptdf net debt.
Horizon is a leading technical integrator and disitior of information technology products in the dKd Ireland
with sales of €295 million (approximately $400 naill) for the twelve months ended June 30, 2008. akwgiired
business is reported as part of the TS EMEA repgttinit. The Company also completed two smalleusitipns ir
July 2008, Source Electronics Corporation with alized revenue of approximately $82 million whishréported
as part of the EM Americas reporting unit, and @citrSolutions Pvt. Ltd. with annualized revenuambroximatel
$13 million which is reported as part of the TSa=porting unit.

During fiscal 2009, the Company recognized a gaithe sale of assets amounting to $14,318,000gx,e-t
$8,727,000 after tax and $0.06 per share as a @fstértain earn-out provisions associated withghor sale of the
Company’s equity investment in Calence LLC.

Fiscal 2008

On March 31, 2008 (the beginning of the fiscal thuquarter), the Company acquired UK-based Azzurri
Technology Ltd., a design-in distributor of semidaotor and embedded systems products which hadabnnu
revenues of approximately $100 million. The acdigisiis reported as part of the EM EMEA reportingtu

On December 31, 2007 (the beginning of the fiduiatitquarter), the Company acquired YEL Electromicsg
Kong Ltd., a distributor of interconnect, passivel @&lectromechanical components in Asia. The aeduiusiness,
which had annual revenues of approximately $200anijlis reported as part of the EM Asia reporturgt.

On December 17, 2007, the Company completed itsisiign of the IT Solutions division of Acal pldd. The
Acal IT Solutions division is a leading value-adagstributor of storage area networking, securevogking and
electronic document management products and servigth operations in six European countries ardidranual
revenues of approximately $200 million. Acal isoepd as part of the TS EMEA reporting unit.

On October 8, 2007, the Company completed its aton of the European Enterprise Infrastructurgsitbn
of valueadded distributor Magirus Group. The division acediis a distributor of servers, storage systeoféyare
and services of IBM and Hewlett-Packard to resglierseven European countries and Dubai and wtadrehnual
revenues of approximately $500 million. The acdigriis reported as part of the TS EMEA reportimif.u
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In addition to the acquisitions mentioned above,@mmpany also acquired several smaller businelssesy
fiscal 2008 with an aggregate of annual revenuegppfoximately $110 million.

During fiscal 2008, the Company sold its equitydstment in Calence LLC and received proceeds of
approximately $65,601,000 which resulted in a gairsale of assets of $42,426,000 pre-tax, $25,924fer tax
and $0.17 per share on a diluted basis. In additt@Company recorded a gain on sale of ass&3,000,000 pre-
tax, $1,843,000 after tax and $0.01 per sharedituged basis in connection with the receipt of $eeond and last
installment of contingent purchase price proceetiged to the fiscal 2006 sale of a TS busine#isarAmericas.

Fiscal 2007

During the third quarter of fiscal 2007, the Compagcorded a gain on the sale of assets in the ahodu
$3,000,000 pre-tax, $1,814,000 after tax and $peédIshare on a diluted basis related to the recéigdntingent
purchase price proceeds from the fiscal 2006 dadeT® business in the Americas.

On December 31, 2006, the first day of Avnet'sdhguarter of fiscal 2007, the Company completed the
acquisition of Access Distribution (“Access”), atkng value-added distributor of complex compusngutions,
which had sales of approximately $1.90 billion &lendar year 2006. The purchase price of $437,884\@&s
funded primarily with debt plus cash on hand. Theedss business is reported as part of the TS Aaseaiod
EMEA operations.

Unaudited pro forma results

Unaudited pro forma financial information is preehbelow as if the acquisition of Access occuatthe
beginning of fiscal 2007. The pro forma informatipmesented below does not purport to present \ileaactual
results would have been had the acquisition indactirred at the beginning of fiscal 2007, nor dbesinformation
project results for any future period. Further, pne forma results exclude any benefits that mayltdrom the
acquisition due to synergies that were derived ftoenelimination of any duplicative costs (in thands, except per
share data).

Pro Forma Results

Fiscal 2007
Pro forma sale $ 16,603,62
Pro forma operating incon 714,89(
Pro forma net incom 406,88:
Pro forma diluted earnings per sh $ 2.72

Combined results for Avnet and Access were adjulstethe following in order to create the unaudiprd
forma results in the table above:

» $2,598,000 pre-tax, $1,741,000 after tax and $pédddiluted share for amortization expense relaiing
intangible assets written off upon acquisiti

* $10,429,000 pre-tax, $6,988,000 after tax and $pedSliluted share for interest expense relating to
borrowings used to fund the acquisition. For theforma results presented above, the borrowings wer
assumed to be outstanding for the entire periosemted above

Acquisition-related exit activity accounted for ipurchase accounting

During fiscal 2007 and 2006, the Company recordathin exit-related liabilities through purchase@mting
which consisted of severance for workforce redunstjcmnon-cancelable lease commitments and lease
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termination charges for leased facilities, and otuatract termination costs associated with thieaetivities. The
following table summarizes the utilization of thesserves during fiscal 2009:

FY 2007  FY 2006 Total
(Thousands)

Balance at June 28, 20 $1,937 $10,30: $12,23¢
Amounts utilizec (1,047 (2,342 (3,389
Adjustments — (297) (297)
Other, principally foreign currency translati (192) (49) (2417)

Balance at June 27, 20 $ 69¢ $ 7,61¢ $ 8,317

As of June 27, 2009, the remaining fiscal 2007 meserelated primarily to facility exit costs which
management expects to be utilized by fiscal 20h@. fEmaining fiscal 2006 reserves related primaailfacility exit
costs and other contractual lease obligations waietexpected to be substantially utilized by the ef fiscal 2013.

3. Accounts receivable securitizatior

The Company has an accounts receivable secumtizptiogram (the “Program”) with a group of finaricia
institutions that allows the Company to sell, aeeolving basis, an undivided interest of up to850,000 in
eligible U.S. receivables while retaining a suboatiéd interest in a portion of the receivablesafaiing under the
Program does not qualify as off-balance sheet &imn As a result, the receivables and related deligation
remain on the Company’s consolidated balance steeamounts are drawn on the Program. The Progrdra bae
year term expiring at the end of August 2009 whiehCompany has renewed for another year on coilpaierms
except for an increase in facility and borrowingtsao reflect current market conditions; howetee,increase will
not have a material impact on the Company’s codatgd financial statements. There were no amowtssamding
under the Program as of June 27, 2009 or June0®8, Expenses associated with the Program, which nat
material in the past three fiscal years, consiefqatogram, facility and professional fees recordeselling, general
and administrative expenses in the accompanyingatolated statements of operations.

4. Comprehensive income (loss)

The following table illustrates the accumulatedabakes of comprehensive income items at June 28, 200
June 28, 2008 and June 30, 2007:

June 27, June 28, June 30,
2009 2008 2007
(Thousands)
Accumulated translation adjustments, $290,84¢ $528,74¢ $306,19¢
Accumulated pension liability adjustments, netrafame taxe: (72,757) (46,577 (29,689
Total $218,09: $482,17¢ $276,50¢
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5. Property, plant and equipment, net

Property, plant and equipment are recorded ataubtconsist of the following:

June 27, June 28,
2009 2008
(Thousands)
Land $ 19,95 $ 5,48¢
Buildings 121,75: 90,72¢
Machinery, fixtures and equipme 680,06¢ 611,95¢
Leasehold improvemen 54,58¢ 57,73%
876,35’ 765,90¢
Less— accumulated depreciation and amortiza (570,67 (538,729

$ 305,68: $ 227,18

Depreciation and amortization expense relateddpgaty, plant and equipment was $50,653,000, $4900D
and $43,734,000 in fiscal 2009, 2008 and 2007 e&sely.

During fiscal 2008, the Company sold a buildinghie EMEA region and recorded a gain of $4,477,0@0 p
and after tax and $0.03 per share on a dilutedsbBsie to local tax allowances, the gain on théding sale was n«
taxable.
6. Goodwill and intangible asset:

The following table presents the carrying amourgaddwill, by reportable segment, for the periodsspnted:

Electronics Technology

Marketing Solutions Total
Carrying value at June 28, 20 $1,141,79. $587,11: $1,728,90.
Additions 158,18t 152,13¢ 310,32
Goodwill impairment (1,045,11) (334,62 (2,379,73)
Adjustments (9,06¢€) (43,279 (52,349
Foreign currency translatiol (5,419 (51,619 (57,037)
Carrying value at June 27, 20 $ 240,38¢ $309,73( $ 550,11

The Company performs its annual goodwill impairntest on the first day of its fiscal fourth quarter
addition, if and when events or circumstances cbdhat would more likely than not reduce the failue of any of
its reporting units below its carrying value, ateim test would be performed. During fiscal 200% Company
recognized goodwill and intangible asset impairnudratrges of $1,411,127,000 pre-tax, $1,376,983:0@0 tax
and $9.13 per share resulting from an interim immpant test performed at the end of the second guarid from
the annual impairment test performed during thetfoquarter of fiscal 2009. The n@ash charge had no impact
the Company’s compliance with debt covenants,aghdlows or available liquidity, but did have ater&l impact
on its consolidated financial statements.

Interim impairment test

Since the end of September 2008, the Company’sehadpitalization declined steadily. While the dweelin
market capitalization was relatively in line withetdecline in the overall market, it fell signifitly below book
value during the second quarter due primarily toglobal economic downturn’s impact on the Compsny’
performance and the turmoil in the equity markBtsring the second quarter of fiscal 2009, the Camgpa
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performed an interim analysis to determine the immpant of goodwill and other intangible assetsfas o
December 27, 2008. The results of the analysisated that the fair values of four of the Comparsyxsreporting
units were below their carrying values as of the ehthe second quarter of fiscal 2009. Accordinghe Company
recognized a non-cash goodwill impairment charg®lg817,452,000 pre-tax, $1,283,308,000 after-tak$%8.51
per share in its second quarter of fiscal 2009ltgsu

A two step process is used to test for goodwillaimpent. The first step is to determine if theransindication
of impairment by comparing the estimated fair vadfieach reporting unit to its carrying value irdihg existing
goodwill. Goodwill is considered impaired if thergang value of a reporting unit exceeds the estaddair value.
Upon an indication of impairment, a second stgmeiformed to determine the amount of the impairngnt
comparing the implied fair value of the reportingtis goodwill with its carrying value. The detemmaition of fair
value in both step one and step two utilized |&vetiteria under fair value measurement standards.

To estimate the fair value of its reporting uniis $tep one, the Company utilized a combinatiomcdéme and
market approaches. The income approach, specdjfiaaliscounted cash flow methodology, included axgions
for, among others, forecasted revenues, gross pnafigins, operating profit margins, working capdash flow,
perpetual growth rates and long term discount ratlésf which require significant judgments by ragement.
These assumptions took into account the curreeseignary environment and its impact on the Comgany
business. In addition, the Company utilized a dist@ate appropriate to compensate for the additidsk in the
equity markets regarding the Company’s future dkstrs in order to arrive at a control premium calesied
supportable based upon historical comparable tctinss.

The results of step one indicated that the goodefifited to the EM Asia, TS EMEA and TS Asia rejoagrt
units was fully impaired. Therefore, the Companiygerformed step two of the impairment analysisife® EM
Americas reporting unit. Step two of the impairmesst required the Company to fair value all of tiygorting
unit's assets and liabilities, including identifialintangible assets, and compare the impliedvigine of goodwill to
its carrying value. The results of step two indéchthat the goodwill in the EM Americas reportingtwas also
fully impaired.

Annual impairment test

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009, the Compaerformed its annual goodwill impairment tesiath
indicated that three of its six reporting unitgliding EM Asia and TS EMEA, continued to have fatues below
their carrying values. As a result, the Company reagslired to recognize the impairment of additiapabdwill
which arose subsequent to the second quarteroafl 2909 in the EM Asia and TS EMEA reporting unis the
non-cash goodwill impairment charges of $62,282 fi@and after tax and $0.41 per share recognized ifoti¢h
quarter, $41,433,000 related to the recently aedubusiness in Japan, which was assigned to thA&g&dreporting
unit. Accounting standards require goodwill fromaamjuisition to be assigned to a reporting unitalsd requires
goodwill to be tested on a reporting unit levelt by individual acquisition. As noted above, th@aal impairment
analysis indicated that the fair value of the EMaA®porting unit continued to be below its cargywralue. As a
result, the goodwill from the recent acquisitionswaquired to be impaired. The remaining $20,84®dfGhe
impairment charges related to additional goodwillie TS EMEA reporting unit primarily as a resaflfinal
acquisition adjustments during the purchase piiiceation period related to an acquisition for whitie goodwiill
had been fully impaired in the second quarter safei 2009.

Goodwill additions and adjustments

The goodwill addition in EM, as presented in thegading table, was primarily a result of the Abadlippon
Denso and Source Electronics acquisitions. Thetiaddio goodwill in TS was primarily a result ofettdorizon and
Ontrack Solutions Pvt Ltd acquisitions (see NoteAzljustments to goodwill in both operating groupkated
primarily to the identification of intangible assenhet of associated deferred tax liabilities, \Wwhieere reclassified
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to “Other assets” on the consolidating balancetsieediscussed above, certain of these assetsimpeagred as of
December 27, 2008.

Intangible assets

During fiscal 2009, the Company also evaluateddgeverability of its long-lived assets at eaclihaf
reporting units where goodwill was deemed to beaimgal. Based upon this evaluation, which utilizexkl 3 criteri
under fair value measurement standards, the Congbeteymined that certain of its amortizable inthteassets
were impaired. As a result, the Company recogn&adn-cash intangible asset impairment charge bf383,000
pre- and after tax and $0.21 per share duringehersl quarter of fiscal 2009. In conjunction witle nnual
goodwill impairment test, the Company again evaddhe recoverability of its long-lived assets dgrihe fourth
quarter of fiscal 2009 and determined that no impant had occurred.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009, the Comypaompleted its final valuation of an intangibksat
acquired which resulted in an adjustment to redoi@agible assets by $11,156,000 and the estimeseflll life
from ten years to seven years. The adjustmentdredse intangible assets was offset by a correspwpinttrease in
goodwill which was deemed to be impaired as ofethe of the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009. As of d@&7, 2009,
“Other assets” included customer relationshipsnigifale assets with a carrying value of $56,109,@0isisting of
$78,248,000 in original cost value and accumulatedrtization and foreign currency translation o2 339,000.
These assets are being amortized over a weightzdger life of nine years. Amortization expense $83,272,000,
$6,767,000 and $5,800,000 in fiscal 2009, 20082017, respectively. Amortization expense for thet fige years
is expected to be approximately $9,000,000 each pased upon current foreign currency exchangsrat

7. External financing
Short-term debt consists of the following:

June 27, June 28,

2009 2008
(Thousands)
Bank credit facilities $20,88: $32,64¢
Other debt due within one ye 2,41z 11,15¢
Shor-term debt $23,29:  $43,80¢

Bank credit facilities consist of various committ@ad uncommitted lines of credit with financialtingions
utilized primarily to support the working capit&quirements of foreign operations. The weightedayeinterest
rate on the bank credit facilities was 1.8% and4ld the end of fiscal 2009 and 2008, respectively.

The Company has an accounts receivable secumtizptiogram (the “Program”) with a group of finaricia
institutions that allows the Company to sell, aeeolving basis, an undivided interest of up to850,000 in
eligible receivables while retaining a subordinatedrest in a portion of the receivables. The Pangdoes not
qualify for sale treatment and, as a result, anmydwangs under the Program are recorded as detiteooonsolidate
balance sheet. The Program contains certain cotgrahof which the Company was in compliance veighof
June 27, 2009. The Program has a one year termstpaes in August 2009, which has been renewedriother
year on comparable terms, except for an increafaility and borrowing costs to reflect currentniet conditions
however, the increase will not have a material iohjoa the Company’s consolidated financial stateserhere
were no amounts outstanding under the ProgrannatJn, 2009 or June 28, 2008.
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Long-term debt consists of the following:

June 27, June 28,
2009 2008
(Thousands)
5.875% Notes due March 15, 20 $300,00¢ $ 300,00(
6.00% Notes due September 1, 2 250,00( 250,00(
6.625% Notes due September 15, 2 300,00( 300,00t
2% Convertible Senior Debentures due March 15, : — 300,00(
Other lon¢-term debt 98,90" 34,207
Subtotal 948,90 1,184,20
Discount on note (2,339 (2,709
Long-term debt $946,57.  $1,181,49:

The Company has a five-year $500,000,000 unsecaxedving credit facility (the “Credit Agreementiiith a
syndicate of banks which expires in September 20b2er the Credit Agreement, the Company may éteot
various interest rate options, currencies and ritegsir The Credit Agreement contains certain conésall of
which the Company was in compliance with as of Rine2009. As of the end of fiscal 2009, there were
$86,565,000 in borrowings outstanding under thali€Aegreement included in “other long-term debt'tire
consolidated financial statements. In additionreéheere $1,511,000 in letters of credit issued utige Credit
Agreement which represent a utilization of the @raddreement capacity but are not recorded in thesolidated
balance sheet as the letters of credit are not d&¢Bune 28, 2008, there were $19,689,000 in bangs
outstanding under the Credit Agreement and $240084in letters of credit issued under the Credite&gnent.

Substantially all of the $300,000,000 2% ConveetiSenior Debentures due March 15, 2034 (the “Deioesi)
were put to the Company by holders of the Debertutt® exercised their right to require the Compangurchase
the Debentures for cash on March 15, 2009 at thbteresfull principal amount plus accrued and unpaid ies¢
The Company paid $298,059,000 plus accrued intes#sg cash on hand. The remaining $1,941,000eof th
Debentures that were not put to the Company in Marere repaid on April 30, 2009.

During October 2006, the Company redeemed alkd¥3t 4% Notes due February 15, 2008 (the3/9
% Notes”),of which $361,360,000 was outstanding. The Compeseygl the net proceeds amounting to $296,08!
from the issuance in September 2006 of $300,000p@i08ipal amount of 6.625% Notes due SeptembeRQ%6,
plus available liquidity, to repurchase thé/3 % Notes. In connection with the repurchase, the @om terminate
two interest rate swaps with a total notional ana@ir$200,000,000 that hedged a portion of thé 8% Notes.
Debt extinguishment costs incurred in fiscal 208aaesult of the redemption totaled $27,358,0@6tax,
$16,538,000 after tax, or $0.11 per share on aedilbasis, and consisted of $20,322,000 for a mdiae
redemption premium, $4,939,000 associated withvitteeinterest rate swap terminations, and $2,097t60@rite-off
certain deferred financing costs.
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Aggregate debt maturities for fiscal 2010 throu@ii£2and thereafter are as follows (in thousands):

2010 $ 23,29«
2011 1,89:
2012 1,16¢
2013 94,33¢
2014 301,20(
Thereaftel 550,30¢
Subtotal 972,20:
Discount on note (2,339
Total debt $969,86°

At June 27, 2009, the fair value, generally bagsmhuguoted market prices, of the 5.875% Notes @14 2vas
$285,144,000, the fair value of the 6.00% Notes2iMb was $239,153,000 and the fair value of tbg® Notes
due 2016 was $274,500,000.

8. Accrued expenses and othe

Accrued expenses and other consist of the following

June 27, June 28,
2009 2008
(Thousands)
Payroll, commissions and related accrt $184,53: $188,99!
Income taxes (Note ¢ 37,26: 83,86«
Other(1) 252,77 169,68t

$474,570  $442,54!

(1) Includes restructuring reserves recorded througbhase accounting and through “restructuring, irgtégn and
other charge” (see Notes 2 and 17). Amounts presented in thisorapere individually not significan

9. Income taxes

The components of the provision for income taxesirdicated in the table below. The tax provision f
deferred income taxes results from temporary difiees arising principally from inventory valuatiaecounts
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receivable valuation, net operating losses, ceraamuals and depreciation, net of any changdsetedluation
allowance.

Years Ended

June 27, June 28, June 30,
2009 2008 2007
(Thousands)
Current:
Federa $ 69,83t $ 53,35( $ 34,99:
State and loce 7,68¢ 30,36: 10,68¢
Foreign 50,00 19,01t 48,27.
Total current taxe 127,53: 102,72t 93,94¢
Deferred:
Federa (51,769 54,73¢ 49,56
State and loce (4,585 (9,697 3,26¢
Foreign (31,799 62,107 46,77¢
Total deferred taxe (88,149  107,14¢ 99,60
Provision for income taxe $ 39,38¢ $209,87: $193,55.

The provision for income taxes noted above is casgbbased upon the split of income (loss) befoterime
taxes from U.S. and foreign operations. U.S. inc@oss) before income taxes was ($722,021,000)2 858,000
and $253,380,000 and foreign income (loss) befareme taxes was ($361,053,000), $356,101,000 and
$333,239,000 in fiscal 2009, 2008 and 2007, respyt

A reconciliation between the federal statutoryrtabe and the effective tax rate is as follows:

Years Ended
June 27 June 28 June 30

2009 2008 2007
Federal statutory ra: (35.0% 35.(% 35.(%
State and local income taxes, net of federal be 0.3 2.2 1.8
Foreign tax rates, including impact of valuatiolo@hnces (2.0 (5.3 (5.0
Change in contingency reserves (1.9 (3.5 0.¢
Impairment charge 42.4 — —
Other, ne (0.2 1.2 0.3
Effective tax rate 3.6% 29.6¢%  33.(%

(1) Includes a benefit of 2.9% and 5.5% related toatadit settlements in fiscal 2009 and 2008, respelsti

Foreign tax rates generally consist of the impéthe difference between foreign and federal steijutates
applied to foreign income (losses) and also inclirdeimpact of valuation allowances against the gamy’s
otherwise realizable foreign loss carry-forwards.

The change in the fiscal 2009 effective tax ratergrior year is due to the impact of non-deduetibl
impairment charges and a change to estimates fstirextax positions, net of favorable tax auditlsenents of
$21,672,000, or $0.14 per share. Excluding the anpbthese charges, the effective tax rate f@ali009 is
29.9%. The decrease in the fiscal 2008 effectixedse over fiscal 2007 was attributable to (i)tagr statutory tax
rate reductions; (ii) a favorable audit settlemeffset by; (iii) the recognition of transfer pmgj exposures; and
(iv) a change to estimates for existing tax posgio
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As of the first day of fiscal 2008, the Company pteal a tax accounting standard which prescribesatha
company use a more-likely-than-not recognitionshrgd based upon the technical merits of the taitipa taken
or expected to be taken in a tax return. To theréd tax position exceeds the amount of tax beakdwed to be
recognized pursuant to the provisions of the taoanting standard, the difference is recordedlabaity on the
balance sheet (an “unrecognized tax benefit” ardine tax contingency”) until such time as the possieither
meets the criteria, or is settled due to statupération or effective settlement with the taxingrearity. The adoptio
of the tax accounting standard resulted in no cativd adjustment to retained earnings in fiscal®20@ addition,
consistent with the provisions of the standard Gbenpany reclassified $94,460,000 of income tabilliees from
current classification in “accrued expenses andrdtbn the consolidated balance sheet to ltarg: classification il
“other long-term liabilities.” The total amount gfoss unrecognized tax benefits upon adoption \iag,285,000,
of which approximately $49,563,000 would have falady impacted the effective tax rate if recognizanat] the
remaining balance would reverse through either gdlbdr deferred tax assets. As of June 28, 2008ecognized
tax benefits were $124,765,000, of which approxatya$59,300,000, if recognized, would favorably anpthe
effective tax rate. As of June 27, 2009, unrecogphiax benefits were $135,891,000, of which appnexély
$87,468,000, if recognized, would favorably impiet effective tax rate, and the remaining balancelevbe
substantially offset by valuation allowances.

In accordance with the Company’s accounting pokmgrued interest and penalties, if any, related to
unrecognized tax benefits are recorded as a compohécome tax expense. This policy did not cleaag a result
of the tax accounting standard adoption. The atéonainrecognized tax benefits included accruedrast expense
and penalties of $12,476,000, $12,303,000 and $1260, net of applicable state tax benefit, ahefend of fiscal
2009, fiscal 2008 and as of the date of adoptiespectively.

The significant components of deferred tax assaddiabilities, included primarily in “other asséts: the
consolidated balance sheets, are as follows:

June 27, June 28,
2009 2008
(Thousands)
Deferred tax asset
Inventory valuatior $ 6,00z $ 9,10¢
Accounts receivable valuatic 20,747 14,41¢
Federal, state and foreign tax loss c-forwards 396,93¢ 419,64
Depreciation and amortization of property, plard aquipmen — 6,794
Various accrued liabilities and otf 83,25¢ 2,40:
506,94 452,36(
Less— valuation allowanc: (315,020 (344,039
191,92: 108,32t
Deferred tax liabilities (24,447 —
Net deferred tax asse $167,47: $ 108,32

As of June 27, 2009, the Company had foreign netaifmg loss carry-forwards of approximately
$1,199,515,000, approximately $256,408,000 of whigte expiration dates ranging from fiscal 2012027 and
the remaining $943,107,000 of which have no exjpinadate. Of the $256,408,000 of foreign net opegdbss
carryforwards, $29,553,000 will expire during fis2810 and 2011, substantially all of which havialuation
allowances. The carrying value of the Company’sopetrating loss carry-forwards is dependent upen th
Company’s ability to generate sufficient futureahbbe income in certain tax jurisdictions. In aduliti the Company
considers historic levels of income, expectatiams sk associated with estimates of future taxaisdeme and on-
going prudent and feasible tax planning strateigiessessing a tax valuation allowance.
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Accruals for income tax contingencies (or accré@aisinrecognized tax benefits) are included in faed
expenses and other” and “other long term liabdgitien the consolidated balance sheet. These camtaygreserves
relate to various tax matters that result from utadeties in the application of complex income tagulations in the
numerous jurisdictions in which the Company opexafée change to contingency reserves during fi2ea9 is
primarily due to the recognition of uncertaintiascurrent year tax positions, a change to estinfatesxisting tax
positions and favorable audit settlements.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending acthalance for unrecognized tax benefits is as ¥adlo

Fiscal 200¢ Fiscal 200¢

Balance at beginning of ye $124,76¢  $114,28!
Additions for tax positions taken in prior period@ssluding interes 30,93( 40,08:
Reductions for tax positions taken in prior periadsluding interes (45,87¢) (26,087)
Additions for tax positions taken in current per 42,40( 16,12
Reductions relating to settlements with taxing atitles (10,579 (30,167
Reduction related to the lapse of statute of litiates (2,876 (624)
(Reduction) addition related to foreign curren@nsiatior (2,879 11,15¢

Balance at end of ye $135,89:  $124,76!

The evaluation of income tax positions requires ag@ment to estimate the ability of the Companytiasn
its position and estimate the final benefit to @@mpany. To the extent that these estimates deeflett the actual
outcome there could be an impact on the consoliditiancial statements in the period in which tlsifion is
settled, the statute of limitations expires or nefermation becomes available as the impact ofdle®nts are
recognized in the period in which they occur. Idificult to estimate the period in which the amobuof a tax
position will change as settlement may include anstiative and legal proceedings whose timing tbenfany
cannot control. The effects of settling tax posiiavith tax authorities and statute expirations sigypificantly
impact the accrual for income tax contingencieshiftithe next twelve months, management estimats t
approximately $35,288,000 of tax contingencies ballsettled primarily through agreement with theaathorities
for tax positions related to valuation matters;rsmatters which are common to multinational comesnihe
expected cash payment related to the settlemehesé contingencies is not significant.

The Company conducts business globally and consdlgufiées income tax returns in numerous jurisiins
including those listed in the following table. $talso routinely subject to audit in these androtbentries. The
Company is no longer subject to audit in its m@joisdictions for periods prior to fiscal year 200he open years,
by major jurisdiction, are as follows:

Jurisdiction Fiscal Year

United States (federal and ste 2004- 200¢
Germany 2006- 200¢
United Kingdom 2007- 200¢
Netherland: 2003- 200¢
Belgium 1999- 200¢
Singapore 2002- 200¢
Taiwan 2004- 200¢
Hong Kong 2003- 200¢
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10. Pension and retirement plans
Pension Plan

The Company’s noncontributory defined benefit penglan (the “Plan”) covers substantially all doties
employees. Employees are eligible to participat&@Plan following the first year of service dyyiwhich they
worked at least 1,000 hours. The Plan providesiddfbenefits pursuant to a cash balance featureetwha
participant accumulates a benefit based upon a&pgrge of current salary, which varies with age, iaterest
credits. The Company uses June 30 as the measurdaterior determining pension expense and beollijations
for each fiscal year. Not included in the tabulasi@nd discussions that follow are pension plaredin
non-U.S. subsidiaries, which are not material.

The following tables outline changes in benefitigétions, plan assets and the funded status d?ldreas of
the end of fiscal 2009 and 2008:

June 27, June 28,
2009 2008
(Thousands)

Changes in benefit obligatior

Benefit obligations at beginning of ye $279,14: $276,83t

Service cos 16,20¢ 14,735

Interest cos 18,17¢ 16,76¢

Plan amendmen (55,190 —

Actuarial loss (gain 24,50¢ (14,21¢)

Benefits paic (19,519 (14,985

Benefit obligations at end of ye $263,32:  $279,14:
Change in plan asse

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of \ $252,54° $255,81!

Actual return on plan asse (49,407 (23,769

Benefits paic (19,519 (14,985

Contributions 75,29¢ 35,481

Fair value of plan assets at end of y $258,93. $252,54°
Information on funded status of plan and the amoeicwgnized

Funded status of the pli $ (4,399 $(26,599)

Unrecognized net actuarial lo 181,14° 83,02¢

Unamortized prior service cre( (55,190

Prepaid pension cost recognized in the consolidadéghce shee $121,56: $ 56,43:

During fiscal 2009, the Plan was amended effectiug 1, 2009 to freeze future benefit accruals for
compensation paid by the Company on or after JuB009. The Plan was also amended to change #estcredi
applied to participants’ cash balances to compthapplicable regulations resulting in an unamediprior service
credit of $55,190,000 which reduced benefit obliyea outstanding at the end of fiscal 2009.

Included in “accumulated other comprehensive incomdune 27, 2009 is a pre-tax charge of $1810D07of
net actuarial losses which have not yet been rézedrin net periodic pension cost, of which $5,008,is expecte
to be recognized as a component of net periodiefitarost during fiscal 2010. Also included is &tax credit of
$55,190,000 of prior service credit which has rettlyeen recognized in net periodic pension cosishiwh
$4,884,000 is expected to be recognized as a coempofinet periodic benefit costs during fiscal 201
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Weighted average assumptions used to calculatargdtpresent values of benefit obligations aréolisws:

2009 2008
Discount rate 6.25% 6.7%%
Weighted average assumptions used to determirteenefit costs are as follows:
2009 2008
Discount rate 6.75% 6.25%
Expected return on plan ass 9.0(% 9.0(%

The Company bases its discount rate on a hypo#heiistfolio of bonds rated Aa by Moody'’s Investor
Services or AA by Standard & Poors. The bonds sadefor this determination are based upon the estichamour
and timing of services of the pension plan.

Components of net periodic pension costs durindasiethree fiscal years are as follows:

Years Ended

June 27, June 28, June 30,
2009 2008 2007
(Thousands)
Service cos $ 16,208 $14,737 $ 14,86
Interest cos 18,17¢ 16,76¢ 15,73:
Expected return on plan ass (26,539 (23,33) (20,499
Recognized net actuarial la 2,32t 3,09¢ 2,72z
Amortization of prior service crec — — (45)
Net periodic pension co $10,16¢ $11,26F $12,77¢

The Company expects to make contributions to tha Bf approximately $4,750,000 during fiscal 2018e
Company made contributions of $75,299,000, inclgdirvoluntary contribution of $53,000,000, in fis2&09, and
$35,481,000 in fiscal 2008.

Benefit payments are expected to be paid to ppaiits as follows for the next five fiscal years #mal
aggregate for the five years thereafter (in thodsan

2010 $ 22,72(
2011 17,26
2012 17,49;
2013 19,78t¢
2014 20,09:
2015 through 201 103,35:

The Plan’s assets are held in trust and were adldcas follows as of the June 30 measurement dafescal
2009 and 2008:

2009 2008
Equity securitie: 7% T77%
Debt securitie: 23 23

The general investment objectives of the Plan@amaximize returns through a diversified investmgortfolio
in order to earn annualized returns that meetdhg-term cost of funding the Plan’s pension oblayat while
maintaining reasonable and prudent levels of file target rate of return on Plan assets is cuyréft, which
represents the average rate of earnings expecttfttdands invested or to be invested to provideHe
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benefits included in the benefit obligation. Théisamption has been determined by combining expectat
regarding future rates of return for the investnantfolio along with the historical and expectéstidbution of
investments by asset class and the historical cdteturn for each of those asset classes. Theofrégjuity
securities is typically diversified to obtain a idkeof domestic and international investments caxgenultiple
industries. The Plan assets do not include anyrmabievestments in Avnet common stock. The Plam&stments
in debt securities are also diversified across paottlic and private fixed income portfolios. Thermany’s current
target allocation for the investment portfolio @ £quity securities, both domestic and internaipto represent
approximately 76% of the portfolio with a policyrfminimum investment in equity securities of 60%lwé portfolic
and a maximum of 92%. The majority of the remairpogtfolio of investments is to be invested in fii@come
securities.

401(k) Plan

The Company has a 401(k) plan that covers subatlyrail domestic employees. During fiscal 200902@&nd
2007, the expense related to the 401(k) plan wamaterial.
11. Long-term leases

The Company leases many of its operating facildied is also committed under lease agreements for
transportation and operating equipment. Rent expeharged to operations during the last three yieas follows:

Years Ended
June 27, June 28, June 30,

2009 2008 2007
(Thousands)
Buildings $58,21: $53,377 $43,06:
Equipment 6,16¢ 5,79¢ 5,42¢

$64,38: $59,17¢  $48,48¢

The aggregate future minimum operating lease comerits, principally for buildings, in fiscal 2010 dlugh
2014 and thereafter (through 2019), are as follpwthousands):

2010 $ 77,16¢
2011 57,75(
2012 44 ,33:
2013 33,977
2014 20,52
Thereaftel 31,54¢

Total $265,29!

12. Stock-based compensation plans

The Company measures all share-based paymentsdiimglgrants of employee stock options, at faiugand
recognizes related expense in the consolidateenséatt of operations over the service period (gdigete vesting
period). During fiscal 2009, 2008 and 2007, the @any expensed $18,269,000, $25,389,000 and $20(Z}0,
respectively, for all stock-based compensation dwaar

Stock plan

The Company has one stock compensation plan, @ 2fbck Compensation Plan (“2006 Plan”) which was
approved by the shareholders in fiscal 2007. T Zlan has a termination date of November 8, 201tb
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2,530,617 shares were available for grant at Jun@@?9. At June 27, 2009, the Company had 8,357%B@res of
common stock reserved for stock option and stockritive programs.

Stock options

Option grants under the 2006 Plan have a contrblifisaf ten years, vest 25% on each anniversémhe gran
date, commencing with the first anniversary, aralige for a minimum exercise price of 100% of faiarket value
at the date of grant. Pre-tax compensation expasseciated with stock options during fiscal 20@)&and 2007
were $4,245,000, $6,155,000 and $8,356,000, resphct

The fair value of options granted is estimatedhendate of grant using the Black-Scholes modeldasghe
assumptions in the following table. The assumptiorihe expected term is based on evaluationsstbhical and
expected future employee exercise behavior. Thefee interest rate is based on the US Treasueg & the date
of grant with maturity dates approximately equathte expected term at the grant date. The histor@atility of
Avnet's stock is used as the basis for the votatdssumption.

Years Ended
June 27 June 28 June 30

2009 2008 2007
Expected term (year: 5.7t 6.C 6.C
Risk-free interest rat 3.4% 4.€% 4.8%
Weighted average volatilit 30.7% 35.¢% 40.1%
Dividend yield — — —
The following is a summary of the changes in ouiditag options for fiscal 2009:
Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining
Exercise Contractual Aggregate
Shares Price Life Intrinsic Value
Outstanding at June 28, 20 3,585,67! $ 20.21 61 Month:
Granted 405,71¢  $ 28.41 110 Month:
Exercisec (31,297 $ 17.9¢ 40 Month:
Forfeited or expirel (78,299 ¢ 21.9¢ 18 Month:
Outstanding at June 27, 20 3,881,801 $ 21.0¢ 56 Month: $  26,57¢
Exercisable at June 27, 20 3,060,13i $ 19.2¢ 45 Monthe  $  26,57¢

The weighted-average grant-date fair values ofkstmtions granted during fiscal 2009, 2008, and72@8@re
$10.21, $14.90, and $8.88, respectively. The totehsic values of share options exercised dufiscal 2009, 200t
and 2007 were $3,000, $109,000 and $524,000, resplgc
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The following is a summary of the changes in nostee stock options for the fiscal year ended Juh@09:

Weighted

Average

Grant-Date

Shares Fair Value

Non-vested stock options at June 28, 2 816,54: $ 12.9¢
Grantec 405,71« $ 10.2]
Vested (399,149 $ 13.9-
Forfeited (1,440 $ 8.3t
Non-vested stock options at June 27, 2 821,66¢f $ 11.1¢

As of June 27, 2009, there was $9,152,000 of totedcognized compensation cost related tovesied awarc
granted under the option plans, which is expeatdzbtrecognized over a weighted-average period3o§jé&ars. The
total fair values of shares vested during fiscl2®008 and 2007 were $5,555,000, $4,969,000 a&ad$,000,
respectively.

Cash received from option exercises during fis€8I® 2008 and 2007 totaled $563,000, $5,111,000 and
$54,357,000, respectively. The impact of these cashipts is included in “Other, net” in financiagtivities in the
accompanying consolidated statements of cash flows.

Incentive shares

Delivery of incentive shares, and the associatedpamsation expense, is spread equally over a fae-period
and is subject to the employee’s continued employrbg the Company. As of June 27, 2009, 1,139,485
previously awarded have not yet been deliveredi®ceompensation expense associated with thisgnogvas
$15,843,000, $12,074,000 and $8,231,000 for figeats 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

The following is a summary of the changes in nostee incentive shares for the fiscal year endeeé 2in

2009:
Weighted
Average
Grant-Date
Shares Fair Value
Non-vested incentive shares at June 28, - 1,035,14¢ $ 25.0¢
Granted 697,80 $ 28.8(
Vested (503,96) $ 24.9¢
Forfeited (89,749 $ 27.1¢
Non-vested incentive shares at June 27, 2 1,139.24. $ 27.2Z

As of June 27, 2009, there was $29,372,000 of tote#cognized compensation cost related to noregest
incentive shares, which is expected to be recogrixer a weighted-average period of 2.6 years.totat fair
values of shares vested during fiscal 2009, 20082807 were $12,588,000, $9,097,000 and $6,027,000,
respectively.

Performance shares

Eligible employees, including Avnet’s executiveio#irs, may receive a portion of their long-termiggbased
incentive compensation through the performanceespargram, which allows for the award of sharestotk based
upon performance-based criteria (“Performance SHpréhe Performance Shares will provide for theuance to
each grantee of a number of shares of Avnet's comstmck at the end of a three-year period based thpo
Company’s achievement of performance goals estauipy the Compensation Committee of the Board of
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Directors for each three-year period. These perdmoe goals are based upon a three-year cumulativeaise in the
Company'’s absolute economic profit, as definedr tive prior three-year period and the increas@énGompany’s
economic profit relative to the increase in theremoic profit of a peer group of companies. Durirsgdl 2009,
2008 and 2007, the Company granted 246,650, 17@B8Q238,795 performance shares, respectivelye tonarde:
to participants in the Performance Share progrdwhich 38,740 have been forfeited. The actual amof
Performance Shares issued at the end of the tlagepgriod is determined based upon the levellieaement of
the defined performance goals and can range fronto0200% of the initial award. The Company antitgsassuing
113,130 shares in the first quarter of fiscal 2B&8ed upon the goals achieved at the end of the R8Gormance
Share plan three-year period which ended June@R. During fiscal 2009, the Company recorded ataxenet
credit of $1,819,000 in “selling, general and adsinative expenses” associated with the Perform&tzge plans
based upon actual performance under the 2007 pibased upon the probability assessment of thainémg
plans. During fiscal 2008 and 2007, the Companggeized pre-tax compensation expense associatbdhveit
Performance Shares of $6,380,000 and $7,025,06§@ectvely.

Outside director stock bonus plan

Non-employee directors are awarded shares eqadiixed dollar amount of Avnet common stock upoegirth
re-election each year, as part of their directangensation package. Directors may elect to redbige
compensation in the form of common stock undeQhtside Director Stock Bonus Plan or they may electefer
their compensation to be paid in common stocklatea date. During fiscal 2009, 2008 and 2007, tpre-
compensation cost associated with the outsidetdirstock bonus plan was $960,000, $780,000 an8,$68,
respectively.

Employee stock purchase plan

The Company has an Employee Stock Purchase PI&PPE under the terms of which eligible employekes o
the Company are offered options to purchase slodirgnet common stock at a price equal to 95% efftir
market value on the last day of each monthly dffgperiod. Based on the terms of the ESPP, Avnattisequired
to record expense in the consolidated statemertdperftions related to the ESPP.

The Company has a policy of repurchasing sharée@popen market to satisfy shares purchased uhder t
ESPP, and expects future repurchases during 28d4l to be similar to the number of shares repwethauring
fiscal 2009, based on current estimates of pagtmp in the program. During fiscal 2009, 2008 2067, there
were 100,206, 70,553 and 96,013 shares, respggtofetommon stock issued under the ESPP program.

13. Contingent liabilities

From time to time, the Company may become liabkl wéspect to pending and threatened litigatian, ta
environmental and other matters. Management doeamicipate that any contingent matters will havmaterial
adverse impact on the Company’s financial condjtiguidity or results of operations.

14. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed based onedlyhted average number of common shares outstaadithg
excludes any potential dilution. Diluted earnings phare reflect potential dilution from the exsecor conversion
of securities into common stock.
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Years Ended

June 27, June 28, June 30,
2009 2008 2007
(Thousands, except per share data)
Numerator:
Net income (loss) for basic and diluted earningsspare $(1,122,46) $499,08: $393,06°
Denominator
Weighted average common shares for basic earniogs) per shar 150,89¢ 150,25( 148,03.
Net effect of dilutive stock options and stock ati& — 1,60¢ 1,197
Net effect of 2% Convertible Debentures due Marsh2D34 — 562 384
Weighted average common shares for diluted earmgagshare 150,89¢ 152,42( 149,61.
Basic earnings (loss) per shi $ (749 $ 332 $ 2.6F
Diluted earnings (loss) per she $ (7449 $ 3271 $ 268

For fiscal 2009, dilutive effects of stock optiostock awards and shares issuable upon converktbe o
Debentures were excluded from the computation ofiegs per diluted share because the Company rexagya ne
loss and inclusion of these items would have hadrdirdilutive effect. In addition, as of the enfdfiscal 2009, the
Debentures were no longer outstanding (see Note 7).

Options to purchase 12,000 and 89,000 shares @¥dh@any’s stock were excluded from the calculatioh
diluted earnings per shares in fiscal 2008 and 2@¥pectively, because the exercise price foretlgpsions was
above the average market price of the Commastgck during those periods. Inclusion of theg@ap in the dilute
earnings per share calculation would have had trddntive effect.

For fiscal 2008 and 2007, shares issuable uponersion of the Debentures were excluded from the
computation of earnings per diluted share as dtrethe Company’s election to satisfy the priradiportion of the
Debentures in cash. For the conversion premiumageonivhich would be settled in shares, the shassable upon
conversion were included from the calculation beeathe average stock price for those periods wawseethe
conversion price per share of $33.84.

15. Additional cash flow information

Other non-cash and reconciling items consist ofdaHewing:

Years Ended
June 27, June 28, June 30,

2009 2008 2007
(Thousands)
Provision for doubtful accoun $32,777 $12,31¢ $17,38¢
Periodic pension costs (Note 1 10,16¢ 11,26¢ 12,77¢
Other, ne (4,529 612 577
Total $38,41¢ $24,19: $30,74*

68




Table of Contents

AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Interest and income taxes paid during the lasetlisars were as follows:

Years Ended

June 27, June 28, June 30,
2009 2008 2007
(Thousands)
Interest $ 66,89t $ 71,54¢ $82,62:
Income taxe: $126,01( $170,76: $67,57¢

Non-cash activity during fiscal 2009 included amisurecorded through comprehensive income and,ftirere
are not included in the consolidated statemengashdlows. Fiscal 2009 included an adjustment ¢oeiase pension
liabilities (including non-US pension liabilitiesf $42,948,000 which was recorded net of relatddrded tax
benefit of $16,767,000 in other comprehensive inegsee Notes 4 and 10). Other non-cash activiidaded
assumed debt of $146,831,000 and assumed liabitifi$261,434,000 as a result of the acquisitiamspeted in
fiscal 2009 (see Note 2).

Non-cash activity during fiscal 2008 included amisurecorded through comprehensive income and,ftrere
are not included in the consolidated statemenashdlows. Fiscal 2008 included an adjustment ¢toeiase pension
liabilities (including non-US pension liabilitiesf $27,783,000 which was recorded net of relatddrded tax
benefit of $10,901,000 in other comprehensive inegsee Notes 4 and 10). Other non-cash activiigaded
assumed debt of $46,887,000 and assumed liabititi$$40,111,000 as a result of the acquisitiomapeted in
fiscal 2008 (see Note 2).

Non-cash activity during fiscal 2007 resulting frolne acquisition of Access (see Note 2) consisted o
$344,132,000 of assumed liabilities. Other non-@aglvities included amounts recorded through ca@hensive
income and, therefore, are not included in the alisted statement of cash flows. Fiscal 2007 idetuan
adjustment to reduce pension liabilities (includiman-US pension liabilities) of $10,720,000 which wasar@ed ne
of related deferred tax benefit of $4,181,000 imeotcomprehensive income (see Notes 4 and 10).

16. Segment information

Electronics Marketing and Technology Solutionstageoverall segments upon which management primaril
evaluates the operations of the Company and upachwhanagement bases its operating decisions. finerehe
segment data that follows reflects these two se¢gnen

EM markets and sells semiconductors and intercdnpeassive and electromechanical devices. EM msudmed
sells its products and services to a diverse custdimse serving many end-markets including autamoti
communications, computer hardware and peripherdistrial and manufacturing, medical equipmentitanyf and
aerospace. EM also offers an array of value-addadces that help customers evaluate, design-irpamclre
electronic components throughout the lifecyclehaiit technology products and systems, includingplsuphain
management, engineering design, inventory replemast systems, connector and cable assembly and
semiconductor programming.

TS markets and sells mid- to high-end servers, statage, software, and the services required pdeiment
these products and solutions to the value-addedleeshannel. TS also focuses on the worldwidgioail
equipment manufacturers (“OEM”) market for compgttachnology, system integrators and non-PC OEds th
require embedded systems and solutions includiggearing, product prototyping, integration andesthalue-
added services.
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Years Ended

June 27, June 28, June 30,
2009 2008 2007
(Millions)
Sales:
Electronics Marketing $ 9,192.¢ $10,326.8 $ 9,679.¢
Technology Solutions(2 7,037.. 7,625.¢ 6,001.:

$16,229.¢  $17,952.  $15,681.:

Operating income (loss

Electronics Marketing $ 354t $ 5644 $ 529.¢
Technology Solution 201. 261.( 232.2
Corporate (64.8) (76.7) (76.9
491.1 749.3 685.7

Impairment charges (Note (1,411.) — —
Restructuring, integration and other charges (NG (99.9) (38.9) (7.9
$(1,019.) $ 710¢4 $ 6781

Assets:

Electronics Marketing $ 3,783.c $5,140.8 $ 4,604.
Technology Solution 2,036.¢ 2,785.. 2,361.
Corporate 453.: 274.5 389.2

$ 6,273 $8,200.. $ 7,355.

Capital expenditure:

Electronics Marketin $ 611 $ 464 $ 42¢
Technology Solution 38.t 28.2 6.2
Corporate 10.€ 15.1 9.7

$ 110z $ 897 $  58.k

Depreciation & amortization expens

Electronics Marketing $ 26& $ 241 $ 27¢
Technology Solution 18.: 13.C 11.1
Corporate 21.C 22.1 14.¢

$ 661 $ 592 ¢ 53¢

Sales, by geographic area, are as follc

Americas(2) $ 7572, $8578! $ 7,826.
EMEA(3) 5,268. 5,958.¢ 4,885’
Asia/Pacific(4) 3,389.: 3,415.¢ 2,969.:

$16,229.¢  $17,952.  $15,681.:

70




Table of Contents

AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Years Ended
June 27 June 28 June 30

2009 2008 2007
(Millions)
Property, plant and equipment, net, by geograpiga:
Americas(5) $183.¢ $148.¢ $112t
EMEA(6) 101.: 64.¢ 55.2
Asia/Pacific 20.t 13.4 11.7

$305.7 $227.z2 $179:t

(1) As discussed in Note 1, the Company reviewed ithateof recording revenue related to the salesippler
service contracts and determined that such salesaw be classified on a net revenue basis rétiear on a
gross basis beginning the third quarter of fis€72

(2) Includes sales in the United States of $6.8 bi/llbn8 billion and $7.2 billion for fiscal year 2802008 and
2007, respectively

(3) Includes sales in Germany and the United Kingdo®1o8 billion and $1.0 billion, respectively, fas¢al 2009.
Includes sales in Germany of $2.2 billion and $iilBon for fiscal 2008 and 2007, respectively. &ain the
United Kingdom in fiscal year 2008 and 2007 wereansignificant component of consolidated se

(4) Includes sales of $990 million, $1.2 billion and®8nillion in Taiwan, Hong Kong and Singapore, exgjvely,
for fiscal 2009. Includes sales of $1.0 billion4%$9million and $895 million in Taiwan, Hong Kongdan
Singapore, respectively, for fiscal 2008. Includakes of $864 million, $797 million and $760 million Taiwan
Hong Kong and Singapore, respectively, for fis@02

(5) Includes property, plant and equipment, net, ofa$d Tillion, $145.4 million and $110.0 million ihe United
States for fiscal 2009, 2008 and 2007, respecti

(6) Includes property, plant and equipment, net, of.$4dillion, $24.2 million and $26.8 million in Geany,
Belgium and the United Kingdom, respectively, fiecl 2009. Fiscal 2008 and 2007 includes propetant
and equipment, net, of $31.8 million and $26.8ionil] respectively, in Germany, and $16.8 millioman
$13.4 million, respectively, in Belgium. Properpfant and equipment, net, in the United Kingdomewot a
significant component of consolidated propertynpknd equipment, ne

The Company manages its business based upon thetingeesults of its two operating groups before
impairment charges (see Note 6) and restructuitmggration and other charges (see Note 17). talfig009, 2008
and 2007, presented above, approximate unallopaéethx impairment charges and restructuring, natégn and
other items related to EM and TS, respectively endrarges of $1,116,335,000 and $389,561,000aal f&009,
charges of $12,183,000 and $17,787,000 in fisca82and a benefit of ($5,201,000) and charges 322,000 in
fiscal 2007. The remaining restructuring, integratand other items in each year relate to corp@etieities.

17. Restructuring, integration and other charges
Fiscal 2009

In response to the decline in sales and grosstpnaiigin, the Company initiated significant costuetion
actions over the past four quarters in order tbgeds expense structure with market conditiohs.a result, the
Company incurred restructuring, integration andeottharges totaling $99,342,000 pre-tax, $65,3100tr tax
and $0.43 per share during fiscal 2009 relatetieabst reductions as well as integration cosiscaaed with
recently acquired businesses. The Company alsodeda reversal of $2,514,000 severance, leasetand
reserves that were deemed excessive and creditegstoucturing, integration and other chargestégmation costs
of $11,160,000 included professional fees, facitityving costs, travel, meeting, marketing and comigation
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costs that were incrementally incurred as a redutie acquisition integration efforts. Other iterasorded to
“restructuring, integration and other charges” uidgld a net credit of $1,201,000 related to acqoisédjustments
for which the purchase allocation period had closddss of $3,091,000 resulting from a declinthenmarket valu
of certain small investments that the Company tigted, and $3,830,000 of incremental intangibletass
amortization. The costs incurred during fiscal 2688 presented in the following table.

Year Ended

June 27, 200!

(Thousands)

Restructuring charge $ 84,97¢
Integration cost 11,16(
Reversal of excess prior year restructuring rese (2,519
Prior year acquisition adjustmet (1,207
Loss on investmet 3,091
Incremental amortizatio 3,83(
Total restructuring, integration and other chat $ 99,34.

The restructuring charges and activity relatecdhéodost reductions are presented in the followadet

Severance Facility
Reserves Exit Costs Other Total
(Thousands)

Fiscal 2009 pi-tax charge: $50,83( $29,63: $4,51¢ $84,97¢
Amounts utilizec (31,649 (3,126 (2,149 (36,917
Other, principally foreign currency translati 284 17z 86 543

Balance at June 27, 20 $19,47. $26,67¢ $2,45¢ $48,60:

Of the $84,976,000 of restructuring charges inaidering fiscal 2009, $55,318,000 and $29,179,@&xed tc
EM and TS, respectively, with the remaining atttéile to corporate. Severance charges related sommel
reductions of approximately 1,900 employees in aistrative, finance and sales functions in coneectiith the
cost reduction actions in all three regions of bhmterating groups with employee reductions of axipnately 1,400
in EM, 400 in TS and the remaining from centralizeghport functions. Exit costs for vacated fa@htrelated to 29
facilities in the Americas, 13 in EMEA and threeAisia/Pac. Other charges included fixed asset widtens and
contractual obligations with no on-going benefithe Company. Cash payments of $36,187,000 aected in the
amounts utilized during fiscal 2009 and the renmajramounts were related to non-cash asset writ@slofs of
June 27, 2009, management expects the majorityeafemaining severance reserves to be utilizethdgnd of
fiscal 2010, the remaining facility exit cost reses to be utilized by the end of fiscal 2014 artteotontractual
obligations to be utilized by the end of fiscal 201

Fiscal 2008

During fiscal 2008, the Company incurred restruogirintegration and other charges totaling $38,0d@ pre-
tax, $31,469,000 after tax and $0.21 per sharediluged basis related to cost reductions requiogdhprove the
performance at certain business units and integratsts associated with recently acquired busisess addition,
the Company recorded reversals of excess resezlaged to prior year restructuring activity andareted
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charges for an indemnification payment related poiar year acquisition and costs associated iighreassessment
of existing environmental matters. A summary ofstheharges is presented in the following table:

Year Ended

June 27, 200

(Thousands)

Restructuring charge $ 23,28t
Integration cost 7,38¢
Reversal of excess prior year restructuring rese (709
Sut-total 29,97(
Indemnification paymer 6,00t
Environmental cost 2,96
Total restructuring, integration and other chat $ 38,94.

The restructuring charges related primarily to sewee and facility exit costs. The integration sastorded
during fiscal 2008 included professional fees,lfgcmoving costs, travel, meeting, marketing aoghenunication
costs that were incrementally incurred as a reguhtie integration efforts of the recently acquiteginesses (see
Note 2). The total of the restructuring charges iatefration costs, net of reversals, amounte®&%70,000 pI-
tax, $21,938,000 after tax and $0.15 per sharedituged basis. In addition, the Company recordé®®5,000 pre-
tax, $7,718,000 after tax and $0.05 per sharediluted basis related to the settlement of an ind&eation of a
former executive of an acquired company, which n@stax deductible. Finally, the Company recordéditonal
environmental costs associated with the reassessrheristing environmental matters which amourtted
$2,967,000 pre-tax, $1,813,000 after tax and $pedishare on a diluted basis.

Severance charges related to personnel reductfangen350 employees in administrative, finance saleés
functions in connection with the cost reductionpliemented during the second half of the fiscal yBarsonnel
reductions consisted of 100 employees in all thegéns of EM and over 250 in the Americas and EMEgions
of TS. The facility exit charges related to fivdicd facilities where facilities have been vacatetijch included twc
facilities in the EM EMEA region, two in the TS EMEegion and one in the TS Asia region. These itgaéixit
charges consisted of reserves for remaining leéalsiities and the write-down of leasehold improwents and other
fixed assets. Other charges incurred included aottal obligations with no on-going benefit to empany.

The restructuring charges and activity relatecdhéodost reductions are presented in the followaidet

Severanci Facility
Reserves Exit Costs Other Total
(Thousands)

Balance at June 28, 20 $10,47° $ 2,83: $1,13( $14,44(
Amounts utilizec (6,917 (857) (740 (8,50¢)
Adjustments (1,459 (163) a7y (2,799
Other, principally foreign currency translati (70€) (357) (105) (1,162)

Balance at June 27, 20 $ 1,39 $ 1468 $ 114 $ 2,97

The total amounts utilized during the fiscal yeer presented in the preceding table, consiste8,d468,000 in
cash payments and $54,000 for the non-cash writmslof assets. As of June 27, 2009, managementexie
majority of the remaining severance reserves totitieed in fiscal 2010, the remaining facility éxiost reserves to
be utilized by the end of fiscal 2013 and othert@miual obligations to be utilized by the endis€#l 2010.
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Fiscal 2007 and prior restructuring reserves

During the second half of fiscal 2007, the Competyrred certain restructuring, integration andeotitems
primarily as a result of cost-reduction initiativiesall three regions and the acquisition of Acomsecember 31,
2006 (see Note 2). The Company established andwaggpplans for cost reduction initiatives acrogs@ompany
and approved plans to integrate the acquired Admesisess into Avnet's existing TS operations, Whi@as
completed as of the end of fiscal 2007.

During fiscal 2007, the Company recorded restrurcgucharges of $13,626,000 and also recorded in
“restructuring, integration and other charges” Acimtegration costs of $7,331,000, the write-dofv$i661,000
related to an Avnet-owned building in EMEA, and theersal of $1,739,000 related primarily to excasgerance
and lease reserves, certain of which were prewaesthblished through “restructuring, integratiowl ather
charges” in prior fiscal periods. Partially offsetf these charges was a pes-benefit of $12,526,000 which resul
from the favorable outcome of a contingent liapicquired in connection with an acquisition corntgdein a prior
year. The impact of both the restructuring, intéigraand other charges and the acquisition relbagsgefit recorde:
during fiscal 2007 was $7,353,000 pre-tax, $5,289 &fter tax and $0.03 per share on a diluted basis

Severance charges related to Avnet personnel liedsaif 96 employees in all three regions of EM and
42 employees in TS Americas and EMEA (a total & &Bployees) in administrative, finance and salestfons
associated with the cost reduction initiatives iempénted during the third and fourth quarter ofdist007 as part of
the Company’s continuing focus on operational &fficy and Avnet employees who were deemed reduradaat
result of the Access integration. The facility ectitarges related to vacated Avnet facilities inAneericas and
Japan. Other charges consisted primarily of ITteeland other asset write-downs and other cornteattination
costs. Included in the asset write-downs were Agpéttvare in the Americas that was made redundaatrasult of
the acquisition, Avnet system hardware in EMEA thias replaced with higher capacity hardware to leand
increased capacity due to the addition of Accesd the write-down of certain capitalized constroictcosts
abandoned as a result of the acquisition. Othengelsancurred included contractual obligationstezlao abandont
activities, the write-down of an Avnet-owned buildiin EMEA and Access integration costs. The waiégvn of the
building was based on management’s estimate afuhent market value and possible selling pricé pfselling
costs, for the property. The integration coststeeldo incremental salary costs, primarily of Accpsrsonnel, who
were retained following the close of the acquisitimlely to assist in the integration of Acces3 systems,
administrative and logistics operations into thoBAvnet. These personnel had no other meaningiytd-day
operational responsibilities outside of the intéigraefforts. Also included in integration costg @ertain
professional fees, travel, meeting, marketing avdraunication costs that were incrementally incuselgly relate
to the Access integration efforts.

In addition to the fiscal 2007 restructuring adtivthe Company incurred restructuring charges uttdee
separate restructuring plans prior to fiscal 200 table below presents the activity during fis2@09 related to
reserves established as part of these restructplamg:

Memec Other FY 2004

Restructuring charges FY 2007 FY 200¢€ FY 200¢ and 200 Total

(Thousands)

Balance at June 28, 20 $ 54¢ $ 45 $ 794 $2571 $3,95¢
Amounts utilizec (269) 27 (37€) (1,116 (1,789
Adjustments (60) — — — (60)
Other, principally foreign currency translati (30 (6) (5) (269 (309

Balance at June 27, 20 $ 19¢ $ 12 $ 412 $1,192 $1,807
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As of June 27, 2009, the remaining FY 2007 resemiated to severance which management expectsdize u
by the end of 2010. The remaining Memec FY 2006me=s related to facility exit costs, which managahexpect
to utilize by fiscal 2010. The Other FY 2006 reniagnreserves related to facility exit costs, whichnagement
expects to utilize by fiscal 2013. The remainingerves for FY 2004 and 2003 restructuring actisitedated to
contractual lease commitments, substantially alleich the Company expects to utilize by the enfiszfal 2010,
although a small portion of the remaining resereégte to lease payouts that extend to fiscal 2012.

18. Summary of quarterly results (unaudited):

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year(a)
(Millions, except per share amounts
2009(b)
Sales $4,494F $4,269.. $3,700.¢ $3,765..  $16,229.!
Gross profit 584.2 533t 462.5 442.¢ 2,023.(
Net income (loss 92.¢ (1,202.9) 18.C (30.9 (1,122.9
Diluted earnings (loss) per she 0.61 (7.9¢) 0.1 (0.20 (7.49
2008(c)
Sales $4,098.° $4,753.. $4,421.¢ $4,679.. $17,952.
Gross profit 526.5 596.7 578.7 611.¢ 2,313.°
Net income 105.5 1422 107.2 144.1 499.1
Diluted earnings per sha 0.6¢ 0.9: 0.71 0.9t 3.27

(a) Quarters may not add to the year due to rount

(b) First quarter results were impacted by restructuiegration and other charges which totaled $ifilidon pre-
tax, $8.9 million after tax and $0.06 per sharadtiluted basis and consisted of restructuringgretion
charges of $5.1 million, incremental amortizatisppense of $3.8 million and other charges of $1.Hligni
Items impacting second quarter fiscal 2009 resnttsided goodwill and intangible asset impairmemrges of
$1.35 billion pre-tax, $1.31 billion after tax afil.72 per share, restructuring and integrationggaof
$11.1 million pre-tax, $8.0 million after tax an@.85 per share, and other charges of $2.0 millres and after
tax and $0.01 per share. The Company also recafjainet tax benefit of $27.3 million, or $0.18 phare on a
diluted basis. Items impacting third quarter inéddestructuring and integration charges of $3dlifom pre-
tax, $20.8 million after tax and $0.14 per sharaahluted basis, and acquisition adjustments detef the
allocation period of $2.0 million pre-tax, $1.5 hah after tax and $0.01 per share on a dilutedsbahe
Company also recognized additional tax reservégtdf million and $0.03 per share on a diluted bfsis
contingencies related to a prior acquisition péytiaffset by a tax benefit for interest on a tattement. ltems
impacting the fourth quarter fiscal 2009 totale@%8 million pre-tax, $78.9 after tax and $0.52 gieaire and
consisted of goodwill impairment charges of $62iBion, restructuring and integration charges o6$million
pre-tax, income of $3.2 million pre-tax relatedatmjuisition adjustments recognized after the erttief
allocation period and a gain of $14.3 million pag-tissociated with the prior sale of its equityeistment in
Calence LLC
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(c) Second quarter results include a gain on salesgta®f $7.5 million préax, $6.3 million after tax and $0.04 j
share on a diluted basis related to $3.0 millionaftingent purchase price proceeds in connectitmanprior
sale of a business and $4.5 million gain on sakemfilding which was not taxable. Results fortthied quarter
include restructuring, integration and other charge$10.9 million pre-tax, $7.5 million after tard $0.05 per
share on a diluted basis. Results for the fourtrtgu include restructuring, integration and ottiearges of
$19.1 million pretax, $14.4 million after tax and $0.10 per sharediluted basis, an indemnification settlen
amounting to $6.0 million pre-tax, $7.7 million @ftax and $0.05 per share on a diluted basistpadormer
executive of an acquired company, environmentaisoofs$3.0 million pre-tax, $1.8 million after taxnd $0.01
per share on a diluted basis associated with logtanding environmental matters, the gain on ciibe
Company’s investment in Calence LLC in the founttager amounting to $42.4 million pre-tax, $25.9liom
after tax and $0.17 per share on a diluted basisarincome tax net benefit of $13.9 million anddB80per shar
on a diluted basis from the settlement of a taxtautl adjustment to tax contingencies. The totgddct of all
the items discussed above on the twelve monthsdehd®e 28, 2008 was $11.0 million pre-tax gain,
$14.7 million after tax gain and $0.09 per sharaaliluted basis
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Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E
Additions
Balance al Charged tc Charged to Balance at
Beginning  Costs and Other Accounts — Deductions — End of
Description of Period Expenses Describe Describe Period
(Thousands)
Fiscal 2009
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 76,69( $ 32,777 $ 2,84%a) $ (26,83)(b) $ 85,47"
Valuation allowance on foreign tax lo:
carryforwards (Note ¢ 344,03: 5,691 — (34,71)(c) 315,02(
Fiscal 2008
Allowance for doubtful accoun 102,12: 12,31¢ 1,351(a) (39,097 (b) 76,69(
Valuation allowance on foreign tax loss
carryforwards (Note ¢ 346,94 14,46: — (17,376(d) 344,03«
Fiscal 2007
Allowance for doubtful accoun 88,98: 17,38¢ 23,31 (a) (27,569 (b) 102,12:
Valuation allowance on foreign tax lo:
carryforwards (Note ¢ 270,74! 7,20¢ 100,61{e) (31,62)(f) 346,94

(a) Includes allowance for doubtful accounts as a tesftdcquisitions (see Note -
(b) Uncollectible accounts written of

(c) Includes the impact of deferred tax rate changdslaa translation impact of changes in foreign euicy
exchange rate:

(d) Includes the impact of deferred tax rate chandpestranslation impact of changes in foreign curyesxchange
rates, the release of valuation allowance on ojperadx loss carryforwards recorded to goodwill dmelrelease
of valuation allowance against the associated teddax benefit as it was determined the operatirdoss
carryforwards cannot be utilize

(e) Includes a valuation allowance established agaimgtferred tax asset recognized in fiscal 2

(f Includes the release of valuation allowances agajmsrating tax loss carryforwards which were msliin
fiscal 2007.
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Exhibit
Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Comp@ncorporated herein by reference to the Company’
Current Report oForm &K dated February 12, 2001, Exhibit 3
By-laws of the Company, effective August 10, 20ic¢rporated herein by reference to the Company’s
Current Report oForm &K dated August 15, 2007 Exhibit 3..
Indenture dated as of October 1, 2000, betweeg@timepany and Bank One Trust Company, N.A., as
Trustee, providing for the issuance of Debt Se@giih one or more series. (incorporated herein by
reference to the Compa’'s Current Report oForm &K dated October 12, 2000, Exhibit 4.
Officers’ Certificate dated February 4, 2003, pding for the Notes, including (a) the form of thetisis,
and (b) the Pricing Agreement. (incorporated hebgimeference to the Company’s Current Report on
Form ¢-K dated January 31, 2003, Exhibit 4.
Indenture dated as of March 5, 2004, by and betwseCompany and JP Morgan Trust Company,
National Association. (incorporated herein by refere to the Compa’s Current Report on
Form ¢-K dated March 8, 2004, Exhibit 4.:
Officers’ Certificate dated March 5, 2004, establishing grens of the 2% Convertible Senior Debenti
due 2034. (incorporated herein by reference t&Cti@pany’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
March 8, 2004, Exhibit 4.2
Officers’ Certificate dated August 19, 2005, estibihg the terms of the 6.00% Notes due 2015.
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yisent Report on Form 8-K dated August 19, 2005,
Exhibit 4.2).
Officers’ Certificate dated September 12, 2006d#hing the terms of the 6.625% Notes due 2016.
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yisent Report on Form 8-K dated September 12,
2006, Exhibit 4.2)
Officers’ Certificate dated March 7, 2007, estdtitig) the terms of the & 8% Notes due 2014
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yisent Report on Form 8-K dated March 7, 2007,
Exhibit 4.2). Note: The total amount of securitgghorized under any other instrument that defines
rights of holders of the Company’s loterm debt does not exceed 10% of the total asééte @ompan
and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis. Ttwerethese instruments are not required to bd fie
exhibits to this Report. The Company agrees toistarnopies of such instruments to the Commission
upon reques

Executive Compensation Plans and Arrangement

Form of Employment Agreement dated December 198 2@@dween the Company and Roy Vallee
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yisent Report on Form 8-K dated December 22,
2008, Exhibit 10.1)

Form of Employment Agreement dated December 198 2@dween the Company and each of its
Executive Officers (other than Roy Vallee) (incared herein by reference to the Company’s Current
Report orForm ¢-K dated December 22, 2008, Exhibit 10

Form of Change of Control Agreement dated DeceribeP008 between the Company and each of the
Executive Officers (incorporated herein by refeeetwthe Company’s Current Report on Form 8eifec
December 22, 2008, Exhibit 10..

Avnet 1988 Stock Option Plan (incorporated hergimdference to the ComparsyRegistration Stateme
onForm £-8, RegistratiorNo. 3:-29475,Exhibit 4-B).

Avnet 1990 Stock Option Plan (incorporated hergimederence to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 1(-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1992, Exhibi)1

Avnet 1995 Stock Option Plan (incorporated hergimdference to the Company’s Current Report on
Form ¢-K dated February 12, 1996, Exhibit 1

Avnet 1996 Incentive Stock Option Plan (incorpodaterein by reference to the Company’s Registration
Statement olForm $-8, RegistratiorNo. 33:-17271,Exhibit 99).
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Exhibit

Number
10.8
10.9
10.10

1011

1012

10.13

10.14
10.15
10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

Exhibit
Amended and Restated Avnet 1997 Stock Option Peorporated herein by reference to the
Compan’s Current Report oForm ¢-K dated August 29, 2006, Exhibit 10.
1994 Avnet Incentive Stock Program (incorporatectimeby reference to the Company’s Registration
Statement olForm $-8, RegistratiorNo. 33:--00129,Exhibit 99).
Stock Bonus Plan for Outside Directors (incorpatdterein by reference to the Company’s Current
Report orForm ¢-K dated September 23, 1997, Exhibit 99
Amendment to Stock Bonus Plan for Outside Directiated November 8, 2002. Directors (incorporated
herein by reference to the Company’s Current Repofform 8-K dated September 15, 2003
Exhibit 10G).
Retirement Plan for Outside Directors of Avnet,.Jrffective July 1, 1993 (incorporated herein by
reference to the Company’s Annual Report on ForaK I0r the fiscal year ended June 30, 1992,
Exhibit 10i).
Amended and Restated Avnet, Inc. Deferred CompigmsBtan for Outside Directors (incorporated
herein by reference to the Company’s Registratiatethent on Form S-8, Registration
No. 33:-112062 Exhibit 10.1).
Avnet 1999 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by refiee to the Company’s Current Report on
Form ¢-K dated August 29, 2006 Exhibit 10..
Avnet, Inc. Executive Incentive Plan (incorporatextein by reference to the CompasProxy Stateme
dated October 7, 200z
Amended and Restated Employee Stock PurchaseiRtamgorated herein by reference to the
Compan’s Proxy Statement dated October 1, 20
Avnet, Inc. 2003 Stock Compensation P
(a) Form of nonqualified stock option agreerr
(b) Form of nonqualified stock option agreementrfor-employee directc
(c) Form of incentive stock option agreem
(d) Form of performance stock unit term st
(incorporated by reference to the Company’s CurRayort on Form 8-K dated August 29, 2006,
Exhibit 10.3).
Avnet, Inc. 2006 Stock Compensation Plan (incorjmatdy reference to the Company’s Proxy Statement
dated October 10, 2006, Appendix
Avnet, Inc. 2006 Stock Compensation P
(a) Form of nonqualified stock option agreerr
(b) Form of nonqualified stock option agreementrfor-employee directc
(c) Form of performance stock unit term sheet gedieffective August 13, 2009 by(f) bela
(d) Form of incentive stock option agreem
(e) Long Term Incentive Lette
(incorporated by reference to the Company’s CurRaygort on Form 8-K dated May 16, 2007,
Exhibit 99.1).
(f) Form of performance stock unit term sheet (mpoovated by reference to the Company’s Current
Report orForm ¢-K dated August 19, 2009, Exhibit 99.
Avnet Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporatedeigrence to the Company’s Current Report on
Form ¢-K dated May 18, 2005, Exhibit 99.:
Form of Indemnity Agreement. The Company enters ihis form of agreement with each of its directors
and officers. (incorporated herein by referencédéoCompany’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated
May 8, 2006, Exhibit 10.1
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Number

10.22

10.23

Exhibit
Form option agreements for stock option plans (iporated by reference to the Company’s Current
Report orForm ¢-K dated September 8, 2004, Exhibit 1(
(a) Nor-Qualified stock option agreement for 1999 Stocki@pPlan
(b) Incentive stock option agreement for 1999 StOgkion Plar
(c) Incentive stock option agreement for 1996 StOgkion Plar
(d) Nor-Qualified stock option agreement for 1995 Stocki@pPlan

Bank Agreements

Securitization Prograt

(a) Receivables Sale Agreement, dated as of Jurz0P& between Avnet, Inc., as Originator and Avnet
Receivables Corporation as Buyer (incorporatedihdngreference to the Company’s Current Report on
Form ¢-K dated September 26, 2002, Exhibit 1f

(b) Amendment No. 1, dated as of February 6, 2@Receivables Sale Agreement in 10.23(a) above
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yisent Report on Form 8-K dated September 26,
2002, Exhibit 10K)

(c) Amendment No. 2, dated as of June 26, 200Rgeeivables Sale Agreement in 10.23(a) above
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yisent Report on Form 8-K dated September 26,
2002, Exhibit 10L)

(d) Amendment No. 3, dated as of November 25, 2@@0Receivables Sale Agreement in 10.23(a) above
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@ysent Report on Form 8-K dated December 17,
2002, Exhibit 10B)

(e) Amendment No. 4, dated as of December 12, 200Receivables Sale Agreement in 10.23(a) above
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yisent Report on Form 8-K dated December 17,
2002, Exhibit 10E)

() Amendment No. 5, dated as of August 15, 200R¢ceivables Sale Agreement in 10.23(a) above
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yisent Report on Form 8-K dated September 15,
2003, Exhibit 10C)

(9) Amendment No. 6, dated as of August 3, 200Rdoeivables Sale Agreement in 10.23(a) above
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yisent Report on Form 8-K dated September 13,
2005, Exhibit 10.1)

(h) Amended and Restated Receivables Purchase iAgrealated as of February 6, 2002 among Avnet
Receivables Corporation, as Seller, Avnet, IncSawicer, the Companies, as defined therein, the
Financial Institutions, as defined therein, andIB@&me, NA (Main Office Chicago) as Agent
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yisent Report on Form 8-K dated September 26,
2002, Exhibit 10M).*

() Amendment No. 1, dated as of June 26, 200theécAmended and Restated Receivables Purchase
Agreement in 10.23(h) above (incorporated hereirgfgrence to the Company’s Current Report on
Form ¢-K dated September 26, 2002, Exhibit 10

() Amendment No. 2, dated as of November 25, 26@#he Amended and Restated Receivables
Purchase Agreement in 10.23(h) above (incorpotta¢eein by reference to the Company’s Current
Report orForm ¢-K dated December 17, 2002, Exhibit 10

(k) Amendment No. 3, dated as of December 9, 2tithe Amended and Restated Receivables Purchase
Agreement in 10.23(h) above (incorporated hereirgfgrence to the Company’s Current Report on
Form ¢-K dated December 17, 2002, Exhibit 10

() Amendment No. 4, dated as of December 12, 2tithe Amended and Restated Receivables
Purchase Agreement in 10.23(h) above (incorpotta¢eein by reference to the Company’s Current
Report orForm ¢-K dated December 17, 2002, Exhibit 10

80




Table of Contents

Exhibit
Number

10.24

10.25

1C.26

10.27

12.1%

Exhibit
(m) Amendment No. 5, dated as of June 23, 200ed®mended and Restated Receivables Purchase
Agreement in 10.23(h) above (incorporated hereinetigrence to the Company’s Current Report on
Form &K dated September 15, 2003, Exhibit 10
(n) Amendment No. 6, dated as of August 15, 2008 ¢ Amended and Restated Receivables Purchase
Agreement in 10.23(h) above (incorporated hereineligrence to the Company’s Current Report on
Form &K dated September 15, 2003, Exhibit 1C
(o) Amendment No. 7, dated as of August 3, 200fh¢écAmended and Restated Receivables Purchase
Agreement in 10.23(h) above (incorporated hereinetigrence to the Company’s Current Report on
Form &K dated September 13, 2005, Exhibit 10
(p) Amendment No. 8, dated as of August 1, 2008hécAmended and Restated Receivables Purchase
Agreement in 10.23(h) above (incorporated hereineligrence to the Company’s Current Report on
Form &K dated August 29, 2006, Exhibit 10.
(q) Amendment No. 9, effective as of August 31,&00 the Amended and Restated Receivables
Purchase Agreement in 10.23(h) above (incorporageein by reference to the Company’s Current
Report orForm ¢-K dated August 29, 2006, Exhibit 10.
(r) Amendment No. 10, effective as of Septemb&086, to the Amended and Restated Receivables
Purchase Agreement in 10.23(h) above (incorporageein by reference to the Company’s Current
Report orForm &K dated August 29, 2007, Exhibit 10.
(s) Amendment No. 11, effective as of August 2797200 the Amended and Restated Receivables
Purchase Agreement in 10.23(h) above (incorpotta¢e€in by reference to the Company’s Current
Report orForm &K dated August 29, 2007, Exhibit 10.
(t) Form of Amendment No. 12, effective as of Aug?®, 2008, to the Amended and Restated
Receivables Purchase Agreement in 10.23(h) al
(u) Form of Amendment No. 13, effective as of Japd, 2009, to the Amended and Restated
Receivables Purchase Agreement in 10.23(h) at
Credit Agreement dated September 27, 2007 amongEBNNC., a New York corporation (the
“Company”), Avnet Japan Co., Ltd., a private compgaverned under the laws of Japan (“Avnet
Japan”), each other Subsidiary of the Company geatgto pursuant to Section 2.14 (Avnet Japan and
each such other Subsidiary, a “Designated Borrowrd, together with the Company, the “Borrowers”
and, each a “Borrower”), each lender from timeinwet party hereto (collectively, the “Lenders” and
individually, a “Lender”),and BANK OF AMERICA, N.A., as Administrative Ager8wing Line Lende
and L/C Issuer. (incorporated herein by referenadbé Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
September 28, 2007, Exhibit 10.
Guaranty dated as of September 27, 2007 made byEAYIMNC. , a New York corporation (the
“Guarantor”), to BANK OF AMERICA, N.A ., a natioridanking association organized and existing
under the laws of the United States, as adminig&ratgent under the Credit Agreement defined bélo
such capacity, the “Administrative Agent”), eachttod lenders now or hereafter party to the Credit
Agreement defined below (each, a “Lender” and|eatively, the “Lenders” and, together with the
Administrative Agent, collectively, the “Securedifies” and each a “Secured Party”). (incorporated
herein by reference to the Company’s Current Remoorm 8-K dated September 28, 2007,
Exhibit 10.2).

Other Agreements

Securities Acquisition Agreement, dated April 2603, by and among Avnet, Inc. and the sellers named
therein and Memec Group Holdings Limited. (incogted herein by reference to the Compar@urren
Report orForm &K dated April 26, 2005, Exhibit 2.1

Stock and Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as amloer 6, 2006, between MRA Systems, Inc. and
Avnet, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference ®@ompany’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
November 7, 2006, Exhibit 10.1

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charg:
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Exhibit
Number

21.%*
23.1%
31.1%
31.2**
32.1%**

32.2%**

Exhibit
List of subsidiaries of the Company as of June2®D9.
Consent of KPMG LLP
Certification by Roy Vallee, Chief Executive Officeinder Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.
Certification by Raymond Sadowski, Chief Finan€ficer, under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002,
Certification by Roy Vallee, Chief Executive Officeinder Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

Certification by Raymond Sadowski, Chief Finan€&Hficer, under Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002.

This Exhibit does not include the Exhibits anch8dules thereto as listed in its table of conteritie. Company

undertakes to furnish any such Exhibits and Schesdial the Securities and Exchange Commission upon i
request

**  Filed herewith
***  Furnished herewitt
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Exhibit 10.23(t)

AMENDMENT NO. 12 TO AMENDED AND RESTATED
RECEIVABLES PURCHASE AGREEMENT

This Amendment No. 12 to Amended and &edtReceivables Purchase Agreement (this “ Amenthe dated as of August 28,
2008, among Avnet Receivables Corporation, a Delawarporation (“ Sellef), Avnet, Inc., a New York corporation (* Avné&}, as initial
Servicer (the Servicer together with Seller, tiigetler Partie$ and each a “ Seller Party, each Financial Institution signatory hereto
(collectively, the “ Financial Institutioriy, each Company signatory hereto (the “* Compaijiesd JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (successor
by merger to Bank One, NA (Main Office Chicagoy,ament for the Purchasers (the “ Aggnt

RECITALS

Each of the parties hereto entered iné&b ¢ertain Amended and Restated Receivables Rg&greement, dated as of February 6,
2002, and amended such Amended and Restated RaesiVaurchase Agreement pursuant to Amendment M®réto, dated as of June 26,
2002, and further amended such Amended and RefRetlvables Purchase Agreement pursuant to Amertdyte 2 thereto, dated as of
November 25, 2002, and further amended such AmeadédRestated Receivables Purchase Agreement ptiteslamendment No.
thereto, dated as of December 9, 2002, and fuaiimended such Amended and Restated ReceivablesaBer8greement pursuant to
Amendment No. 4 thereto, dated as of December@®2,2and further amended such Amended and Ref&seivables Purchase Agreem
pursuant to Amendment No. 5 thereto, dated asraf 23, 2003, and further amended such Amended estafed Receivables Purchase
Agreement pursuant to Amendment No. 6 theretoddaseof August 15, 2003, and further amended sumbrled and Restated Receivables
Purchase Agreement pursuant to Amendment No. étthetated as of August 3, 2005, and further angeedeh Amended and Restated
Receivables Purchase Agreement pursuant to Amendveer8 thereto, dated as of August 1, 2006, anithén amended such Amended and
Restated Receivables Purchase Agreement pursuAnteéadment No. 9 thereto, dated as of August 30628nd further amended such
Amended and Restated Receivables Purchase Agrepomsaiant to Amendment No. 10 thereto, dated JgritByr2007 and effective as of
September 6, 2006, and further amended such Amame&estated Receivables Purchase Agreement putsuamendment No. 11
thereto, dated as of August 29, 2007 (such AmeadedRestated Receivables Purchase Agreementamsesaled, the Purchase Agreeme

)

Each Seller Party has requested thaAgiemt and the Purchasers amend certain provisibthed?urchase Agreement, all as more fully
described herein.

Subject to the terms and conditions Hewsach of the parties hereto now desires to artteé®urchase Agreement as more particularly
described herein.
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AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of themises, and for other good and valuable considerahe receipt and sufficiency of
which are hereby acknowledged, the parties heratebly agree as follows:

Section 1. Definitions Used Hereifapitalized terms used herein and not otherwadimeld herein shall have the respective meanings se
forth for such terms in, or incorporated by refeeimto, the Purchase Agreement.

Section 2. Amendment$Subject to the terms and conditions set fortieinethe Purchase Agreement is hereby amendedliasgo

(a) Section 9.1(f) of the Purchagge®ement is hereby amended by deleting in itsetgtthe phrase “Dilution Ratio Trigger shall
exceed 8.25%" and replacing it with the phrase dfidin Ratio Trigger shall exceed 9.00%.”

(b) Article X of the Purchase Agremmhis hereby amended by adding the following $acti0.5 to the end of such Article:

Section  10.5 Accounting Based Cadstibn Event (a) If an Accounting Based Consolidation Everglisht any time occur
then, upon demand by the Agent, Seller shall pakgcAgent, for the benefit of the relevant Affettentity, such amounts as such
Affected Entity reasonably determines will compéasa reimburse such Affected Entity for any resglt(i) fee, expense or increased
cost charged to, incurred or otherwise sufferedush Affected Entity, (ii) reduction in the ratereturn on such Affected Entity’s
capital or reduction in the amount of any sum neagior receivable by such Affected Entity or (@pportunity cost, internal capital
charge or other imputed cost determined by suchotéid Entity to be allocable to Seller or the teations contemplated in this
Agreement in connection therewith. Amounts under Section 10.5 may be demanded at any time withegaérd to the timing of
issuance of any financial statement by any Compeiiy any Affected Entity.

(b) For purposes of this Sectiorbl€he following terms shall have the following mewys:

“ Accounting Based Consolidation Evemeans the consolidation, for financial and/orulegpry accounting purposes, of all or
any portion of the assets and liabilities of anyrpany that are subject to this Agreement or angrofihansaction Document with all or
any portion of the assets and liabilities of aneted Entity. An Accounting Based Consolidation itv&hall be deemed to occur on the
date any Affected Entity shall
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acknowledge in writing that any such consolidatibthe assets and liabilities of any Company shedur.

“ Affected Entity’ means (i) any Financial Institution, (ii) any inaace company, bank or other funding entity pro\gdiquidity,
credit enhancement or back-up purchase suppoacdities to any Company, (iii) any agent, admirggtr or manager of any Company,
or (iv) any bank holding company in respect of ahyhe foregoing.

(c) Article XlI of the Purchase Agraent is hereby amended by adding the followingi@2d 2.3 to the end of such Article:

Section 12.3 Federal Reseriotwithstanding any other provision of this Agmeent to the contrary, any Financial Institution
may at any time pledge or grant a security intareatl or any portion of its rights (including, thiout limitation, any Purchaser Interest
and any rights to payment of Capital and Yield) emithis Agreement to secure obligations of suclaféml Institution to a Federal
Reserve Bank, without notice to or consent of tekeBor the Agent; provided that no such pledggrant of a security interest shall
release a Financial Institution from any of itsigations hereunder, or substitute any such pledgegeantee for such Financial
Institution as a party hereto.

(d) The definition of “Applicable Mgin” appearing in Exhibit | to the Purchase Agresiis hereby amended by amending and
restating such definition in its entirety to readfallows:

“ Applicable Margin” means 1.75%.

(e) The definition of “Dilution Pexntage” appearing in Exhibit | to the Purchase Agrent is hereby amended by deleting in its
entirety the phrase “HDR = the highest averagestimenth Dilution Ratio occurring during the 12 mostent calendar months” and
replacing it with the phrase “HDR = the highestrage two-month Dilution Ratio occurring during th2 most recent calendar months.”

(f) The definition of “Liquidity Tenination Date” appearing in Exhibit | to the Pursba\greement is hereby amended by amending
and restating such definition in its entirety tades follows:

“ Liquidity Termination Daté’ means August 27, 2009.
(g) The definition of “Loss Perceged appearing in Exhibit | to the Purchase Agreeniehereby amended by deleting in its
entirety the phrase “means at any time the gredit@y 10% and (ii) a percentage calculated in adaace with the following formula”
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and replacing it with the phrase “means at any {&)el0% plus (B) the greater of (i) 10% and (iiparcentage calculated in accordance with
the following formula.”

(h) Schedule D to the Purchase Age is hereby deleted in its entirety and therdidin of “Pricing Grid” and each reference to
such definition is hereby deleted in its entirety.

Section 3. Conditions to Effectiveness of thisendment This Amendment shall become effective as of tiie tereof, upon the
satisfaction of the conditions precedent that:

(a)_AmendmeniThe Agent shall have received, on or before tite tereof, executed counterparts of this Amendnaehy
executed by each of the parties hereto.

(b)_Representations and Warrant#s of the date hereof, both before and aftemgj\éffect to this Amendment, all of the
representations and warranties contained in thehldge Agreement and in each other Transaction Decushall be true and correct in all
material respects as though made on the date h@mdby its execution hereof, each of Seller &edServicer shall be deemed to have
represented and warranted such).

(c)_No Amortization EvenAs of the date hereof, both before and aftemgjéffect to this Amendment, no Amortization Event
Potential Amortization Event shall have occurred ba continuing (and by its execution hereof, ezcBeller and the Servicer shall be
deemed to have represented and warranted such).

(d)_Amendment Fe®©n or before the date hereof, each Financiaitinigtn shall have received, in immediately avaiatunds, an
amendment fee in an amount equal to 0.075% mu@tdly such Financial Institution’s Commitment.

(e)_Fee Letter&ach Purchaser shall have received, on or béfierdate hereof, executed counterparts of the EeerLto which it
is a party, duly executed by each of the partiesetio.

Section 4. Miscellaneous

(a)_Effect; RatificationThe amendments set forth herein are effectivelys@br the purposes set forth herein and shalirbited
precisely as written, and shall not be deemed)tiog(ia consent to, or an acknowledgment of, anyndment, waiver or modification of any
other term or condition of the Purchase Agreemenf any other instrument or agreement referretthéoein or (ii) prejudice any right or
remedy which any Purchaser or the Agent may nove leaymay have in the future under or in connectiith the Purchase Agreement, as
amended hereby, or any other instrument or agreerataired to therein. Each reference in the Puselegreement to “this Agreement,”
“herein,” “hereof” and words of like import and daeference in the other Transaction Documentead’urchase Agreement or to the
“Receivables Purchase Agreement” or to the “Purelageement” shall mean the Purchase Agreemenhaaded hereby. This Amendment
shall be construed in connection with and as gati@Purchase Agreement and all terms, conditi@mesentations, warranties, covenants
and agreements set forth in the Purchase Agreesmentach other instrument or agreement
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referred to therein, except as herein amendeeasby ratified and confirmed and shall remainuihfbrce and effect.

(b)_Transaction Documenithis Amendment is a Transaction Document execptesuant to the Purchase Agreement and shall b
construed, administered and applied in accordaiittethe terms and provisions thereof.

(c)_Costs, Fees and Expend¥ghout limiting Section 10.3 of the Purchase égment, Seller agrees to reimburse the Agent and
the Purchasers upon demand for all reasonable @naented out-of-pocket costs, fees and expensasding the reasonable fees and
expenses of counsels to any of the Agent and thehBsers) incurred in connection with the prepamtexecution and delivery of this
Amendment.

(d)_Counterpartshis Amendment may be executed in any numbeoofierparts, each such counterpart constitutingrigmal
and all of which when taken together shall consittne and the same instrument.

(e)_SeverabilityAny provision contained in this Amendment thahédd to be inoperative, unenforceable or invalicmny
jurisdiction shall, as to that jurisdiction, be perative, unenforceable or invalid without affegtthe remaining provisions of this Amendm
in that jurisdiction or the operation, enforcedibr validity of such provision in any other jutistion.

(f)_GOVERNING LAW THIS AMENDMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED AND CONSTRUED IMCCORDANCE WITH THE
LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK EXCLUDING CHOICE-OFAW PRINCIPLES OF THE LAW OF SUCH STATE THAT
WOULD REQUIRE THE APPLICATION OF THE LAWS OF A JUBDICTION OTHER THAN SUCH STATE.

(9)_WAIVER OF JURY TRIALEACH PARTY HERETO HEREBY WAIVES TRIAL BY JURY IMNY JUDICIAL
PROCEEDING INVOLVING, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, ANY MATTER (WHETHER SOUNDING IN TORT, CONTRACT OR
OTHERWISE) IN ANY WAY ARISING OUT OF, RELATED TO, & CONNECTED WITH THIS AMENDMENT, ANY DOCUMENT
EXECUTED BY ANY SELLER PARTY PURSUANT TO THIS AMENBIENT OR THE RELATIONSHIP ESTABLISHED
HEREUNDER OR THEREUNDER.

(h)_Funding Agreement ConseBY its execution hereof, JPMorgan Chase Bank, Kslccessor by merger to Bank One, NA
(Main Office Chicago)), in its capacity as a padyany applicable Funding Agreement with or for iemefit of Chariot Funding LLC
(successor to Preferred Receivables Funding Comipla@y (“ Chariot”), hereby (i) consents to Chariot’s executionfaétAmendment and
the transactions contemplated hereby, (ii) ackndgés that this Amendment has been made availableddas been reviewed by it,
(iii) consents to this Amendment and (iv) deems graragraph to satisfy any applicable requiremmegarding this Amendment set forth in
any such Funding Agreement.

(Signature Pages Follow)
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties heretaehaaused this Amendment to be executed and detivey their respective duly
authorized officers as of the date first writtem\ad.

AVNET RECEIVABLES CORPORATION, as Sell

By:
Name
Title:

AVNET, INC., as Service

By:
Name
Title:

CHARIOT FUNDING LLC (successor to Preferred
Receivables Funding Company LLC), as a Comg

By: JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.
Its:  Attorney-in-Fact

By:
Name
Title:

JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A.

(successor by merger to Bank One, NA

(Main Office Chicago)), as a Financial Institutiand as
Agent

By:
Name
Title:
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LIBERTY STREET FUNDING CORP., as a Compe

By:
Name
Title:

THE BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA, as a Financial
Institution

By:
Name
Title:
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AMSTERDAM FUNDING CORPORATION, as a Compa

By:
Name
Title:

ABN AMRO BANK N.V., as a Financial Institutio

By:
Name
Title:

By:
Name
Title:
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STARBIRD FUNDING CORPORATION, as a Compa

By:
Name
Title:

BNP PARIBAS, acting through its New York
Branch, as a Financial Institutit

By:
Name
Title:

By:
Name
Title:
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AMENDMENT NO. 13 TO AMENDED AND RESTATED
RECEIVABLES PURCHASE AGREEMENT

This Amendment No. 13 to Amended and &edtReceivables Purchase Agreement (this * Amentifhes dated as of January 21,
2008, among Avnet Receivables Corporation, a Delawarporation (“ Sellef), Avnet, Inc., a New York corporation (* Avné&}, as initial
Servicer (the Servicer together with Seller, tiigetler Partie$ and each a “ Seller Party, each Financial Institution signatory hereto
(collectively, the “ Financial Institutioriy, each Company signatory hereto (the “* Compaijiesd JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (successor
by merger to Bank One, NA (Main Office Chicagoy,ament for the Purchasers (the “ Aggnt

RECITALS

Each of the parties hereto entered iné&b ¢ertain Amended and Restated Receivables Rg&greement, dated as of February 6,
2002, and amended such Amended and Restated RaesiVaurchase Agreement pursuant to Amendment M®réto, dated as of June 26,
2002, and further amended such Amended and RefRetlvables Purchase Agreement pursuant to Amertdyte 2 thereto, dated as of
November 25, 2002, and further amended such AmeadédRestated Receivables Purchase Agreement ptiteslamendment No.
thereto, dated as of December 9, 2002, and fuaiimended such Amended and Restated ReceivablesaBer8greement pursuant to
Amendment No. 4 thereto, dated as of December@®2,2and further amended such Amended and Ref&seivables Purchase Agreem
pursuant to Amendment No. 5 thereto, dated asraf 23, 2003, and further amended such Amended estafed Receivables Purchase
Agreement pursuant to Amendment No. 6 theretoddaseof August 15, 2003, and further amended sumbrled and Restated Receivables
Purchase Agreement pursuant to Amendment No. étthetated as of August 3, 2005, and further angeedeh Amended and Restated
Receivables Purchase Agreement pursuant to Amendveer8 thereto, dated as of August 1, 2006, anithén amended such Amended and
Restated Receivables Purchase Agreement pursuAnteéadment No. 9 thereto, dated as of August 30628nd further amended such
Amended and Restated Receivables Purchase Agrepomsaiant to Amendment No. 10 thereto, dated JgritByr2007 and effective as of
September 6, 2006, and further amended such Amame&estated Receivables Purchase Agreement putsuamendment No. 11
thereto, dated as of August 29, 2007, and furthramaled such Amended and Restated Receivables Bar&gaeement pursuant to
Amendment No. 12 thereto, dated as of August 288Z6uch Amended and Restated Receivables Purglgasement, as so amended, the “
Purchase Agreemetfit

Each Seller Party has requested thaAg¢iemt and the Purchasers amend certain provisibthed?urchase Agreement, all as more fully
described herein.

Subject to the terms and conditions Hewach of the parties hereto now desires to artteé®urchase Agreement as more particularly
described herein.
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AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of themises, and for other good and valuable considerahe receipt and sufficiency of
which are hereby acknowledged, the parties heratebly agree as follows:

Section 1. Definitions Used Hereifapitalized terms used herein and not otherwadimeld herein shall have the respective meanings se
forth for such terms in, or incorporated by refeeimto, the Purchase Agreement.

Section 2. AmendmenSubiject to the terms and conditions set fortieinethe Purchase Agreement is hereby amended byding the
definition of “Loss Percentage” appearing in Exhltithereto by deleting in its entirety the phré&seans at any time (A) 10% plus (B) the
greater of (i) 10% and (ii) a percentage calcul@eaccordance with the following formula” and raghg it with the phrase “means at any
time the greater of (i) 10% and (ii) a percentagiewdated in accordance with the following formula.

Section 3. Conditions to Effectiveness of thisendment This Amendment shall become effective as of thie diereof, upon the
satisfaction of the conditions precedent that:

(a)_AmendmeniThe Agent shall have received, on or before tte tereof, executed counterparts of this Amendndehy
executed by each of the parties hereto.

(b)_Representations and Warrant#s of the date hereof, both before and aftemgj\éffect to this Amendment, all of the
representations and warranties contained in thehldse Agreement and in each other Transaction Decushall be true and correct in all
material respects as though made on the date h@mdby its execution hereof, each of Seller &wed3ervicer shall be deemed to have
represented and warranted such).

(c)_No Amortization EvenAs of the date hereof, both before and aftemgjéffect to this Amendment, no Amortization Event
Potential Amortization Event shall have occurred ba continuing (and by its execution hereof, ezfcheller and the Servicer shall be
deemed to have represented and warranted such).

Section 4. Miscellaneous

(a)_Effect; RatificationThe amendments set forth herein are effectivel\sédr the purposes set forth herein and shalirbied
precisely as written, and shall not be deemed)tiog(ia consent to, or an acknowledgment of, anyndment, waiver or modification of any
other term or condition of the Purchase Agreemenf any other instrument or agreement referretthéoein or (ii) prejudice any right or
remedy which any Purchaser or the Agent may nove leaymay have in the future under or in connectwith the Purchase Agreement, as
amended hereby, or any other instrument or agreeratamred to therein. Each reference in the Puelegreement to “this Agreement,”
“herein,” “hereof” and words of like import and daeference in the other Transaction Documentsad’urchase Agreement or to the
“Receivables Purchase Agreement” or to the “Purelfageement” shall mean the Purchase Agreemennaaded hereby. This Amendment
shall be construed in connection with and as
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part of the Purchase Agreement and all terms, tiondi representations, warranties, covenants grekments set forth in the Purchase
Agreement and each other instrument or agreemganted to therein, except as herein amended, asbheatified and confirmed and shall
remain in full force and effect.

(b)_Transaction Documenithis Amendment is a Transaction Document execpitesuant to the Purchase Agreement and shall b
construed, administered and applied in accordaiittethe terms and provisions thereof.

(c)_Costs, Fees and Expend¥ghout limiting Section 10.3 of the Purchase égment, Seller agrees to reimburse the Agent and
the Purchasers upon demand for all reasonable@ndrented out-of-pocket costs, fees and expensesding the reasonable fees and
expenses of counsels to any of the Agent and thehBsers) incurred in connection with the prepamtexecution and delivery of this
Amendment.

(d)_Counterpart§ his Amendment may be executed in any numbeoofiterparts, each such counterpart constitutingrigimal
and all of which when taken together shall consittne and the same instrument.

(e)_SeverabilityAny provision contained in this Amendment thahédd to be inoperative, unenforceable or invalicmy
jurisdiction shall, as to that jurisdiction, be perative, unenforceable or invalid without affegtthe remaining provisions of this Amendm
in that jurisdiction or the operation, enforceailr validity of such provision in any other julistion.

(f)_GOVERNING LAW THIS AMENDMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED AND CONSTRUED IMCCORDANCE WITH THE
LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK EXCLUDING CHOICE-OFAW PRINCIPLES OF THE LAW OF SUCH STATE THAT
WOULD REQUIRE THE APPLICATION OF THE LAWS OF A JURDICTION OTHER THAN SUCH STATE.

(9)_WAIVER OF JURY TRIALEACH PARTY HERETO HEREBY WAIVES TRIAL BY JURY IMANY JUDICIAL
PROCEEDING INVOLVING, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, ANY MATTER (WHETHER SOUNDING IN TORT, CONTRACT OR
OTHERWISE) IN ANY WAY ARISING OUT OF, RELATED TO, & CONNECTED WITH THIS AMENDMENT, ANY DOCUMENT
EXECUTED BY ANY SELLER PARTY PURSUANT TO THIS AMENBMIENT OR THE RELATIONSHIP ESTABLISHED
HEREUNDER OR THEREUNDER.

(h)_Funding Agreement ConseBY its execution hereof, JPMorgan Chase Bank, sAccessor by merger to Bank One, NA
(Main Office Chicago)), in its capacity as a padyany applicable Funding Agreement with or for lemefit of Chariot Funding LLC
(successor to Preferred Receivables Funding Comipla@y (“ Chariot”), hereby (i) consents to Chariot’s executionfaétAmendment and
the transactions contemplated hereby, (ii) ackndgés that this Amendment has been made availableddas been reviewed by it,
(iii) consents to this Amendment and (iv) deems ffaragraph to satisfy any applicable requiremegtarding this Amendment set forth in
any such Funding Agreement.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties heretaehaaused this Amendment to be executed and detivey their respective duly
authorized officers as of the date first writtem\ad.

AVNET RECEIVABLES CORPORATION, as Sell

By:
Name Raymond Sadowsl
Title: Presiden

AVNET, INC., as Service

By:
Name David R. Birk
Title: Sr. Vice Presider

CHARIOT FUNDING LLC (successor to Preferred
Receivables Funding Company LLC), as a Comg

By: JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.
Its:  Attorney-in-Fact

By:
Name
Title:

JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A.

(successor by merger to Bank One, NA

(Main Office Chicago)), as a Financial Institutiand as
Agent

By:
Name
Title:

AMENDMENT NO. 13 TO AMENDED AND RESTAT
RECEIVABLES PURCHASE AGREEME




LIBERTY STREET FUNDING LLC
(successor to Liberty Street Funding Corp.), a®mg@any

By:
Name
Title:

THE BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA, as a Financial Institutic

By:
Name
Title:
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AMSTERDAM FUNDING CORPORATION, as a Compa

By:
Name
Title:

ABN AMRO BANK N.V., as a Financial Institutio

By:
Name
Title:

By:
Name
Title:
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STARBIRD FUNDING CORPORATION, as a Compa

By:
Name
Title:

BNP PARIBAS, acting through its New York Branch,aas
Financial Institutior

By:
Name
Title:

By:
Name
Title:
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Avnet, Inc.

Computation of Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges

Fiscal Year Ended

Exhibit 12.1

June 27, June 28,
2009 2008
Earnings:
Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeme
taxes $(1,083,07) $708,95!
Add fixed charge: 91,11¢ 95,18¢
Total earnings (loss $ (991,95) $804,14:
Fixed charges
Interest on indebtedne $ 66,48 $ 72,28t
Amortization of debt expen: 3,171 3,17¢
Interest component of rent expet 21,46! 19,72¢
Total fixed charge $ 9111¢ $ 95,18t¢
Ratio of earnings to fixed charg * 8.4

* Earnings were deficient in covering fixed charge$h.083 billion for the fiscal year ended June 2009.

June 30,
2007

(in thousands

$586,61¢
96,74%
$683,36¢

$ 77,17:
3,41%
16,16:

7.1

July 1,
2006

$316,14°
118,93.
$435,07¢

$ 96,50¢
5,04:
17,38¢
$118,93:

3.7

July 2,
2005

$239,75¢
105,23:
$344,99(

$ 85,05¢
5,18¢
14,98
$105,23:

3.3



Foreign and Domestic Subsidiaries

Avnet, Inc.

Exhibit 21

Company Name Jurisdiction
Abacus Conelec A/ Denmark
Abacus ECC SRI Italy
Abacus Electronics Holdings L England
Abacus Group Limite: England
Abacus Norway A Norway
Abacus Polar Ireland Lt Ireland
Access Graphics LL¢ Delaware
Alpha 3 Manufacturing Lt England
Avnet (Asia Pacific Holdings) Limite Hong Kong
Avnet (Australia) Pty. Ltd Australia
Avnet (Holdings) Ltc United Kingdom
Avnet (N2) New Zealanc
Avnet (Tianjin) Logistics Ltd China
Avnet Abacus Limitec Hong Kong
Avnet AG Switzerlanc
Avnet Applied Computing European Services Gnr Germany
Avnet Asia Pte Ltc Singapore
Avnet ASIC Israel Ltc Israel
Avnet Azure Pte. Ltd Singapore
Avnet Azure Sdn. Bhc Malaysia
Avnet B.V. Netherland:
Avnet Beteiligung-Verwaltungs Gmbt Germany
Avnet Components Israel Limite Israel

Avnet Corporate Trustee Limite

Avnet de Mexico, S.A. de C.\

Avnet de Puerto Rico, In

Avnet Delaware Holdings, In

Avnet Delaware LLC

Avnet do Brasil LTDA

Avnet Electronics Marketing (Australia) Pty L
Avnet EM Sp. z.0.c

Avnet EMG AG

Avnet EMG Elektronische Bauelemente Gm
Avnet EMG France S.A

Avnet EMG GmbH

Avnet EMG ltaly S.r.l.

Avnet EMG Ltd

United Kingdom
Mexico

Puerto Ricc
Delaware
Delaware

Brazil

Australia
Poland
Switzerland
Austria

France
Germany

Italy

United Kingdom




Company Name Jurisdiction

Avnet Erste Vermoegensverwaltungs GmbH & Co. Germany
Avnet Europe Comm. V/ Belgium
Avnet Finance B.V Netherland
Avnet France S.A.S France
Avnet Holding B.V. Netherland:
Avnet Holding Germany Gmbl Germany
Avnet Holding South Africa (Pty) Limite South Africa
Avnet Holdings (Australia) Pty. Limite Australia
Avnet Holdings UK Limitec United Kingdom
Avnet Holdings, LLC Delaware
Avnet Iberia S.A Spain
Avnet India Private Limite India

Avnet International (Canada) Lt Canade
Avnet International, LLC Delaware
Avnet Italy Srl Italy

Avnet Japan Co., Ltc Japar
Avnet Kopp (Pty) Limitec South Africa
Avnet Korea, Inc Korea, Republic o
Avnet Limited Ireland
Avnet Logistics (Shenzhen) Lt China
Avnet Logistics B.V.B.A. Belgium
Avnet Logistics do Brasil Ltde Brazil
Avnet Logistics GmbF Germany
Avnet Logistics Holding Corg Arizona
Avnet Logistics Pte. Ltc Singapore
Avnet Logistics U.S., L.F Texas
Avnet Malaysia Sdn Bh Malaysia
Avnet Nortec A/S Denmark
Avnet Nortec AB Sweder
Avnet Nortec AS Norway
Avnet Nortec Oy Finland
Avnet Pacific Pty Limitec Australia
Avnet Partner Solutions (Malaysia) Sdn. B Malaysia
Avnet Partner Solutions Pte. Lt Singapore
Avnet Partner Solutions, S. de R.L. de C Mexico
Avnet Philippines Pty Ltd., Inc Philippines
Avnet Properties Corporatic Delaware
Avnet Receivables Corporatit Delaware
Avnet S.r.l. Italy

Avnet s.r.c Czech Republi
Avnet Solutions Pte. Ltc Singapore
Avnet Solutions Sdn. Bh Malaysia
Avnet Sp. z.0.0 Poland
Avnet Sunrise Limitec Hong Kong

Avnet Technology (Thailand) Lt Thailand




Company Name Jurisdiction
Avnet Technology Hong Kong Limite Hong Kong
Avnet Technology Solutions (China) L China
Avnet Technology Solutions (India) Private Limit India
Avnet Technology Solutions (Thailand) L Thailand
Avnet Technology Solutions (Tianjin) L China
Avnet Technology Solutions B.\ Netherland:
Avnet Technology Solutions Gmk Germany
Avnet Technology Solutions Handelsgesellschaft ish. Austria
Avnet Technology Solutions K Hungary
Avnet Technology Solutions L1 United Kingdom
Avnet Technology Solutions Pte. Li Singapore
Avnet Technology Solutions s.r Italy

Avnet Technology Solutions S.R. Romanis
Avnet Technology Solutions s.r. Slovakia
Avnet Technology Solutions Sanayi Ve Ticaret Anoi8irketi Turkey
Avnet Technology Solutions SA France
Avnet Verwaltungs Gmbt Germany
Azzurri Technology S.A.R.L France

BFI Vermoegensverwaltungs Gmt Germany
BFI-IBEXSA International LLC Delaware
Chinatronic Technology Limite Hong Kong

Clarity Technology Limitec
Client Solutions Limitec

CM Satellite Systems, In:

Del- La Distribution Electroniqu
Deltron Electronics Lt

Deltron Holdings Ltc

Deltron Radikor BV

DEM Manufacturing Ltc

EBV Beteiligung-Verwaltungs Gmbt
EBV Elektronik ApS

EBV Elektronik EPE

EBV Elektronik France SA
EBV Elektronik GmbH & Co. KC
EBV Elektronik Kft

EBV Elektronik Limited

EBV Elektronik M

EBV Elektronik OU

EBV Elektronik S.r.l.

EBV Elektronik S.R.L.

EBV Elektronik s.r.o

EBV Elektronik SAS

EBV Elektronik sp. z 0.c

EBV Elektronik Spain S.L

EBV Elektronik spol. s r.c

United Kingdom
Ireland
New York
France
England
England
Netherland:
England
Germany
Denmark
Greece
France
Germany
Hungary
Hong Kong
Russia
Estonia
Italy
Romaniza
Slovakia
France
Poland
Spain
Czech Republi




Company Name Jurisdiction
EBV Elektronik Ticaret Limited Sirke' Turkey

EBV Elektronik TOV Ukraine
EBV Elektronik, Druzba Za Posredovanje D.O Slovenia
EBV Management Gmbl Germany
EBV Vermoegensverwaltungs Gmt Germany
EBV-Elektronik GmbH Austria
ECC Distribution Ltd England
Electrolink (PTY) Ltd South Africa

Electron House (Overseas) Limit

Enlaces Computacionales, S. de R.L. de (
Erste TENVA Property GmbH Gruber Stre
Flint Distribution Holdings Limitec

Flint Distribution Limited

Horizon Enterprise Systems Limit:

Horizon Open Systems (NI) Limite

Horizon Open Systems Lt

Horizon Technology Group Limite
Innovative Electronics Components Group
Instituto de Educacion Avanzada, S. de R.L. de !
Kent One Corporatio

Memec (Asia Pacific) Limite

Memec Europe Limite:

Memec Group Holdings Limite

Memec Group Limite(

Memec Holdings Limitet

Memec Pty Limitec

MI Technology Products de Mexico, S. de R.L. de (
PCD Centro S.r.|

Polar Ltd

Pride Well Limited

Société Civile Immobiliére du 22 rue de Dan
Soluciones Mercantiles, S. de R.L. de C
Sunrise Logistics (Shanghai) Limit

Telmil Electronics, Inc

Tenva Belgium Comm. V/

Tenva Financial Management B.V.B.
Thomas Kaubisch Gmb

Trident Microsystems Al

Trident Microsystems Lt

Trident Microsystems O

WBT Systems Limite

WBT Systems, Inc

YEL Electronics (China) Limite:

YEL Electronics (Shanghai) Limite

YEL Electronics (Shenzhen) L

United Kingdom
Mexico
Germany
England and Wale
England

United Kingdom
Northern Irelanc
Ireland

Ireland

England
Mexico
Delaware

Hong Kong
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Australia
Mexico

Italy

England

Virgin Islands, Britist
France

Mexico

China
Delaware
Belgium
Belgium
Germany
Sweder
England
Finland

Ireland
Delaware

Hong Kong
China

China




Company Name Jurisdiction
YEL Electronics Hong Kong Limite Hong Kong
YEL Electronics Pte Lt Singapore
YEL Electronics Sdn Bh Malaysia
YEL Korea (HK) Limited Hong Kong

ZWEITE TENVA Property GmbH Im Technologiepe

Germany



Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
Avnet, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference irrdlggstration statements Nos. 333-155971 and 33349 on Form S-3 and Nos. 33-43855,
33-64765, 333-17271, 333-45735, 333-55806, 333-90323-45267, 333-101039, 333-112057, 333-112082;132063, and 333-140903
on Form S-8 of Avnet, Inc. of our report dated Asig24, 2009, with respect to the consolidated lwaameets of Avnet, Inc. and subsidiaries
as of June 27, 2009 and June 28, 2008 and thedeatahsolidated statements of operations, sharefsdlequity, and cash flows for each of
the years in the three-year period ended June@B, 2he related financial statement schedule tlameffectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting as of June 27, 2009, which repppears in the June 27, 2009 annual report om E6-K of Avnet, Inc.

As discussed in note 9 to the consolidated findistaements, on July 1, 2007, Avnet, Inc. adopiedorovisions of Financial Accounting
Standards Board Interpretation No. A8counting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — amriptetation of FASB Statement No. 109
/sl KPMG LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
August 24, 2009



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
I, Roy Vallee, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Avnet, Inc.;

2.  Based on my knowledge, this report doesantain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmislieading with respect to the
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statésjeand other financial information included irstreport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this rep

4.  The registrard’other certifying officer(s) and | are responsitdleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures (
such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13ajl&fd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finahgé@orting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 1-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

a. designed such disclosure controls and puresdor caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared

b.  designed such internal control over finahn@porting, or caused such internal control owearicial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmare with generally accepted accounting princij

c.  evaluated the effectiveness of the regissalisclosure controls and procedures and predentthis report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; ar

d. disclosed in this report any change in #ggstrant’s internal control over financial repogithat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regidts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer@)d | have disclosed, based on our most recehiaian of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing equivalent
functions):

a. all significant deficiencies and materialkeesses in the design or operation of internairebaver financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrgistrant’s ability to record, process, summasiad report financial
information; anc

b. any fraud, whether or not material, thabimes management or other employees who have Hiségn role in the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

Date: August 25, 2009

/s ROY VALLEE
Roy Vallee
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
I, Raymond Sadowski, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Avnet, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doesantain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmislieading with respect to the
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statésjeand other financial information included irstreport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this rep

4.  The registrard’other certifying officer(s) and | are responsitdleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures (
such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13ajl&td 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finahgé@orting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 1-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

a. designed such disclosure controls and puresdor caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattdy during the period in which this report isiige prepared

b. designed such internal control over finahn@porting, or caused such internal control owearicial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataece with generally accepted accounting princij

c.  evaluated the effectiveness of the regissalisclosure controls and procedures and predentthis report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehlis report based on
such evaluation; ar

d. disclosed in this report any change in gggstrant’s internal control over financial repogithat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regidts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer@)d | have disclosed, based on our most recehiaian of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing equivalent
functions):

a. all significant deficiencies and materiabkeesses in the design or operation of internairebaver financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrigistrant’s ability to record, process, summasiad report financial
information; anc

b. any fraud, whether or not material, thabires management or other employees who have Hiségn role in the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

Date: August 25, 2009

/sl RAYMOND SADOWSKI
Raymond Sadowsk
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. &cTion 1350
(As ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 9060F THE SARBANES-OXLEY AcT oF 2002)

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10eK the year ended June 27, 2009 (the “RepdrtRoy Vallee, Chief Executive Officer
Avnet, Inc., (the “Company”) hereby certify that:

1.

The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the SeearExchange Act of 1934; ai
2.

The information contained in the Reportl§agresents, in all material respects, the findmadition and results of operations of the
Company

Date: August 25, 2009

/sl ROY VALLEE
Roy Vallee
Chief Executive Officer

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2082 been provided to the Company and
will be retained by the Company and furnished o $lecurities and Exchange Commission or its sfaghuequest. This certification will not
be deemed “filedfor purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Acttberwise subject to the liability of that sectidfor will this certificatior

be deemed to be incorporated by reference intditmy under the Securities Act or the Exchange,Aotcept to the extent that the registrant
specifically incorporates it by reference.



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. &cTion 1350
(As ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 9060F THE SARBANES-OXLEY AcT oF 2002)

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10eK the year ended June 27, 2009 (the “ReportRaymond Sadowski, Chief Financial
Officer of Avnet, Inc., (the “Company”) hereby dértthat:

1.

The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the SeearExchange Act of 1934; ai
2.

The information contained in the Reportl§agresents, in all material respects, the findmmiadition and results of operations of the
Company

Date: August 25, 2009

/sl RAYMOND SADOWSKI
Raymond Sadowsk
Chief Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2082 been provided to the Company and
will be retained by the Company and furnished ® $lecurities and Exchange Commission or its sfaghuequest. This certification will not
be deemed “filedfor purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Actitberwise subject to the liability of that sectidfor will this certificatior

be deemed to be incorporated by reference intdiimy under the Securities Act or the Exchange,Aotcept to the extent that the registrant
specifically incorporates it by reference.



